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BHATIACOMMUNICATIONSRETAIUNDIALIMITED
CIN:L32109GJ2008PLC053336

Regd Off: 132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad,Surat895002
Website:www.bhatiamobile.comE mail: info@bhatiamobile.comPh:0261 2349892

NOTICEF14™MANNUAL

GENERAUEETING

Noticeis herebygivenof the 14" AnnualGeneralMeetingof the membersof BhatiaCommunications& Retail
(India) Limited will be held on Monday,the 05" day of September2022at ShopNo. 203, GroundFloor,Bhatia
ComplexNr. SosydCircleBamroliRoad,Surat.394210At 11:00A.M. to transactthe following business:

ORDINARBUSINESS:

1.

Toreceive,considerand adopt the Audited FinancialStatementsof the companyfor the financialyear
endedon 315 March,2022,togetherwith the Reportsof the Boardof Directorsand Auditors’thereon.

“RESOLVEDHATthe Audited BalanceSheet,Profit and lossaccountand CashFlow Statementfor the
year ended 31st March, 2022 alongwith the Auditorsreport and Director'sReport,be and are hereby
considered Adoptedand Approved”

Toappointa Directorin placeof Mrs. KamleshkumarHabanslalBhatia,Director (DIN:02066517)Jiable
to retire by rotation in terms of section152(6)of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and beingeligible, seeksre r
appointment.

“RESOLVEDHATIn accordancewith the provisionof Section152 (6) and all other applicableprovisions,
if any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013, Mrs. KamleshkumarHarbanslalBhatia, Director (DIN: 020665T),
who retires by rotation at this annualgeneralmeeting, be and is herebyreappointedas director of the
Companyliableto retire by rotation.”

SPECIABUSINESS

3.

Remppointment of Mr. Sangev HarbanslalBhatia (DIN: 02063671),as the ManagingDirector of the
Companyfor afurther periodof 5 (Five)years

Toconsiderand, if thoughtfit, to passthe following resolutionasSpeciaResolution:

“RESOLVEDHATIn accordancewith the provisionsof Sectionsl96,197 and 203 read with Schedulev
and all other applicableprovisions,if any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013and the CompaniegAppointment
and Remunerationof ManagerialPersonnel)Rules,2014 (Includingany statutory modification(s)or re r
enactmentthereof, for the time beingin force) and subjectto suchconsentsand permissionsasmay be

required,the approvalof the Membersof the Conpanybe and is herebyaccordedfor the proposedre r
appointment of Mr. SanjeevHarbanslal Bhatia (DIN: 02063671) as the Managing Director of the

Company for a further period of 5 (Five)yearscommencingfrom 05" January,2023to 04" January,
2028,0n suchterms and conditionsassetout in the ExplanatonStatementannexedhereto, with Liberty
to the Boardof Directorsto vary,amendor revisethe remunerationwithin the maximumceilingspecified
underthe Actandasmaybe Approvedby the Boardof Directors.
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RESOLVEEURTHERHATthe Boardof Directorsor a duly constituted Committeeor any Director of the
Companybe andis herebyauthorisedto take all suchstepsasmay be necessaryproper or expedientto
giveeffectto thisresolution.”

Reappointment of Mr. Nikhil HarbanslalBhatia (DIN: 02063706),as the WholeiTime Director of the
Companyfor afurther periodof 5 (Five)years

Toconsiderand,if thoughtfit, to passthe following resolutionasSpeciaResolution:

“RESOLVETHATIn accordancewith the provisionsof Sectionsl96,197 and 203 read with Schedulev
and all other applicableprovisions,f any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013and the CompaniegAppointment
and Remunerationof ManagerialPersonnel)Rules,2014 (Includingany statutory modification(s)or re r
enactmentthereof, for the time beingin force) and subjectto suchconsentsand permissionsasmaybe

required,the approvalof the Membersof the Conpanybe and is herebyaccordedfor the proposedre r
appointment of Mr. Nikhil HarbanslalBhatia (DIN: 02063706) as the Whole time Director of the

Company for a further period of 5 (Five)yearscommencingfrom 05" January,2023to 04" January,
2028,0n suchterms and conditionsasset out in the ExplanatonStatementannexedhereto, with Liberty
to the Boardof Directorsto vary,amendor revisethe remunerationwithin the maximumceilingspecified
underthe Actandasmaybe Approvedby the Boardof Directors.

RESOLVHEBURTHERHATthe Boardof Directorsor a duly constituted Committeeor any Director of the
Companybe andis herebyauthorisedto take all suchstepsasmay be necessaryproper or expedientto
giveeffectto thisresolution.”

Remppointment of Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora (DIN: 07584412),as the Independent Director of the
Companyfor afurther periodof 5 (Five)years.

Toconsiderand, if thought fit, to passthe following resolutionasSpeciaResolution:

“RESOLVEIHATpursuantto the provisionsof Section149 and 152readwith ScheduldV and any other
applicable provisionsof the CompaniesAct, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Companies(Appointment and
Qualificationof Directors)Rules,2014 (includingany statutory modification(s)or re enadment thereof
for the time beingin force)andSEB(ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirementsRegulations2015,,
the approval of the Members of the Companybe and is hereby accorded for the proposedrer
appointmentof Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora (DIN: 07584412) IndependentDirector of the Company who
hassubmitteda declarationthat he meetsthe criteria for independence asprovidedin Section149(6)of
the CompaniesAct, 2013 for a further period of 5 (Five)yearscommencingirom 05" January2023to
04" January2028,and whoseoffice shallnot be liableto retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVERURTHERHATBoardof Direcbrs of the companybe andis herebyauthorizedto do all such
acts,deedsandthingsasmaybe requiredto giveeffectto the aboveresolution.”

Reappointment of Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang (DIN: 08044845),as the IndependentDirector of the
Companyfor afurther periodof 5 (Five)years.

Toconsiderand, if thoughtfit, to passthe following resolutionasSpeciaResolution:
“RESOLVELHATpursuantto the provisionsof Section149and 152 read with ScheduldV and any other

applicable provisionsof the CompaniesAct, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Companies(Appointment and
Qualificationof Directors)Rules,2014 (includingany statutory modification(s)or re enadment thereof
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for the time beingin force)andSEB(ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirementsRegulations2015,,
the approval of the Members of the Companybe and is hereby accorded for the proposedrer
appointmentof Mr. RachitNareshNarang(DIN: 08044845)|ndependentDirector of the Companywho
hassubmitteda declarationthat he meetsthe criteria for independenceasprovidedin Section149(6)of
the CompaniesAct, 2013 for a further period of 5 (Five)yearscommencingfrom 05" January2023to
04" January2028,and whoseoffice shallnot be liableto retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVEEURTHERHATBoardof Direcbors of the companybe andis herebyauthorizedto do all such
acts,deedsandthingsasmaybe requiredto giveeffectto the aboveresolution.”

7. Reappointment of Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain (DIN: 08044841),as the IndependentDirector of the
Companyfor afurther periodof 5 (Five)years.

Toconsiderand, if thoughtfit, to passthe following resolutionasSpeciaResolution:

“RESOLVEDHATpursuantto the provisionsof Section149and 152 readwith ScheduldV andanyother
applicable provisionsof the CompaniesAct, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Companies(Appointment and
Qualificationof Directors)Rules,2014 (includingany statutory modification(s)or re enadment thereof
for the time beingin force)andSEB(ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirementsRegulations2015,,
the approval of the Members of the Companybe and is hereby accorded for the proposedrer
appointmentof Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain(DIN:08044841) IndependentDirector of the Compay who
hassubmitteda declarationthat he meetsthe criteria for independenceasprovidedin Section149(6)of
the CompaniesAct, 2013 for a further period of 5 (Five)yearscommencingirom 05" January,2023to
04" January2028,andwhoseoffice shallnot be liableto retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVERURTHERHATBoardof Direcbrs of the companybe andis herebyauthorizedto do all such
acts,deedsandthingsasmaybe requiredto giveeffectto the aboveresolution.”

8. Approvalof RelatedParty Transaction(s):

“RESOLVEDHATpursuantto the provisionsof Regulation23(4) of the Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of
India (ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirements)Regulations2015, as amendedfrom time to time,
(“SEBILListingRegulations”)the applicableprovisionsof the CompaniesAct, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rules
madethere under, other applicablelaws/stautory provisionsjf any, (includingany statutory modification(s)
or amendmern(s) or re enactment(sikhereof, for the time beingin force),the Company’solicyon Related
Party Transactionsand subjectto suchapproval(s)consent(s)permission(s)amaybe necessanfrom time
to time and basisthe approvaland recommendationof the Audit Committeeand the Boad of Directorsof
the Companythe approvalof the Membersof the Canpanybe andis herebyaccordedto the Companyto
enter/continue to enter into Material Related Party Transaction(s)/ Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s)/
Agreement(s)(whether by way of an individual transaction or transactionstaken together or series of
transactionsor otherwise)with entities falling within the definition of ‘RelatedParty’ under Section2(76) of
the Actand Regulatior2(1)zb)of the SEBListingRegulationsin the courseof the businesson suchmaterial
terms and conditionsas detailed in the explanatorystatementto this Resolutionand as may be mutually
agreed between related parties and the Company,for each of the financial years (FY),such that the
maximumvalue of the RelatedParty Transactionsvith suchparties,in aggregatedoesnot exceedvalueas
specifiedunder each categoryfor eachfinancial year, provided that the said contract(s)/arrangement(s)/
transaction(s)shall be carried out in the ordinary course of businessof the Companyand in respect of
transactionswith related partiesunder Section2(76)of the Act,are at arm’slengthbasis.

RESOLVEBEURTHERHATthe Boardof Directorsof the Company(hereinafterreferredto as‘Board’which
term shall be deemedto include the Audit Committee of the Companyand any duly constituted/to be
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constituted Committee of Directorsthereof to exerciseits powers including powers conferred under this
resolution)be andis herebyauthorisedto do all suchacts,deedsmattersandthingsasit maydeemfit at its
absolutediscretionandto take all suchstepsasmay be requiredin this connectionincludingfinalizingand
executingnecessarydocuments,contract(9, scheme(s)agreement(sand suchother documentsas maybe
required, seekingall necessarapprovalsto give effect to this resolution,for and on behalf of the Company
and settling all suchissues questions,difficulties or doubts whatsoeverthat may ariseand to take all such
decisionsfrom powersherein conferredto, without beingrequiredto seekfurther consen or approvalof
the Membersandthat the Membersshallbe deemedto havegiventheir approvalthereto expressiyby the
authority of this resolution.

RESOLVEBURTHERHATall actionstaken by the Boardin connectionwith any matter referred to or
contemplatedin this resolution,be and are herebyapproved ratified and confirmedin all respects.”

PlaceSurat Byorder of the Board
Date:02/08/2022 ForBhatiaCommunications% Retail (India) Limited
Sd/r

SachinAgarwal
CompanySecretary& ComplianceOfficer

Notes:
1. A statementpursuantto Section102 (1) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (“the Act”), relatingto the Special
Businesgo be trasactedat the AnnualGeneralMeeting (“Meeting”) isannexedhereto.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting (the “meeting”) is entitled to
appoirt a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself/ herselfand the proxy need not be a
memberof the company.Theinstrumentappointingthe proxy,duly completed,mustbe depositedat the
company’sregisteredoffice not lessthan 48 hours before the commencementof the meeting (on or
before the scheduledtime of the commencemenbf 14" AnnualGeneralMeeting. A personcanactasa
proxy on behalf of membersnot exceedindifty and holdingin the aggregatenot more than ten percent
of the total sharecapitalof the companycarryingvoting rights. Amemberholdingmore than ten percent
of the total sharecapitalof the companycarryingvoting rights may appoint a singlepersonasproxy and
suchpersonshallnot act asa proxy for any other personor shareholder.A proxy form for the AGMis
enclosed.

3. Corporate members pursuant to Section 113 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 intending to send their
authorizad representativeto attend the meetingare requestedto sendto the Companya certified copy
of Boardresoltion authorizingtheir representativeto attend andvote on their behalfat the Meeting.

4. Kartain caseof HUF partners/proprietorsin caseof firm attendingand voting shouldaffix the respective
stampof HUFor firm on the attendancesheet,Ballotpaperor Proxyform.

5. Members/Proxyholders/ Authorized representativesare requestedto bring their copy of AnnualReport
and Attendanceslip sentherewith, dulyfilled in for attendingthe AnnualGeneralMeeting.

Membersare requestedto quote Folio/DPIDhumberin all their correspondences.

Relevantdocumentsreferred to in the above Notice are open for inspectionat the RegisteredOffice of
the Companyduringthe businesshourson anyworkingday (exceptSundayand holidays)between10.00
a.m.and4.00p.m. up to the date of the AnnualGeneralMeeting.

8. Noticeof the AGMalong with the AnnualReport202122 is beingsentthroughelectronicmodeto those
Memberswhoseemailaddressesre registeredwith the Company/RTA/Depositoriesunlessa member
hasrequestedfor a physicalcopy of documents.Membersmay note that the Notice and AnnualReort
202122 will also be availableon the Company’swebsite at www.bhatiamobile.in on website of BSE
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10.

Limited at www.bseindia.comand on the website of NSDLhttps://www.evoting.nsdl.com For members
who have not registeredtheir email addressesphysicalcopiesof the documentsare being sent by the
permitted mode.

Memberswho havenot yet registeredtheir emailaddressesre requestedto registerthe samewith their
DPsin casethe sharesare held by them in electronicform and with the Company/RA in casethe shares
are held by them in physicaform.

Registerof Members and ShareTransferBooksof the Companyshall remain closedfrom 30" day of
August,2022to 05" day of September2022 (both dayinclusive)for determiningthe namesof Members
eligiblefor dividendon EquitySharesf any,declaredat the meetingandfor AnnualGeneralMeeting.

11. Members seekingany information/document as referred in the notice are requestedto write to the

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17

Companyon or before 05" September2022through emailat csbhatia@bhatiamobile.conThesamewill
be addressedy the Companysuitably.

Equitysharesof the Companyare undercompulsorydemattrading by all Investors.

Memberswho have not registeredtheir e mail addressesso far, are requestedto registertheir e mail
addressfor receivingall communicationfrom the companyelectronicallyand quicker responseto their
queriesto RTAor Company.

Additional information, pursuant to Reguation 36 of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
RequirementsRegulations2015,in respectof the directorsseekingappointment/re rappointmentat the
AGM,is furnishedasannexureto the Notice. Thedirectorshavefurnishedconsent/ declarationfor their
appoirtment/ re eppointmentasrequiredunderthe Companie#\ct,2013andthe Rulesthere under.

Thevoting rights of Shareholdershallbe in proportion of their sharesheld to the paid up equity share
capitalof the Companyason Monday,29" August,2022.

Theroute map of the venueof the AnnualGeneralMeeting is appendedto this Report. The prominent
land marknearthe venueis RajkotNagrikSahkarBankLimited,RingRoad Surat

. Information and other instructionsrelating to e woting are asunder:

I. Pursuantto provisionsof Section 108 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Managementand Administration) Rules,2014, as amendedby the CompaniegManagementand
Administration)AmendmentRules2015and Regulatiord4 of SEB(ListingObligationsand Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations2015,the Companyis pleasedto provide membersfacility to exercise
their right to vote at the 14" Annual GeneralMeeting (AGM) by electronic meansthrough the
electronic voting servicefacility arrangedby NSDL . The facility availablefor voting through ballot
paper will also be made availableat the AGM and membersattending the AGM, who have not
alreadycasttheir votes by remote e woting shall be able to exercisethe right at the AGMthrough
ballot paper. Memberswho have casttheir votes by remote e woting prior to the AGMmay attend
the AGMbut shallnot be entitled to casttheir votesagain.

II. Themembersattendingthe Meetingwho havenot casttheir vote by remote e wotingshallbe ableto
vote at the Meetingthrough ‘polling paper’.

lll. Thememberswho havecasttheir vote by remote e voting may alsoattend the Meeting but shallnot
be entitled to casttheir vote again.

IV. ShriRanjitBinodKejriwal,PracticingCompanySecretaryhasbeen appointedto actasa scrutinizerto
for conductingthe remote e woting processas well as the voting through Poll Paperin a fair and
transparentmanner.

V. Thee wotingfacility will start from 02" day of September2022at 9:00a.m.andwill end on 04" day
of September20220on 5:00p.m.

VI. TheScrutinizerafter scrutinizingthe votescastat the meetingandthroughremote e roting, will, not
later than 2 working daysof conclusionof the Meeting, makea consolidatedscrutinizer'sreport and
submit the sameto the Chairman.The results declared along with the consolidatedscrutinizets
report shall be placedon the website of the Company.The results shall be communicatedto the
StockExchanges.

VII. Subjectto receiptof requisitenumberof votes,the Resolutionshallbe deemedto be passedon the
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VIIIL.

date of the Meeting,i.e. Monday,05" September2022.
Instructionsto Membersfor e voting are asunder:

The voting period starts on Friday02'® September,2022 on open of working hours (i.e 9:00 hours)
andendson the closeof working hours(i.e. 17:00hours), Sunday 04" September2022. Theremote
e woting module shallbe disabledby NSDLfor voting thereafter. TheMembers,whosenamesappear
in the Registerof Members/ BeneficialOwnersason the record date (cut off date)i.e. 29" August,
2022may casttheir vote electronically.Thevoting right of shareholdershallbe in proportion to their
sharein the paid up equity sharecapital of the Companyas on the cut off date, being 29" August,
2022.

Any personholding sharesin physicalform and non individual shareholderswho acquires
sharesof the Companyand becomesmember of the Companyafter the notice is send
through e mail and holding sharesas of the cut off date i.e. 29th August,2022, may obtain
the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.iror Issuer/RTA.
However,if you are alreadyregisteredwith NSDLfor remote e woting, then you can use
your existinguser ID and passwordfor castingyour vote. If you forgot your password,you
canreset your passwordby using“Forgot User Details/Passwordbr “PhysicalUser Reset
Password’option availableon www.evoting.nsdl.comor callon toll free no. 18001020990
and 1800224 430. In caseof Individual Shareholdersholding securitiesin demat mode
who acquiressharesof the Companyand becomesa Member of the Companyafter sending
of the Notice and holding sharesas of the cut pff date i.e. 29th August,2022 may follow
stepsmentionedin the Noticeof the AGMunder“Accesgo NSDle Motingsystem”.

Stepl: Accesso NSDLe Woting system

A) Loginmethod for e Woting andjoining virtual meetingfor Individual shareholdersholding securities

in dematmode

In terms of SEBtirculardated December9, 2020 on e Woting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholdersholding securitiesin demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositoriesand Depositoy Participants. Shareholdersare advised to
updatetheir mobile number andemailld in their demataccountsin orderto acces® Wotingfacility.

Loginmethodfor Individualshareholderdioldingsecuritiesin dematmodeis givenbelow:

Typeof shareholders LoginMethod

Individual Shareholdery 1. ExistingDeASusercanvisitthe e Servicesvebsiteof NSDLViz.
holdingsecuritiesin demat https://eservices.nsdl.coreither on a PersonalComputeror on a

iconunder“Login” whichis availableunder‘IDeAS’section, this will
promptyouto enter your existingUserlD and PasswordAfter
successfuauthentication,youwill be ableto seee Wotingservices
underValueaddedservicesClickon “Accessto e Koting” undere r
Votingservicesandyou will be ableto seee Wotingpage. Clickon
companynameor e Koting serviceprovideri.e. NSDLand you will
bere directedto e Motingwebsiteof NSDlfor castingyour vote

e Bervicespption to registeris availableat
https://eservies.nsdl.com Select'RegisterOnlinefor IDeAS
Portal” or clickat
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

2. Visitthe e Motingwebsiteof NSDLOpenweb browserby typingthe
following URL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/either on a Personal

launchedclickon the icon“Login”whichis availableunder

modewith NSDL. mobile.Onthe e Bervicehome pageclickon the “BeneficialOwner”

duringthe remote e Moting period If you are not registeredfor IDeAS

Computeror on a mobile.Oncethe homepageof e Wotingsystemis
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‘Shareholder/Membersection.A new screenwill open.Youwill have
to enteryour UserlD (i.e. your sixteendigit demataccountnumber
hold with NSDL)Password/OTRnda VerificationCodeasshownon
the screen After successfuauthentication,youwill be redirectedto
NSDIDepositorysite whereinyou canseee Wotingpage.Clickon
companynameor e Koting serviceprovideri.e. NSDland you will

be redirectedto e Motingwebsiteof NSDIfor castingyourvote
duringthe remote e Motingperiod.

Shareholders/MembersanalsodownloadNSDIMobile App“NSDL
Speedé facility by scanninghe QRcode mentionedbelow for
seamleswoting experience.

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
dematmodewith CDSL

Existinguserswho haveopted for Easi Easiestthey canlogin
throughtheir userid and password Optionwill be madeavailableto
reache Motingpagewithout anyfurther authentication.TheURLfor
usersto loginto Easi Easiesare
https//web.cdslindiacom/myeasi/home/logiror
www.cdslindia.comand clickon New SystemMyeasi.

After successfulogin of Easi/Easiedhe userwill be alsoableto see
the EVotingMenu. TheMenu will havelinksof e Moting service
provideri.e. NSDLClickon NSDIto castyour vote.

If the useris not registeredfor Easi/Easiestoption to register is
available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/nyeasiRegistration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively,the usercandirectlyacces® Wotingpageby providing
dematAccountNumberand PANNo.from alinkin
www.cdslindia.conhome page.Thesystemwill authenticatethe
userby sendingOTPon registeredMobile & Emailasrecordedin the
dematAccount.After successfuhuthentication,userwill be provided
linksfor the respectiveESR.e. NSDIlwherethe e Motingisin
progress.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their depository
participants

Youcanalsologinusingthe logincredentialsof your demataccount
throughyour DepositoryParticipantregisteredwith NSDL/CDShbr e r
Votingfacility. uponloggingin, youwill be ableto seee Wotingoption.
Clickon e Motingoption, you will be redirectedto NSDL/CDSDepository
site after successfuhuthentication,whereinyou canseee Wotingfeature.
Clickon companynameor e Motingserviceprovideri.e. NSDland you will
be redirectedto e Motingwebsiteof NSDIfor castingyour vote duringthe
remote e Motingperiod

Important note: Memberswho are unableto retrieve UserID/ Passwordare advisedto use Forget
UserlD and ForgetPasswordption availableat abovementionedvebsite.
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Helpdeskfor Individual Shareholdersholding securitiesin demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depositoryi.e. NSDland CDSL.

Logintype Helpdeskdetails

IndividualShareholder$olding
securitiesin dematmodewith NSDL Membersfacinganytechnicalissuein logincancontactNSDL

helpdeskby sendinga requestat evoting@nsdl.co.ior call
at toll free no.: 18001020990 and 18002244 30

Individual  Shareholders holding| Membersfacinganytechnicalissuein logincancontactCDSL
securitiesin dematmodewith CDSL helpdeskby sendinga requestat
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.coon contactat 022r
230587380r 0222305854243

B) LoginMethod for e Wotingfor shareholdersother than Individual shareholdersholding
securitiesin demat mode and shareholdersholding securitiesin physicalmode.
Howto Login to NSDLe Wotingwebsite?

1. Visitthe e Motingwebsiteof NSDLOpenweb browserby typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/either on a PersonalComputeror on a mobile.

2.  Oncethe homepageof e Wotingsystemis launched clickon the icon“Login” whichis available
under‘Shareholder/Membersection.

3. Anewscreenwill open.Youwill haveto enteryour UserID,your Password/OTBnda
VerificationCodeasshownon the screen.

Alternatively,if youareregisteredfor NSDleservices.e. IDEASyoucanlog in at

https:// eservices.nsdl.conwith yourexistingIDEASogin. Onceyoulog in to NSDleservices
after usingyourlog in credentialsclickon e &otingand you canproceedio Step2 i.e. Castyour
vote electronically.

4. YourUserlDdetailsare givenbelow:

Manner of holding sharesi.e. Demat YourUserlDis:

(NSDlor CDSLYr Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in | 8 CharacteDPIDfollowed by 8 DigitClient
demataccountwith NSDL. ID

Forexampleif your DPIDis IN300*** and
ClientIDis12****** thenyouruserIDis
I N300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 DigitBeneficiaryiD
demataccountwith CDSL.

Forexampleif your BeneficianDis
1 2%xkkkkkxridikx  then youruseriDis

12**************
c) ForMembersholdingsharesin EVENNumberfollowed by FolioNumber
PhysicaForm. registeredwith the company

Forexampleif folio numberis 001*** and
EVENSs 101456then userIDis
101456001***

5. Passwordletailsfor shareholdersther than Individualshareholdersare givenbelow:
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a) If youare alreadyregisteredfor e Moting,then you canuseryour existingpasswordto login
andcastyour vote.

b) If youare usingNSDLe Woting systemfor the first time, you will needto retrieve the ‘initial
password’'which was communicatedto you. Onceyou retrieve your ‘initial password’,you
needto enter the ‘initial password’andthe systemwill force youto changeyour password.

c) Howto retrieve your ‘initial password'?

() If youremail ID is registeredin your demat accountor with the compary, your ‘initial
password'is communicatedto you on your email ID. Tracethe email sentto you from
NSDlLfrom your mailbox.Openthe emailand openthe attachmenti.e. a .pdf file. Open
the .pdf file. Thepasswordo openthe .pdffile isyour 8 digit clientID for NSDlaccount,
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSlaccaint or folio number for sharesheld in physical
form. The.pdffile containsyour ‘UserID’ andyour ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered,pleasefollow stepsmentioned below in processfor
those sharehdderswhoseemail ids are not registered.

6. If youareunableto retrieve or havenot receivedthe “Initial password”or haveforgotten your
password:

a) Clickon “ForgotUserDetails/Passwor@'(If you are holdingsharesin your demataccount
with NSDlor CDSLgption availableon www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) PhysicalUser Reset Passwor®' (If you are holding sharesin physical mode) option
availableon www.evoting.nsdl.com

c) If youarestill unableto getthe passwordby aforesaidtwo options,you cansenda request
at evoting@nsdl.co.irmentioning your demat accountnumber/folio number, your PAN,
your nameandyour registeredaddressetc.

d) Memberscanalsousethe OTP(OneTime Passwordpasedlogin for castingthe voteson
the e Motingsystemof NSDL.

7. After entering your password,tick on Agreeto “Terms and Conditions”by selectingon the
checkbox.

8. Now,youwill haveto clickon “Login” button.

9. Afteryouclickon the “Login”button, Homepageof e Kotingwill open.

Step2: Castyour vote electronicallyand join GeneralMeeting on NSDle Woting system.

Howto castyour vote electronicallyand join GeneralMeeting on NSDle Woting system?

1.

2.

o

After successfulogin at Step1, you will be able to seeall the companies’'EVEN"in which you are
holdingsharesandwhosevoting cycleand GeneralMeetingisin activestatus.

Select*EVEN"of companyfor which you wish to castyour vote during the remote e Moting period
and castingyour vote during the GeneralMeeting. For joining virtual meeting,you needto clickon
“VC/OAVM’link placedunder“Join GeneralMeeting”.

Nowyou arereadyfor e Motingasthe Votingpageopens.

Castyour vote by selectingappropriate options i.e. assentor dissent,verify/modify the number of
sharesfor whichyouwishto castyour vote andclickon “Submit” and also“Confirm” when prompted.
Uponconfirmation,the messagéeVote castsuccessfullyWill be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clickingon the print option on the
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confirmationpage.
7. Onceyou confirmyour vote on the resolution,youwill not be allowedto modify your vote.

GeneralGuidelinesfor shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders(i.e. other than individuals,HUF,NRIetc.) are required to send scanned
copy (PDF/JPGormat)of the relevantBoardResolution/Authority letter etc. with attested specimen
signatureof the duly authorizedsignatory(iesyvho are authorizedto vote, to the Scrutinizetby e malil
to rbksurat@gmail.conwith a copy markedto evoting@nsdl.co.inInstitutional shareholders(i.e.
other than individuals,HUF,NRletc.) can also upload their BoardResolution/ Powerof Attorney/
Authority Letter etc. by clickingon "Upload Board Resolution/ Authority Letter" displayedunder'e r
Voting" tab in their login.

2. ltisstronglyrecommendednot to shareyour passwordwith any other personand take utmost care
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e woting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessfudttempts to keyin the correct password.In suchan event, you will needto go through
the “Forgot User Details/Password? or “PhysicalUser Reset Password? option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.conto resetthe password.

3. Incaseof anyqueries,you mayrefer the FrequentlyAskedQuestiong FAQsJor Shareholderander
voting user manualfor Shareholdersavailableat the download sectionof www.evoting.nsdl.conor
call on toll free no.: 18001020990 and 180022 44 30 or senda requestto Ms. SaritaMote at
evoting@nsdl.co.in

Processfor those shareholderswhose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuringuserid and passwordand registration of e mail ids for e Koting for the resolutionsset out
in this notice:

1. Incasesharesare heldin physicaimode pleaseprovide FolioNo.,Nameof shareholder scannedcopy
of the sharecertificate (front and back),PAN(selfattested scannedcopy of PANcard), AADHARself
attestedscannedcopyof AadharCard)by emailto (Companyemailid).

2. In casesharesare held in demat mode, pleaseprovide DPIDCLID(16 digit DPID+ CLIDor 16 digit
beneficiarylD), Name,client master or copy of ConsolidatedAccountstatement, PAN(self attested
scannedcopy of PANcard), AADHARselfattested scannedcopy of AadharCard)to (Companyemail
id). If you are an Individualshareholdersoldingsecuritiesin dematmode, you are requestedto refer
to the loginmethod explainedat step 1 (A) i.e. Loginmethod for e Mating and joining virtual meeting
for Individual shareholdersholding securitiesin demat mode.

3. Alternativelyshareholder/membersnay senda requestto evoting@nsdl.co.iffor procuringuserid
and passwordfor e voting by providingabovementioneddocuments.

4. Interms of SEBtirculardated December9, 2020 on e Woting facility provided by ListedCompanies,
Individual shareholdersholding securitiesin demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositoriesand Depository Participants.Shareholdersare required to
updatetheir mobile numberand email ID correctlyin their demataccour in order to access WMoting
facility.

Pleasenote the following:

A membermay participatein the AGMevenafter exercisinghisright to vote through remote e woting but
shallnot be allowedto vote againat the AGM.

A person,whose name is recorded in the register of membersor in the register of beneficial owners
maintainedby the depositoriesason the cut off date only shallbe entitled to availthe facility of remoteer
voting aswell asvoting at the AGMthrough polling paper.A personwho is not a Memberason the cut off

date shouldtreat this Noticeof AGMfor information purposeonly.

Otherinformation:
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o Yourloginid and passwordcan be usedby you exclusivelffor e voting on the resolutionsplacedby the
companiesn whichyou are the shareholder.

o It is stronglyrecommendednot to shareyour passwordwith any other personand take utmost care to
keepit confidential.

Place:Surat

Byorder of the Board
Date:02.08.2022

ForBhatiaCommunicationst. Retail (India) Limited

Sd/r
SachinAgrawal
CompanySecretary& ComplianceOfficer

ROUTBMAP TOTHEVENUBFTHEL4th ANNUALGENERAMEETIN®FTHECOMPANY
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ANNEXUREONOTICE:

DETAIL®FDIRECTOREEKINGEAPPOINTMENANDAPPOINTMENAT THEENSUINGANNUALGENERAL

MEETING

(Pursuantto Regulation36 of SEB(ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirements)Regulations2015)and
SecretarialStandard2 issuedby the Institute of CompanySecretarieof India

Nameof Director

Mrs. Kamleshkumari

Mr. Sanjeev

HarbanslaBhatia

DINNo.

Date of Birth

Quialification

Expertisein specificfunctional areas

Termsand Conditionsof
Appointment/Reappointment

Remunerationlastdrawn
Remunerationproposed
Dateof FirstAppointment
Relationshipwith Directors/Key
managerialPersonnel

Listof Companiesn which
directorshipis held ason 315t March,
2022

Chairman/ Member of the
Committeeof other Company

No. of Meetingsof the Board
Attended duringthe year

02066517
25/10/1960
Basid_iterate
Experiencef more
than 32 yearsin Retall
Industries.

Asperthe resolution
at ltem No. 2 of the
Noticeconveninghis
meetingreadwith
explanatory
StatementMrs.
Kamleshkumari
HarbanslaBhatiais
proposedto appoint
asa Directorof the
Company.

NIL

NIL

30/03/2020

Mrs. Kamleshkumari
Harbanslal Bhatia is
the mother of Mr.
Nikhil Harbanslal
Bhatia and Mr.
Sanjeev Harbanslal
Bhatiaare concerned
or interested in this
resolution.
Asattachedbelow

NIL

13

HarbanslaBhatia

02063671
31/10/1978

B.Com

Experienceof more
than 22 yearsin the
RetailandWholesale
businesof
consumableelectronic
goodsincluding
mobile, mobile
accessoriestc.

Asper the resolutions
at Item No. 3 of the
Noticeconveninghis
meeting,Sanjeev
HarbanslaBhatiais
proposedto

re appointedas
ManagingDirectorfor
further period of five
years.

Rs.2,00,000p.m
Rs.2,00,000p.m
25/03/2008

Mr. SanjeevHarbansle
Bhatiais the sonof Mrs.
Kamleshkumari
Harbanslal Bhatia and
brother of Mr. Nikhil
Harbanslal Bhatia are
concernedor interested
in this resolution.

Asattachedbelow

NIL

13

Mr. Nikhil
HarbanslaBhatia

02063706
16/02/1982

H.S.C

More than 16 years
of experience

in the Mobile Retail
Marketing.

Asperthe
resolutionsat Item
No.4 of the Notice
conveninghis
meeting,Sanjeev
HarbanslaBhatiais
proposedto

re appointedas
WholeiTime
Directorfor further
periodof five years.
Rs.2,00,000p.m
Rs.2,00,000p.m
01/04/2008

Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal
Bhatia is the son of
Mrs. Kamleshkumari
Harbanslal Bhatia
and brother of Mr.
Sanjeev Harbanslal
Bhatiaare concerned
or interested in this
resolution.
Asattachedbelow

NIL
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Nameof Director

Mrs. RashmiKapil

Arora
DINNo. 07584412
Date of Birth 13/07/1978
Qualification Graduate
Expertisein specificfunctional areas = Experiencesf more
than 15yearsin
Desiginingand
ProductDisplay.
Termsand Conditionsof Asperthe resolution

at Item No.5 of the
Noticeconveningthis
meetingreadwith
explanatory
Statement,Mrs.
RashmKapilArorais
proposedto re r

Appointment/Reappointment

Mr. RachitNaresh
Narang

08044845
30/12/1993

S.S.C

Experienceof more
than 10yearsin the
businesof textilesand
dynamicmanagement
skills.

Asper the resolutions
at Item No. 6 of the
Noticeconveningthis

meeting,RachitNaresh

Narangis proposedto
re appointedas
IndepenentDirector
for further period of

Mr. Arpit
ArunkumarJain
08044841
14/07/1983
Graduation

More than 15years
of experience

in the event
planningand
Marketingskills.
Asperthe
resolutionsat Item
No. 7 of the Notice
conveninghis
meeting,Arpit
ArunkumarJainis
proposedto re r
appointedas

appointedasa five years. Independent
IndependentDirector Directorfor further
of the Company. periodof five years.
Remunerationlastdrawn NIL NIL NIL
Remunerationproposed NIL NIL NIL
Date of FirstAppointment 05/01/2018 05/01/2018 05/01/2018
Relationshipwith Directors/Key Noneof the Directors None of the Directors None of the
managerialPersonnel arerelated. arerelated. Directorsarerelated.
Listof Companiesn which Asattachedbelow Asattachedbelow Asattachedbelow
directorshipis held ason 315t March,
2022
Chairman/ Member of the NIL NIL NIL
Committeeof other Company
No. of Meetingsof the Board 13 13 13
Attended duringthe year

1. Listof Companiesn which Mrs. KamleshkumarHarbanslaBhatiaholdsdirectorshipason 31t
March,2022:
Nature of Interest

Nameof the Company Shareholding Date on which interest

arose/changed
30/03/2020
18/09/2020

1. | BhatiaCommunication#: Retail(India) | Director 260

Limited
2. Listof Companiesn which Mr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatiaholdsdirectorshipason 315t March, 2022:

Nature of Interest

Nameof the Company

Shareholding Dateon which interest

arose/changed
1. | BhatiaCommunication® Retail(India) = ManagingDirector = 4,26,00,00C 25/03/2008
Limited 05/01/2018
2.  SNMWDistributorsPrivateLimited Director 19,00,900 03/07/2013
3. | EParisarTechPrivateLimited Director 48,000 @ 19/01/2016

3. Listof Companiesn which Mr. Nikhil HarbanslaBhatiaholds directorshipason 315 March, 2022:

Nameof the Company Nature of Interest ~ Shareholding Date on which interest

arose/changed
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1. | BhatiaCommunication# Retail(India) = WholeTimeDirector 4,83,28,54C 01/04/2008
Limited 05/01/2018

2.  SNMWDistributorsPrivateLimited Director 76,600 @ 03/07/2013

4. Listof Companiesn which Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora holds directorshipason 315t March, 2022:

Nameof the Company Nature of Interest ~ Shareholding Date on which interest
. arose/changed
1. | BhatiaCommunicationg Retail Director 320000 05/01/2018
(India)Limited
2.  AsenextindiaPrivateLimited Director 0 02/09/2016

5. Listof Companiesn which Mr. RachitNareshNarangholdsdirectorshipason 315 March, 2022:

Nameof the Company Nature of Interest ~ Shareholding Date on which interest
. arose/changed
1. BhatiaCommunication$: Retail(India) = Director 0 05/01/2018
Limited

Nature of Interest ~ Shareholding Date on which interest
. arose/changed
1. | BhatiaCommunication#: Retail(India) | Director 0 05/01/2018
Limited

TheBoardof Directorsrecommendghe proposedresolutionsfor acceptancéy member.

PlaceSurat Byorder of the Board
Date:02.08.2022 ForBhatiaCommunicationst Retail(India) Limited
Sd/r
SachinAgrawal

CompanySecretary& ComplianceOfficer
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EXPLANATORSTATEMENPURSUANTO SECTIONLO2 OF THE COMPANIE®&\CT, 2013 AND OTHER
APPLICABIHROVISIONS

Item No. 3

The membersof the Companyhad appointedMr. SanjeeHarbanslaBhatiaasthe ManagingDirector of the
Companyfor a period of five years with effect from 05" January,2023 and the present term of his
appointmentwould lapseon 04th January2023.

TheBoardhas,basedon the recommendatiorof the Nominationand RemunerationrCommitteeand subjectto
the approvalof the Members,approvedthe re appointmentof Mr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatiaasthe Managing
Director,postcompletionof hispresentterm, for afurther period of five years.

Mr. Sanjee\HarbanslaBhatiais not disqualifiedfrom beingre eppointedasa Directorin terms of Section164
of the Act and has given his consentto act as ManagingDirector of the Company.Mr. SanjeevHarbanslal
Bhatiasatisfiesall the conditionsassetout in Section196(3)of the Actand Partt of ScheduleV to the Act, for
beingeligiblefor hisappointment.

Thebroadterms and conditionsof the proposedre eppointmentof and remunerationpayableto Mr. Sanjeev
HarbanslaBhatiaare annexedherewith.

Copyof Appointment Letter setting out terms and conditionsof his appointmentis availablefor inspectionby
Membersasper detailsmentionedin the Notes.

Mr. SanjeevHarbanslalBhatia, Mr. Nikhil HarbanslalBhatia and Mrs. KamleshkumariHarbanslalBhatia,
Directors of the companyand their relatives are concernedor interested, financial or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at Item No. 3. None of the other directors or Key ManagerialPersonnel(KMP)of the
Companyor their relativesare concernedor interested,financialor otherwise,in the resolutionsetout in ltem
No.3.

Item No.4

Themembersof the Companyhad appointed Mr. Nikhil HarbanslaBhaia asthe Wholetime Director of the
Companyfor a period of five years with effect from 05" January,2023 and the present term of his
appointmentwould lapseon 04th January2023.

TheBoardhas,basedon the recommendatiorof the Nominationand RemunerationrCommitteeand subjectto
the approvalof the Members,approvedthe re appointmentof Mr. NikhilHarbanslaBhatiaasthe Wholetime
Director,postcompletionof hispresentterm, for afurther period of five years.

Mr. Nikhil HarbanslaBhatiais not disqualifiedfrom beingre eppointedasa Directorin terms of Section164 of
the Actand hasgivenhis consentto act asWholetime Directorof the CompanyMr. Nikhil Harbanal Bhatia
satisfiesall the conditionsasset out in Section196(3)of the Actand Partt of ScheduleV to the Act, for being
eligiblefor hisappointment.

Thebroad terms and conditionsof the proposedre appointmentof and remunerationpayableto Mr. Nikhil
HarbanslaBhatiaare annexedherewith.
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Copyof AppointmentLetter setting out terms and conditionsof his appointmentis availablefor inspectionby
Membersasper detailsmentionedin the Notes.

Mr. SanjeevHarbanslalBhatia, Mr. Nikhil HarbanslalBhatia and Mrs. KamleshkumariHarbanslalBhatia,
Directors of the companyand their relatives are concernedor interested, financial or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at Item No. 4. None of the other directors or Key ManagerialPersonnel(KMP)of the
Companyor their relativesare concernedor interested,financialor otherwise,in the resolutionsetout in Item
No.4.

Item No.5

Asper Section149(10)of the Companiedct, 2013 (Companied\ct, 2013),an IndependentDirectorshallhold
office for a term of upto five consecutiveyearson the Board of a Company,but shall be eligible for rer
appointmenton passinga specialresolutionby the Companyfor further term of upto five consecutiveyearson
the Boardof a Company.

In line with the aforesaidprovisionsof the Companie#\ct,2013andin view of long, rich experiencegontinued
valuable guidanceto the managementand strong Board performance of Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora, it is

proposedto re eppointher for the secondterm asan independentdirector on the Boardof the companyfor a

period of five yearsw.e.f. 05" January2023to 04" January2028and In the opinion of the Board,Mrs. Rashmi
KapilArorafulfills the conditionsspecifiedin the Act.

The Boardconsidersthat their continuedassociationwould be of immensebenefit to the Companyandit is
desirableto continueto availservicesof Mrs. RashmKapilAroraasan IndependentDirector. Accordinglythe
Boardrecommendgassingf the Resolutiorat Item No.5 of the Noticeasa SpeciaResolution.

ExceptMrs. RashmiKapilArora, none of the Directorsor KeyManagerialPersonne(KMP)of the Companyor
their relativesare concernedor interested,financialor otherwise,in the resolutionsetout at Item No.5.

Item No.6

Asper Section149(10)of the Companiedct, 2013 (Companiedct, 2013),an IndependentDirectorshallhold
office for a term of upto five consecutiveyearson the Board of a Company,but shall be eligible for rer
appointmenton passinga specialresolutionby the Companyfor further term of upto five consecutiveyearson
the Boardof a Company.

In line with the aforesaidprovisionsof the Companie#\ct,2013andin view of long, rich experiencegcontinued
valuable guidanceto the managementand strong Board performanceof Mr. RachitNareshNarang,it is
proposedto re appointhim for the secondterm asan independentdirector on the Boardof the companyfor a
period of five yearsw.e.f. 05" January2023to 04" January2028and In the opinion of the Board,Mr. Rachit
NareshNarangfulfills the conditionsspecifiedin the Act.

The Boardconsidersthat their continuedassociationwould be of immensebenefit to the Companyandit is
desirableto continueto avail servicesof Mr. RachitNareshNarangas an IndependentDirector. Accordingly
the Boardrecommendgassingf the Resolutiorat Item No. 6 of the Noticeasa SpeciaResolution.

ExceptMr. RachitNareshNarang,noneof the Directorsor KeyManagerialPersonne(KMP)of the Companyor
their relativesare concernedor interested,financialor otherwise,in the resolutionsetout at Item No. 6.
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Item No.7

Asper Section149(10)of the Companiedct, 2013 (Companiedct, 2013),an IndependentDirectorshallhold
office for a term of upto five consecutiveyearson the Board of a Company,but shall be eligible for rer
appointmenton passinga specialresolutionby the Companyfor further term of upto five consecutiveyearson
the Boardof a Company.

Inline with the aforesaidprovisionsof the Companie#\ct,2013andin view of long, rich experiencegontinued
valuable guidanceto the managementand strong Board performance of Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain, it is
proposedto re appointhim for the secondterm asan independentdirector on the Boardof the companyfor a
period of five yearsw.e.f. 05" January2023to 04" January2028and In the opinion of the Board,Mr. Arpit
ArunkumarJainfulfills the conditionsspecifiedin the Act.

The Boardconsidersthat their continuedassociationwould be of immensebenefit to the Companyand it is
desirableto continueto avail servicesof Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJainas an IndependentDirector. Accordingly,
the Boardrecommendspassingf the Resolutiomat Item No. 7 of the Noticeasa SpeciaResolution.

ExceptMr. Arpit ArunkumarJain,none of the Directorsor KeyManagerialPersonne(KMP)of the Companyor
their relativesare concernedor interested,financialor otherwise,in the resolutionsetout at Item No. 7.

Item No. 8

The Securitiesand Exchangéoardof India (“SEBI")vide its notification dated November9, 2021, hasnotified
SEB(ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirements)SixthAmendment)Regulations2021 (“Amendments”)
introducingamendmentsto the provisionspertainingto the RelatedParty Transactionsinder the SEB(Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations,2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). The aforesaid
amendmentsinter alia included replacingof current threshold i.e. 10% (ten percent) of the listed entity’s
consolidatedturnover, for determination of material RelatedParty Transactiongequiring prior Shareholders’
approvalwith the thresholdof lower of 1,000crore (RupeesOnethousandcrore) or 10%(ten percent)of the
annualconsolidatedurnover of the listed entity asper the lastauditedfinancialstatementsof the listed entity.
Bhatia Communication and Retail (Indig Limited (“the Company”), being a recognised dealer in
telecommunicationindustry, participatesin the dealingand contractingwith different entities in Bhatiagroup
andpartnersin respectiveentities’ growth andtransformationjourneys.

In view of the changesin the threshold for determining the related party transactionsthat require prior
shareholderapprovaland consideringthe fact that the list of related partieswill changedynamicallywith no
action on the part of the Companyand to facilitate seamlesscontractingand rendering/availingof product
betweenthe Companyand “related parties”, the Companyseeksthe approvalof the shareholdes to approve
enteringinto contracts/arrangementsvithin the thresholdsand conditionsmentionedin the resolution.All the
contracts/arrangement&nd the transactionswith “related parties” are reviewed and approvedby the Audit
Committee.

Thedetailsof transactionghat require approvalare givenbelow:

Sr. | Description RelatedParty 1 RelatedParty?2 | RelatedParty3 RelatedParty 4

No.

1. Nameof the related | HarbanslaBhatia(HUF) HemaBhatia Kamleshkumari | NikhilHarbanslaBhatia
party HarbanslaBhatia
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Natureof Directoris Karta Relativeof Director Director
relationship Director
[includingnature of
its interest (financial
or otherwise)]
TypeandParticulars| Paymentof | Acquiringof | Paymentof Rent | Paymentof Rent | Paymentof Acquiringof
of the proposed Rent Unsecured Rent Unsecured
transaction Loanand Loanand
Paymentof Paymentof
Interest Interest
thereof thereof
Nature,Duration/ Lease 1.Loanwill | Lease LeaseAgreement | Lease 1. Loanwill be
tenure, material Agreement | beacquired | Agreements isenteredfor four | Agreemetis | acquiredfor
terms, monetary isentered for not enteredfor two | propertiesfor a enteredfor not morethan
valueand for periodof | morethan propertiesfora | periodof 11 two 10 Cr.andwill
particularsof 11 month 10Cr.and periodof 11 month subjectto | propertiesfor | be repayable
contract/ subjectto will be month subject DeemedAuto aperiodof11 | ondemand
arrangement Deemed repayale to DeemedAuto | Renewalill month
Auto ondemand | Renewatill terminatedand | subjectto 2. Intgrestwill
Renewalill terminatedand | followingrentis | DeemedAuto pe paidat
terminated | 2-INt€rest | foliowingrentis | agreedwhichmay | Renewatill interestrate
andrentof | Willbepaid | 55reedwhich beincreased terminated upto 15%p.a.
Rs:30,000 | atinterest | navphe annually. andfollowing | till theloan
p.mis rate upto increased rentisagreed | SUPsist
agreed 15%p.a.till anntally. Propertyl:Rs. whichmaybe
whichmay the loan 20,000permonth | increased
beincreased| SUPsist Propertyl:Rs. ' annually.
17,500per Property2: Rs.
annually.
month 20000permonth | propertys:
Property2: Rs. Property3: Rs. 22‘53’]000 per
20,000per 20,000per month
month Property4: Rs. Property2:
40,000permonth | 560,000per
month
Tenureof the Lease Loanwill be | Lease LeaseAgreement | Lease Loanwill be
transaction Agreement | repayable | Agreements isenteredfor Agreementis | repayableon
isentered ondemand | enteredfor periodof 11 enteredfor demand
for period of periodof 11 monthssubjectto | periodof 11
11 months monthssubject | DeemedAuto months
subjectto to DeemedAuto | Renewalill subjectto
Deemed Renewatill terminatedby DeemedAuto
Auto terminated by parties. Renewatill
Renewatill parties. terminatedby
terminated parties.
by parties.
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6. Valueof the Rent Unsecured | Rentamounting | Rentamounting Rent Unsecured
proposed amounting | Loanupto to to amountingto | Loanupto an
transaction to Rs. anamount amountof Rs.

3,60,000 of Rs.10 Propertyl:Rs. Propertyl:Rs. Property1: 10 crores.
p.a.which crores. 2,10,000p.a. 2,40,000p.a. Rs.3,00,000
maybe Property2: Rs. Property2: Rs. ba
increased 2,40,000p.a. 2,40,000p.a. Property2:
mutually Rs.7,20,000
Property3: Rs. p.a.
2,40,000p.a.
Property4: Rs.
4,80,000p.a.

7. Percentageof Upto 0.1 4.5percent | UptoO0.1 UptoO.1percent | Upto0.1 4.5percentof
annualconsolidated| percentof of the percentof the of the turnoverof | percert ofthe | the turnover
turnover, for the the turnover | turnoverof | turnoverofthe | the companyper | turnoverof of the
immediately of the the compay per annum. the company | companyper
precedingfinancial | company company annum. perannum. annum.
year,that is perannum. | perannum.
representedby the
valueof the
proposed
transaction

8. Benefitsof the TheCompanywill benefitin form of easyavailabilityof fund andresourcesat a shorterperiod of time
proposed
transaction

9. Detailsof the NOTAPPLICABLE
valuationreport or
externalparty
report(if any)
enclosedwith the
Notice

10. | Nameof the NikhilHarbanslaBhatia,

Directoror Key SanjeeHarbanslaBhatiaand
Managerial KamleshkumaiarbanslaBhatia
Personnelwho is

relatedor

interested

11. | Additional NOTAPPLICABLE
disclosurego be
madein caseloans,
inter corporate
deposits,advances
or investments
madeor given
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Propertyl:Rs.
15,000per
month

Property2: Rs.
10,000per
month

Property3: Rs.
10,000per

12. | Anyother NIL
information that
maybe relevant
Sr. | Description RelatedParty 5 RelatedParty 6 RelatedParty 7 RelatedParty 8
No.
1. Nameof the related | SanjeeHarbanslaBhatia Sanjee\Bhatia TelecityEnterprises | Naresh
party (HUF) LLP Telecommunicati
on
2. Nature of Director DirectorisKarta | Directoris partner Entity of
relationship PromoterGroup
[includingnature of
its interest (financial
or otherwise)]
3. TypeandParticulars| Paymentof Acquiringof Paymentof Rent | Purchase | Sales Purchase| Sales
of the proposed Rent Unsecured_oan
transaction and Paymentof
Interestthereof
4, Nature,Duration/ Lease 1. Loanwill be LeaseAgreement | TheCompany TheCompay
tenure, material Agreements acquiredfor not isenteredfor undertakes undertakes
terms, monetary enteredfor morethan10Cr. | periodof 11 transactionof transactionof
valueand seven andwill be month subjectto | purchasesandsales | purchasesand
particularsof propertiesfor a | repayableon DeemedAuto inthe normalcourse | salesin the
contract/ periodof 11 demand Renewalill of businesswith normal courseof
arrangement month subject terminatedand termsandconditions | businesswith
to Deemed 2. I.nter.estwill be | rent of Rs:30,000| that aregenerally termsand
AutoRenewal | Paidatinterest | g, icaqreed prevalentin the condtionsthat
till terminated | rate upto 15% whichmaybe industrysegments | aregenerally
andfollowing p.atil! the loan increased that the company prevalentin the
rentisagreed | Subsist annually. operatesat. industry
whichmaybe segmentghat the
increased company
annually. operatesat.
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month

Property4: Rs.
5,000per
month

Property5: Rs.
60,000per
month

Property6: Rs.
10,000per
month

Property7:Rs.

10,000per
month
Tenureof the Lease Loanwill be LeaseAgreement | Contracts/arrangeme| Contracts/arrang
transaction Agreements repayableon isenteredfor nts with a duration ementswith a
enteredfor demand periodof 11 upto 5years durationupto 5
periodof 11 monthssubject years
monthssubject to DeemedAuto
to Deemed Renewatill
Auto Renewal terminatedby
till terminated parties.
by parties.
Valueof the Rentamounting | Unsecured.oan | Rentamounting | Purchases | Sales Purcha | Sales
proposed to uptoanamount | to Rs.3,60,000 upto a uptoa | seupto | uptoa
transaction of Rs.10crores. p.a.whichmay valueof valueof | avalue | value
Propertyl:Rs. beincreased Rs.50cr Rs50 | ofRs5 | of Rs5
1,80,0000.2 mutually p.a. crp.a. |crpa. |crpa.

Property2: Rs.
1,20,000p.a.

Property3: Rs.
1,20,000p.a.

Property4: Rs.
60,000p.a.

Property5: Rs.
7,20,000p.a.

Property6: Rs.
1,20,000p.a.

Property7: Rs.
1,20,000p.a.
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Percentagef
annualconsolidated
turnover, for the
immediately
precedingfinancial
year,that is
representedby the
valueof the
proposed
transaction

Upto 0.1
percentof the
turnover of the
companyper
annum.

4.5percentof the
turnover of the
companyper
annum.

Upto 0.1 percent
of the turnover of
the company per
annum.

Upto 25 percentof
the turnover of the
companyper annum.

Upto 2.5percent
of the turnover of
the companyper
annum.

Benefitsof the
proposed
transaction

TheCompanywill benefitin form of easyavailabilityof
fund andresourcesat a shorterperiod of time

TheCompanywill get benefit of tradingin
the goodswith related parties

Detailsof the
valuationreport or
externalparty
report(if any)
enclosedwith the
Notice

NOTAPPLICABLE

10.

Nameof the
Directoror Key
Managerial
Personnelwhois
relatedor
interested

NikhilHarbanslaBhatia,
SanjeeHarbanslaBhatiaand
KamleshkumaiarbanslaBhatia

11.

Followingadditional
disclosurego be
madein caseloans,
inter corporate
deposits,advances
or investments
madeor given

NOTAPPLICABLE

12.

Anyother
information that
maybe relevant

NIL

Sr.

No.

Description

RelatedParty9

RelatedParty 10

RelatedParty 11

RelatedParty 12

Nameof the related
party

SNWDistributors
PrivateLimited

EParisarTech
PrivateLimited

Modern Comnodeal
PrivateLimited

Mohit Enterprises
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Natureof relationship | CommonDirector CommonDirector Directoris Directorisa
Shareholder Partner

[includingnature of

its interest (financial

or otherwise)]

TypeandParticulars | Purchase | Sales Purchase| Sales Purchase | Sales Purchase | Sales

of the proposed

transaction

Nature,Duration/ TheCompany TheCompany TheCompany TheCompany

tenure, material undertakestransaction | undertakes undertakes undertakes

terms, monetary of purchasesandsales | transactionof transactionof transactionof

valueandparticulars | inthe normalcourseof | purchasesandsales| purchasesandsalesin | purchasesand

of contract/ businesswith terms in the normal the normalcourseof | salesin the normal

arrangement andconditionsthat are | courseof business | businesswith terms courseof business
generallyprevalentin | with termsand andconditionsthat with termsand
the industrysegments | conditionsthatare | aregenerally conditionsthat are
that the company generallyprevalent | prevalentin the generallyprevalent
operatesat. in the industry industrysegments in the industry
segmentghatthe | that the company segmentghat the
companyoperates | operatesat. companyoperates
at. at.
Tenureof the Contracts/arrangemen| Contracts/arrange | Contracts/arrangeme | Contracts/arrange
transaction ts with adurationupto | mentswith a nts with aduration mentswith a
Syears durationupto 5 upto 5years durationupto 5
years years
Valueof the proposed | Purchases | Purchase| Sales | Purchase| Purchases | Sales Purchas | Sales
transaction upto a suptoa | uptoa |suptoa | uptoa upto a esupto | uptoa
valueof valueof | value valueof | valueof valueof | avalue | valueof
Rs.10cr Rs.10cr | of Rs5 | Rs5cr Rs.10cr Rs.10cr | of Rs5 | Rs5cr
p.a. p.a. crp.a. | p.a p.a. p.a. crp.a. p.a.
Percentagef annual | Upto5 percentofthe | Upto2.5percentof | Upto5 percentofthe | Upto2.5percentof
consolidated turnover of the the turnoverof the | turnoverof the the turnover of the
turnover, for the companyperannum. | companyper compayy perannum. | compary per
immediately annum. annum.
precedingfinancial
year,that is
representedby the
valueof the proposed
transaction
Benefitsof the TheCompanywill get benefit of tradingin the goodswith related parties
proposedtransaction

Detailsof the
valuationreport or

externalparty

NOTAPPLICABLE
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report(if any)
enclosedwith the
Notice

10.

Nameof the Director
or KeyManagerial
Personnelwho is
relatedor interested

NikhilHarbanslaBhatia,
SanjeeHarbanslaBhatiaand
KamleshkumardarbanslaBhatia

11.

Followingadditional
disclosurego be
madein caseloans,
inter corporate
deposits,advanceor
investmentsmadeor
given

NOTAPPLICABLE

12.

Anyother information
that maybe relevant

NIL
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BHATIACOMMUNICATIONSRETAIUNDIALIMITED

CIN:L32109GJ2008PLC053336
Regd Off: 132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad,Surat895002
Website:www.bhatiamobile.comE mail: info@bhatiamobile.comPh:0261 2349892

DIRECTORREPORT

To,
TheMembers
BhatiaCommunications Retail(India) Limited

Your Directorstake pleasurein submitting the 14" Annual Reportof the Businessand operations of your
Companyandthe Audited FinanciaStatementdor the financialyearended315 March,2022.

1. FINANCIARESULT& PERFORMANCE

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended
3103R022 3103R02F

Revenuefrom operations 23347.16 17292.18
OtherIncome 1828.53 1679.49
TotalRevenue 25175.69 18971.66
Profit before tax and Exceptionaltems 707.64 530.89
Exceptionalltems 0 0
Profit before Taxation 707.64 530.89
CurrentTax 186.85 141.72
DeferredTax (6.47) (2.57)
fncometax of earlieryears 0 17.25
Net Profit/ (LossyorTheYear 527.26 374.49
OtherComprehensivéncomefor the Year Net of 2.98 4.18
Tax

Total Comprehensivéncomefor the Year 530.24 378.67

* Figuregegroupedwherevernecessary

Thecompanyhasdisclosedts resultson quarterly basisof which resultsare subjectedto limited review
and publishesaudited financialresultson an annualbasis.The FinancialStatementsas stated aboveare
alsoavailableon the Company’svebsitehttps://bhatiamobile.com/

2. STATEFCOMPANY'8FFAIR
Duringthe year, YourCompanyecordedtotal revenueof 25175.69LacsagainstRs.18971.66Lacsn the

previousyear,representinganincreaseof 32.70%duringthe yearand Profit before TaxRs.707.64Lacsas
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comparedto Rs530.89Lacsduringthe year.Total Comprehensivéncomeduringthe yearwasRs.530.24
as comparedto Rs.378.67in the previousyear. A detailed analysison the Company’performanceis
includedin the “Management’sDiscussiorand Analysis'Report,whichforms part of this Report.

3. ROADAHEAD
Our visionof becomingone of the top retail mobile chainsand movingtowards sustainablegrowth. Our

priorities are asfollows:

* Focusonincreasingputlets with multiple products

« MaintainingPriceCompetitiveness

e Technologyenabledinventorymanagemensystem

« Crosspromotionthroughintelligentmarketing

¢ Movingupthe valuechain Expandinghe productline underown brand

4. STATUTORXFORMATION
The Companybeing basicallyengagedinto the retail and whole sell distribution businessof mobile

handsets,tablets, datacards, Television,mobile accessoriesmobile related products. Apart from this
businessthe Companyis not engagedn anyother business/activities.

5. DIVIDEND
The Board of Directorswere pleasedto declaredividend for last two yearsbut keepingin mind the
overall performanceand outlook for your Companyfor current year, your Board of Directorsare not
declaring dividends as the company require funds for its ongoing project. Your Directors do not
recommendanydividendfor the yearended31stMarch,2022.

6. UNCLAIMEDIVIDEND
Ason 31 March2022,the Company’sinclaimeddividendbalancewasRs.4658.50/t

7. TRANSFERORESERVE
Companyhasnot transferredanyamountfrom profit to GeneralReserve.

8. MATERIACHANGES
The Companyhasduring the year202122 subdividedits equity sharesfrom facevalueof Rs.10 eachto

facevalueof Re.1 each.Thishasincreasedhe shareholdingoaseof the companyasmore investorsare
ableto investin the sharesof the company.

Exceptabovethere havebeenno materialchangesand commitments,which affect the financialposition
of the companywhich hawe occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial
statementsrelate andthe date of this Report.

9. SHAREAPITAL
Duringthe year,the companyhas Subdivided equity shareshavingface value of Rs10/ reachfully paid
up into facevalueof Rel/ reachfully paid up. Detailsof the Authorized,Issued and paid up shareCapital
of the Companybefore and after SubDivision(StockSplit)equity sharesare asfollows:

PrerCapital PostStockSpilt
No

AuthorisedCapital Rs.13,00,00,00@lividedinto Rs. 13,00,00,000 divided into
1,30,00,00CEquityShares 13,00,00,00EquityShares
2. Issued, Paidtp and = Rs.12,51,52,000divided into | Rs. 12,51,52,000 divided into
SubscribecCapital 1,25,15,20@EquityShares 12,51,52,00EquityShares
3. | No.of EquityShares 1,25,15,200 12,51,52,000
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The AuthorizedShareCapitalof the Companyason 31/03/2022wasRs.13,00,00,00and Paidup share
capitalof the Companyason 31/03/2022wasRs.12,51,52,000.

CHANGHEN NATURBFBUSINES&ANY
Duringthe FinancialYear,there hasbeenno changein the businessof the companyor in the nature of

Businesgarriedby the companyduringthe financialyearunderreview.

DEPOSITS
Duringthe year, Companyhasnot acceptedany depositsfrom public within the meaningof the Section

73 of the Companieg\ct,2013.
Detailsof moneyreceivedfrom Directors

Sr.No. Nameof Directors O/s amountason yearend

(InLakh)
1 NikhilHarbanslaBhatia 63.79
2 SanjeeHarbanslaBhatia 77.11

SUBSIDIARIEBDINTVENTURENDASSOCIATEOMPANIES
TheCompanydoesnot haveany SubsidiaryHolding,JointVentureor AssociateaCompany.

DETAIL®FSIGNIFICANANDMATERIAIDRDERBASSEBYTHEREGULATORIRCOURTOR
TRIBUNALB/PACTINGHEGOINGCONCERNTATUBNDCOMPANY'® PERATIONS FUTURE
Therewas no significantmaterial order passedby the regulatorsor courts or tribunals impactingthe

goingconcernstatusand company’soperationin nature.

DETAIL®FDIRECTORSNDKEYMANAGERIAPERSONNEL
In accordanceavith Section152(6)of the Companied\ct,2013readwith the Articlesof Associatiorof the

Company,Mrs. KamleshkumarHarbanslalBhatia (DIN: 02066517),Director, retire by rotation and is
beingeligiblehasoffered herselffor re eppointmentat the ensuingAnnualGeneralMeeting. Company’s
policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration is availableon the website of the company at
https://bhatiamobile.com/wprcontent/uploads2022/04/Policyon Appointmentand Remuneratiorfor r
DirectorsKeyManagerialPersonnebnd SeniorManagementEmployedl . pdf

Basedon the confirmations received from Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified from
appointmentunder Section164 of the Companie#\ct,2013.

Thefollowingarethe Listof Directorsand KMPof the Companyduringthe year:

Nameof Directors Category& Designation ~ Appointment Change in Resignation
Date Designation Date

Mr SanjeevHarbanslal ExecutiveManaging 25.03.2008 05.01.2018 r

Bhatia Director

Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal| Executive Whole Time | 01.04.2008 05.01.2018 r

Bhatia Director

Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Non Executive 05.01.2018 r r

Jain IndependentDirector

Mrs.  Rashmi Kapil ' NonExecutive 05.01.2018 r

Arora IndependentDirector

Mr. Rachit Naresh NonExecutive 05.01.2018 r r

Narang IndependentDirector

Mrs. Kamleshkumari | NonrExecutiveDirector 30.03.2020 18.09.2020 r

HarbanslaBhatia
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Mr. Ravindra Arunrao ChiefFinanciaOfficer 05.01.2018 r r

Sojal

Ms. Mittal CompanySecretary 12.04.2019 r 01.11.2021
NarendrabhaiShah

Mr. SachinAgrawal CompanySecretary 01.12.2021 r r
EXTRACODFANNUALRETURN

As per the requirementsof Section92(3) of the Act and Rulesframed thereunder, the extract of the
AnnualReturnfor FY202122 is uploadedon the website of the Companyand the sameis availableat
https://bhatiamobile.com/annuareport/

RELATEPARTYRANSACTION

With referenceto Section134(3)(h)of the CompaniesAct, 2013, all contractsand arrangementswith
related parties under section 188 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 entered by the Companyduring the
financialyear,were in ordinary courseof businessand at arm’slength basis.The Policyon RelatedParty
Transactionss uploadedon the website of the company.Theweb link is https://bhatiamobile.com/wpr
content/uploads/2022/04/RelatedPartyifransactionPolicyd .pdf Details of the related party
transactionsmade during the year are attachedas Annexured in form AOCR for your kind perusaland
information.

NUMBEROFMEETINGIELIDURINGTHEYEAR
TheDetailsof all meetingof Boardof Directorsand Committeemeetinghad taken placeduringthe year
andtheir detailsalongwith their attendance,is givenin Annexure2 in the CorporateGovernancedreport.

COMPOSITIORFBOARDANDITSCOMMITTEE
Thedetail of the compositionof the Boardand its committeesthereof and detail of the changesdn their
compositionif anyis givenin Annexure2 in the CorporateGovernancdreport.

LOANSGUARANTEESNDINVESTMENT
With referenceto Section134(3)(g)of the Companie#\ct,2013,loans,guaranteesandinvestmentsmade
undersection186 of the Companie#\ct,2013are asunder:

Date of Nameof the Company Purposeof Transaction Amountinvolved
transaction in Transaction
1 VariousDates  SuncarelradersLimited Loanfor business 271.636
development
2 VariousDates ManasiSareedrivate Loanfor business 28.771
Limited development

20.

DECLARATICBYINDEPENDENDIRECTORS

Companyhasreceiveddeclarationfrom all the independentdirectors duly signedby them stating that
they meetthe criteria of independencesprovidedin section149(6)of the Companiesict,2013.
Therehasbeen no Changein the circumstancesffecting their status as IndependentDirectorsof the
Companyso asto qualify themselveso be appointedas IndependentDirectorsunder the provisionsof
the Companieg\ct,2013andthe relevantregulations.

All the independentdirectors have cleared"Online SelfAssessmenf est" examinationwith the Indian
Institute of CorporateAffairsat Manesar.

SEPARATEEETIN®FINDEPENDENJIRECTORS
In terms of requirement of SchedulelV of the CompaniesAct, 2013, the IndependentDirectorsof the

companyhave compliedwith the code of IndependentDirector. IndependentDirectorsmet separately
on 14" February 2022to inter aliareviewthe performanceof Non independentDirectors(Includingthe
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Chairman),the entire Board and the quality, quantity and timelinessof the flow of the information
betweenthe Managementandthe Board.

21. VIGILMECHANISM
The Companyhasadopted a Whistle Blower Policyto provide a formal mechanismto the Directorsand
employeesto report their concernsabout unethicalbehaviour,actualor suspectedraud or violation of
the Company’sCodeof Conductor EthicsPolicy. The Policyprovidesfor adequatesafeguardsagainst
victimization of employeeswho avail of the mechanismand also provides for direct accessto the
Chairmanof the Audit Committee.lt is affirmed that no personnelof the Companyhave been denied
accessto the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the website of the
Company at https://bhatiamobile.com/wprontent/uploads/2022/04/VigiMechanismiVhistle Blowerr

Policyd..pdf

22. DIRECTOREESPONSIBILISYATEMENT
Pursuantto the provisionsof Section134(5)of the Companie#ct,2013,your directorsherebyconfirm:

A. Thatin preparationof the annualaccounts,the applicableaccountingstandardshave been followed
alongwith properexplanationrelatingto materialdepartments;

B. That the directors have selectedsuch accountingpoliciesand applied them consistentlyand made
judgmentsand estimatesthat are reasonableand prudent so asto give a true and fair view of the
state of affairsif the Companyat the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Companyfor that period,;

C.Thatthe directorshad taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenanceof adequateaccounting
recordsin accordancewith the provisionsof this Act for safeguardinghe assetsof the Companyfor
preventingand detectingfraud and other irregulations;

D. Thatthe directorshad preparedthe annualaccountson a going concernbasis;and

E. Thedirectorshad laid down internal financialcontrolsto be followed by the companyand that such
internalfinancialcontrolsare adequateandwere operatingeffectively;

F. Thedirectors had devisedproper systemsto ensurecompliancewith the provisionsof all applicable
lawsandthat suchsystemswvere adequateand operatingeffectively.

23. ANNUALEVALUATION
Duringthe year,the Boardhascarried out the annualevaluationof its own performanceaswell asthe
evaluationof the working of its Committeesand individual Directors,including Chairmanof the Board.
This exercise was carried out through a structured questionnaire prepared separately for Board,
Committeeandindividual Directors.

Theperformanceof the board wasevaluatd by the board after seekinginputs from all the directorson
the basisof the criteria suchasthe board compositionand structure, effectivenesof board processes,
information andfunctioning,etc.

Theperformanceof the committeeswasevaluatedby the board after seekingnputsfrom the committee
memberson the basisof the criteria suchasthe compositionof committees,effectivenesf committee
meetings.etc.

Theboardandthe nominationand remunerationcommittee reviewedthe performane of the individual
directorson the basisof the criteria suchasthe contribution of the individualdirector to the board and
committee meetingslike decisionmaking,participationin meeting,overallperformance etc. In addition,
the chairmanwasalsoevaluatedon the key aspectof hisrole.
TheBoardacknowledgedtertainkeyimprovementareasemergingthroughthis exerciseand actionplans
to addressthese are in progress. The performance evaluaton of the Non Independent Directors,
performanceof Boardasa whole includingChairmanwas carried out by the IndependentDirectorsat a
separatemeetingof the IndependentDirectorson 14th February2022.
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24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the
independentdirector beingevaluated.

INTERNAEINANCIACONTROEYSTEM

The Companyhas a well placed, proper and adequateinternal financial control systemwhich ensures
that all the assetsare safeguardecand protected and that the transactionsare authorizedrecordedand
reported correctly. The internal audit covers a wide variety of operational matters and ensures
compliancewith speciftc standardwith regardsto availabilityand suitability of policiesand procedures
Duringthe yearno reportable materialweaknessn the designor operationwere observed.

ADEQUACBOFINTERNAEINANCIACONTROLMYITHREFERENCETHEFINANCIASTATEMENTS
Thecompaniesact, 2013re emphasizeshe needfor an effectiveinternal financialcontrol systemin the
company. Rule 8(5) (viii) of Companies(Accounts)Rules, 2014 requires the information regarding
adequacyof internal financialcontrols with referenceto the financialstatementsto be disclosedin the
board’report. Thedetailedreport forms part of IndependentAuditorsReport.

CORPORATEOVERNANCE

Your Companyhas incorporated the appropriate standardsfor corporate governance.Pursuantto

Regulation 15(2) of SEBI(Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements)Regulations,2015, the

Companyis filing CorporateGovernanceReportto stockexchangeguarterly. However,asper Regulation
34(3) read with ScheduleV of SEB[ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequiremats) Regulations2015
companyis givingreport on corporate governancereport in annual report of the company.Corporate
GovernanceReportis asper Annexure 2. Therequisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company
confirming compliancewith the conditions of Corporate Governanceis attached in the report on

CorporateGovernance

CONSERVATIGN-ENERGY,ECHNOLOGBSORPTIOANDFOREIGEXCHANGEARNING
With referenceto Section134(3)(m)of the CompaniesAct, 2013, the details of conservationof energy,
technologyabsorptionandforeignexchangesarningsare asper Annexure B.

CORPORATEOCIARESPONSIBILIOSR)

Pursuantto the provisionsof section 135 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read with CompaniegCorporate
SociaResponsibilityRules2014;the Boardhasundertakenthe CSRactivitiesasper Rule4 of Companies
(CorporateSocialResponsibilityPolicy) Rules,2014. The details of CSRactivities for the financial year

2021 r022forms part of this Boardreport in Annexure—4.

MANAGEMENDISCUSSIOANDANALYSIREPORT
As per Regulation34 of SEBI(ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirements)Regulation2015, the
ManagementDiscussiomnd AnalysisReportis givenin Annexure b.

STATUTORAUDITORS

The Membersat the 13th Annual GeneralMeeting of the Companyheld on September22, 2021, had
appointed M/s. RP R & Co.,CharteredAccountants(Firm RegistrationNo. 131964W)as the Statutory
Auditor of the Companyto hold office for aterm of five yearsi.e., from the conclusionof the 13" Annual
GeneraMeetinguntil the conclusiorof the 18" AnnualGeneralMeeting.

INTERNARUDITOR
TheCompanyhasappointedM/s. V.M. Patel& AssociatesCostAccountant,Suratasan Internal Auditor

for the term of 5 yearsfrom from F.Y.201920 to 202324 in the Boardmeetingheld on 30" May, 2019
after obtaininghiswillingnessandeligibility letter for appointmentasinternal Auditor of the Company.
Internal Auditorsare appointedby the Boardof Directorsof the Companybasedon the recommendation
of the Audit Committee.Thelnternal Auditor reportstheir findingson the internal Audit of the Company
to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Scopeof Internal audit is approved by the Audit
Committee.
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32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

SECRETERIAUDITOR
Yourboard hasappointedMr. RanjitBinodKejriwal,PracticingCompanySecretaryassecretarialAuditor

of the companyfor the period of 5 consecutiveyears starting from financial year 20202021. The
secretarialreport for the financial year 20212022 is attached as Annexureb. Report of secretarial
auditor is self explanatoryand neednot anyfurther clarification.

COMMENT®NAUDITOR'REPORT
The notes referred to in the Auditor Report are selfexplanatoryand they do not call for any further

explanationasrequiredundersection134 of the Companieg\ct,2013.

PARTICULARS-EMPLOYEESNDRELATEDISCLOSURES
Therewasno employeedrawingremunerationin excesof limits prescribedunder section197(12)of the

CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Rule5(2) and 5(3) of the CompaniegAppointmentand Remuneratiornof
ManagerialPersonnelRules,2014. TheDisclosurepertainingto remunerationasrequired under section
197(12)of the Companie#\ct, 2013readwith Ruleof the CompaniegAppointmentand Remuneratiorof
ManagerialPersonnelAmendmentRules2016are asper Annexure 7.

Thedetailed remunerationpolicy of the Companyis availableon the below link: https://bhatiamobile.
com/wp content/uploads/2022/04/Remunreatioiolicy.pdf

RISKMANAGEMENT
Risksare events,situationsor circumstancesvhichmayleadto negativeconsequencesn the Company’s

business.Risk Managementis a structured approachto manage uncertainty. An enterprise wide

approachto RiskManagementis being adopted by the Companyand key riskswill how be managed
within a unitary framework. As a formal roll put, all businessdivisionsand corporate functions will

embraceRiskManagementStructure,and makeuseof thesein their decisionmaking.Keybusinessisks
and their mitigation are consideredin the annual/strategicbusinessplansand in periodic management
reviews. The risk managementprocessover the period of time will become embedded into the

Company’'dusinesssystemand processessuchthat our responsego risk remaincurrentand dynamic.
ThedetailedStatementon RiskManagementhasbeenattachedin Annexure—8.

CEO/CFCCERTIFICATION

In terms of Regulationl7(8)of the ListingRegulationsthe CFChascertified to the Boardof Directorsof
the Companywith regardto the financialstatementsand other matters specifiedin the saidregulation
for the financialyear20212022. Thecertificatereceivedfrom CFQs attachedherewith asper Annexure
-9

CODBEOFCONDUCT

Board of Directors has formulated and adopted Code of Conductfor Board of Directorsand Senior
Management Personnelfrom January 19, 2018. During the year, Board of Directors and Senior
ManagementPersonnelhas complied with general duties, rules, acts and regulations.In this regard
certificate from Managing Directors as required under ScheduleV of SEBI(Listing Obligationsand
DisclosureRequirementsRegulations2015 has been receivedby the Boardand the sameis attached
herewith asper Annexure—10.

Codeof Conductform Boardof Directorsand SeniorManagementPersonneis availableon below link:
https://bhatiamobile.com/wprcontent/uploads/2022/04/Codef Canduct .. pdf

COMPLIANCEERTIFICAFROMTHEAUDITOREGARDINGOMPLIANCEFCONDITIONSF
CORPORATEGOVERNANCE:
Corporate Governanceis a set of process,practice and systemwhich ensure that the Companyis

managedin a bestinterest of stakeholdersThekeyfundamentalprinciplesof corporategovernanceare
transparencyand accountability. At Bhatia, Company’sore businessobjectiveis to achievegrowth with
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39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

transparency, accountability and with independency. Company has adopted various corporate
governancestandard and doing businessin ethical way by which Companyhas enhancestakeholders
trust, shareholdersvealth creationby improvingsharesvaluation,marketcapitalizationetc.

A certificatereceivedfrom M/s RP R & Co.,Statutory Auditors of the Companyregardingconmplianceof
the conditionsof CorporateGovernanceas required under ScheduleV of SEB(ListingObligationsand
DisclosureRequirementsRegulations2015is attachedherewithasper Annexure—11.

CERTIFICATIGIROMCOMPANYSECRETARYPRACTICE
Mr. RanjitBinodKejriwal,PracticingCompanySecretaryhasissueda certificate requiredunderthe listing

regulations,confirmingthat none of the Directorson the Boardof the companyhasbeen debarredor
disqualifiedfrom beingappointedor continuingasdirector of the companyby SEBI/Ministryof Corporate
Affairsor anysuchstatutory authority. Thecertificateis enclosedasAnnexurel2.

SEXUAHARASSMENJIFWOMEN
Yourcompanyadoptedpolicyof “Preventionof SexuaHarassmenbf Womenat Workplace”.Therewere

no incidencesf sexualharassmenteported during the yearunder review, in terms of the provisionsof
the SexualHarassmenbf Women at Workplace(Prevention,Prohibition and RedressalAct, 2013 and
Rulesmadethereunder.Theobjectiveof this policyisto provide protection againstsexualharassmenbf
women at workplace and for redressalof any such complaints of harassment,internal complaints
committeehasbeensetup to redressthe complaints,f any.

Thecompanyhascompliedwith the provisionsrelatingto constitutionof Internal ComplaintsCommittee
underthe SexuaHarassmenbf Womenat Workplace(Prevention, Prohibitionand Redressalfct, 2013.
Yourdirector'sfurther state that duringthe yearunderreview, there were no casediled pursuantto the
SexuaHarassmenbf Womenat Workplace(Prevention Prohibitionand Redressaljct,2013.

SECRETARIBATANDARDISSUEBYTHHENSTITUTEDFCOMPANSECRETARIGSEINDIA(ICSI)
The Companycomplieswith all applicablemandatory SecretarialStandardsissuedby the Institute of

CompanySecretarie®f India(ICSI).

FRAUDREPORTING
During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by Auditors under Section143(12)of the

Companie#\ct,2013.

MAINTENANCEBFCOSRECORDS
Thecompanyis not requiredto maintain CostRecordsasspecifiedby CentralGovernmentunder section

148(1) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, and accordinglysuch accountsand records are not made and
maintained.

PREVENTIONFINSIDERRADING
The Companyhasadopteda CodeOf Internal ProceduresAnd ConductFor RegulatingMonitoring And

Reporting Of Trading By Insiders And Code Of PracticesAnd ProceduresFor Fair Disclosure Of
UnpublishedPriceSensitivewith a view to regulatetradingin securitiesby the Directorsand designated
employeesof the Company.The Coderequirespre clearancefor dealingin the Company’ssharesand
prohibitsthe purchaseor saleof Companysharesby the Directorsandthe designatedemployeeswhilein

possessiorof unpublishedprice sensitiveinformation in relation to the Companyand during the period

whenthe TradingWindowis closed.TheBaard is responsiblefor implementationof the Code.
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45.

46.

47.

48.

TheCompanyhasa Prohibitionof InsiderTradingPolicyand the samehasbeenpostedon the website of
the Companyat https://bhatiamobile.com/wprcontent/uploads/2@2/04/Prohibitionof insideriradingr

Policy.pdf

RESEARGHDEVELOPMENT
The Companybelievesthat technologicalobsolescences a reality. Only progressiveresearch and

developmentwill help us to measureup to future challengesand opportunities. We invest in and
encourage continuous innovation. During the year under review, expenditure on research and
developmentis not significantin relation to the nature sizeof operationsof Company.

INSURANCE:
All the properties and the InsurableInterest of the companyincluding building and stockswherever

necessanand to the extent required have been adequatelyinsured. The companykeepsreviewingthe
insuranceamounteveryyearasper requirement.

APPRECIATION
Your Directorsplace on record their deep appreciationto employeesat all levelsfor their hard work,

dedicationand commitmentand expresstheir sincerethanksand appreciationto all the employeesfor
their continued contribution, support and co pbperation to the operations and performance of the
company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
Your Directors would like to expresstheir sincere appreciation of the copperation and assistance

receivedfrom ShareholdersBankersregulatorybodiesand other businessconstituentsduring the year
underreview.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep senseof appreciationfor the commitment
displayedby all executivespfficersand staff, resultingin successfuperformanceof the Companyduring
the year.

PlaceSurat Forthe Boardof Director
Date:02.08.2022 BhatiaCommunications Retail (India) Limited
Sd/ r Sd/r
SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia
ManagingDirector WholeTimeDirector
DIN:02063671 DIN:02063706
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Annexured
FormNo. AOCg
(Pursuanto clause(h) of subsection(3) of section134of the Actand Rule8(2) of the Companies
(AccountsRules2014)

Formfor disclosureof particularsof contracts/arrangementgnteredinto by the companywith related parties
referredto in subsection(1) of section188of the Companie#\ct, 2013 includingcertainarmslength
transactionsunderthird provisothereto

1. Detailsof contrads or arrangementsor transactionsnot at arm’slength basis
Name(s)of Nature Duration Salientterms Justificat Date(s) Amount Dateon which
the related of of the of the ion for of paid as the special
party and contracts contracts contractsor entering approv advance, resolutionwas
nature of [arrange / agreementor into such al by if any passedn
relationship  ments/tr arrange transactions contracts the general

ansactio ments/tr includingthe or Board meetingas
ns ansactio value,ifany arrange required
ns mentsor under first
transacti provisoto
ons section188

NIL

2. Detailsof material contractsor arrangementor transactionsat arm’s length basis
Name(s)f therelated  Nature of Duration of Salientterm of the
party and nature of contracts/ the contractsor
relationship arrangemen  contracts/ arrangementsor the Board, if as
transactionsincluding any advanc
the value,if any ed, if

Date(s)if Amoun
approvalby t paid

ts/ arrangemen
transactions ts/
transactions any

1  HarbansaBhatia(HUF), Interest OnDemand = 15%interestonunsecured 04/05/2021 NIL
HUFof Director loan
RentPaid Annually RentperannumRs. 04/05/2021 NIL
3,37,000/r
2  HemaBhatia,Relativeof RentPaid Annually RentperannumRs. 04/05/2021 NIL
Director 4,12,500/r
3 | KamleshkumanBhatia, RentPaid Annually RentperannumRs. 04/05/2021 NIL
Director 11,00,000/r
4 NikhilBhatia,Director Interest OnDemand = 09%intereston unsecured = 04/05/2021 NIL
loan
Contracted Monthly Salarypermonth Rs. 04/05/2021 NIL
Salary 2,00,000/r
Rentpaid Annually RentperannumRs. 04/05/2021 NIL
9,35,000
5 | Sanjee\Bhatia,Director Contracted Monthly Salaryper month Rs. 04/05/2021 NIL
Salary 2,00,000/r
RentPaid Annually RentPerannumRs. 04/05/2021 NIL
10,20,000/r
6 | Naresh Purchase Annually At prevailingMarketPrice | 04/05/2021 NIL
Telecommunication
(NareshBhatiaHUF),
Firmof Relativeof
Director
SNWDistributorsPvt. Purchase& Annually AtprevailingMarketPrice  04/05/2021 NIL
Ltd.,CommonDirector Sales
EParisarTechPrivate Purchase& Annually AtprevailingMarketPrice = 04/05/2021 NIL
Limited,Common Sales
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Director

9 TelecityEnterprised LP,
Directoris Partner

10 | ModernCommodeaPvt
Ltd, Directoris
Shareholder

11 Mohit Enterprise,
Directoris Partner

12  RavindraSojal,CFO

13  HarshitaSojal,Wife of
CFO

14 | Mittal Narendrabhai
ShahCompanySecretary

15 SachinrAgrawal,
CompanySecretary

16  SanjeeBhatiaHUF
HUFof Director

PlaceSurat

Date:02.08.2022

Purchase

Purchase
Sales

PurchaseX
Sales

Salary

Contracted
Salary

Contracted
Salary

Contracted
Salary

RentPaid

SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia
ManagingDirector
DIN:02063671

Annually

Annually

Annually

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly
Monthly

Annually

At prevailingMarket Price

At prevailingMarket Price

At prevailingMarket Price

Salarypermonth Rs.
38,000/randRs.42,000/r
w.e.f01.08.2021
Salarypermonth Rs.
23,000/randRs.29,000/r
w.e.f01.08.2021
Salaryper month Rs.
15,000/r

Salaryper month Rs.
12,500/r

RentperannumRs.
3,37,000/r

Forthe Boardof Director

04/05/2021

04/05/2021

04/05/2021

04/05/2021

04/05/2021

04/05/2021

01/12/2021

04/05/2021

BhatiaCommunications Retail (India) Limited

Sd/

r Sd/r

Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia

WholeTimeDirector
DIN:02063706

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL
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Annexurep

CORPORATESOVERNANCREPORT

In terms of Regulation27 of SEB(ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirements),Regulations,
2015 the report containing details of corporate governancesystemsand processesat Bhatia
Communications& Retail(India) Limitedis asunder:

1. COMPANY’'8HILOSOPHIN

CORPORATEOVERNANCE

YourCompanyis committedto good CorporateGovernanceand hasbenchmarkedtself againstthe prescribed
standards.The fundamentalobjective of Corporate Governances the enhancementof shareholdersvalue
and protecting the interest of the stakeholderswith the application of the best and sound management
practicesand compliancewith the lawscoupledwith adherenceto the higheststandardsof transparencyand

businessthics. YourCompany'philosophyof CorporateGovernances aimedat assistinghe managemenin

the efficient conductof the businessof the Companyand in the meetingits obligationsto shareholdersand

others.

2. BOARDDFDIRECTORS

The Board of Directorsof the Company(Board)has optimum combinationof Executie and Non Executive
Directorscomprisingtwo ExecutiveDirectorsand Four Non ExecutiveDirectors.None of the Directorshold

directorshipin more than 20 companiesnor is a member of more than 10 committeesor chairmanof more

than 5 committeesacrossall the publiclimited companiesn whichthey are Directors.

(a) BoardStrengthand representation:

As on 31t March, 2022 the Board of Directors comprisesof Six directors out of which one is Executive
ManagingDirector,one is ExecutiveWhole Time Director,one is Non ExecutiveDirector and remainingthree
are Non ExecutivelndependentDirectors.Ason date of this report Board of Directorsof the companyis as

follows:
‘NameofDirectors ~ Categony&Designation
Mr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia ExecutiveManagingDirector
Mr. Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia ExecutiveWWhole TimeDirector
Mrs. KamleshkumarHarbanslaBhatia Non ExecutiveDirector
Mr. RachitNareshNarang Non ExecutivdndependentDirector
Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora Non ExecutivdndependentDirector
Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain Non ExecutivdndependentDirector

(b) The Detailsof Directorshipheld by the Directorsason 31st March, 2022 and their attendance
at the Boardmeetingsduring the year are asfollows:
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Member Chairman

SanjeevHarbanslal MD|PD| 2 NIL NIL YES 13 4,26,00,000
Bhatia ED

Kamleshkumari PDINED NIL NIL NIL YES 13 260
HarbanslaBhatia

Nikhil Harbanslal WTDIPD 1 NIL NIL YES 13 4,83,28,540
Bhatia |ED

RachitNareshNarang ID/NED  NIL NIL NIL YES 13 NIL
RashmiKapil Arora IDINED 1 NIL NIL YES 13 3,20,000
Arpit ArunkumarJain  ID/NED  NIL NIL NIL YES 13 NIL

# PD-PromoterDirector, NED- Non ExecutiveDirectors MD — ManagingDirectors,ED— ExecutiveDirector,
WTD-WholeTimeDirector,|D - IndependentDirector

(c) Detailsof number of BoardMeetingsheld in the financialyear.
Duringthe financialyear20212022,there were Thirteen (13) Boardmeetingsheld on following dates:

1 04/05/2021 6 6
2 26/05/2021 6 6
3 30/06/2021 6 6
4 08/07/2021 6 6
5 14/08/2021 6 6
6 20/08/2021 6 6
7 11/09/2021 6 6
8 01/11/2021 6 6
9 22/11/2021 6 6
10 10/12/2021 6 6
11 27/12/2021 6 6
12 24/01/2022 6 6
13 14/02/2022 6 6

(d) Disclosureof Relationshipsbetween Directorsinter se:

No other Directorsare related to eachother exceptMr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatiaand Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal
Bhatia,who are relatedto eachother asbrothersand Mrs. KamleshkumarHarbanslaBhatiais Mother of Mr.
SanjeeHarbanslaBhatiaand Mr. Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia.

(e) Numberof sharesand convertibleinstrumentsheld by non executiveDirectors
Exceptasdisclosedelownone of the Non ExecutiveDirectorshold any sharein the Company.

Sr.No. Nameof Non ExecutiveDirector No. of SharesHeld
1 RashmKapilArora 3,20,000

2 RachitNareshNarang 0

3 KamleshkumardarbanslaBhatia 260
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(f) Familiarizationto IndependentDirectors:
The newly appointed IndependentDirectorsof the Companyare familiarizedwith the variousaspectsof the

Companyprovided with an overview of the requisite criteria of independence,roles, rights, duties and
responsibilitiesof directors,terms of appointment of the Companyand policiesof the Companyand other
important regulatory aspectsas relevant for directors. The Company, through its Executive Director or
Manageras well as other SeniorManagerialPersonnel,conductspresentations/programgo familiarizethe
IndependentDirectorswith the strategy, operationsand functions of the Companyinclusiveof important
developmentsin businessThedetailsof numberof programsattendedandthe cumulativehoursspent by an
independent director are uploaded on the website of the company. The web link is
https://bhatiamobile.com/wprcontent/uploads/2022/04/FamiliarizatioProgrammefor independentr
Director2021@2.pdf

(g) Meeting of IndependentDirectors
TheCompany’sndependentdirectorsmeet at leastoncein afinancialyearwithout the presenceof executive

directorsand managemenpersonnelto review the performanceof Non independentDirectorsand Boardas
whole.

TheCompanyhasdevisedthe Policyon FamiliarizationProgrammefor IndependentDirector and the sameis
availableon the websiteof the Company www.bhatiamobile.com

Duringthe financialyear20212022,0ne (1) meeting of IndependentDirectorswere held on following dates:
14/02/2022.

Attendanceof Directorsat independentDirectorsmeetingheld duringthe financialyearis asunder:

Name Categories No. of Meeting Attended
Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain Chairman 1
Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora Member 1
Mr. RachitNareshNarang Member 1

(h) Matrix highlightingcore skills/expertise/competencief the Boardof Directors:
TheBoardof Directorshaveidentified the following skillsrequiredfor the Companyandthe availabilityof such

skillswith the Board:

EssentialCoreskills/expertise/competencies Coreskills/expertise/competencief the Boardof

requiredfor the Company Directors
1. Strategicand Businesd eadershipn Retail The Directors have eminent experienceof over the
industry decadesin trading Mobile Phones & Accessories,

Tablets LEDTVsandother ElectronicEquipments.

2. Financeexpertise The Board has eminent businessleaders with deep
Knowledgeof financeandbusiness.

3. PersonaValues Personal characteristics matching the Company’s
values, such as integrity, accountability, and high
performancestandards.

4, GoodCorporateGovernance Experiencein developing and implementing good

Corporate Governance practice, maintaining Board
and Management accountability, managing
stakeholder’sinterest and Company’sresponsibility
towards customers, employees, supplier, regulatory
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Bodiesandthe communityin whichit operates.

5. Salesand Marketing Experiencan developingstrategiesto grow salesand
market share, creating brand, build brand awareness
andenhanceenterprisereputation.

(i) Namesof Directorswho havesuchSkills/ Expertise/ Competence:

Sr.  Nameof Directors Strategicand  Finance Personal Good Salesand
N[o] Business expertise Values Corporate Marketing
Leadershign Governance
Retailindustry
1. Mr. SanjeeHarbanslal D D D D D
Bhatia
2. Mr. NikhilHarbanslal D D D D D
Bhatia
3.  Mrs.Kamleshkumari D D D
HarbanslaBhatia
4. Mrs.RashmKapilArora D D D D D
5. Mr. Arpit Arunkumar D D D D
Jain
6. Mr. RachitNaresh D D D D D

Narang

(i) IndependentDirectorsconfirmation by the Board
All IndependentDirectorshave givendeclarationsthat they meet the criteria of independenceas laid down

under Section 149(6) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
RequirementsRegulation2015.In the opinion of the Board,the IndependentDirectors,fulfill the conditions
of independencespecifiedin Section149(6) of the CompaniedAct, 2013and the SEB(ListingObligationsand

DisclosureRequirementsRegulation015.

Allthe independentdirectorshaveclearal "Online SelfAssessmentest"examinationwith the Indianinstitute
of CorporateAffairsat' Manesar'.

() Detailedreasonsof the resignationof an IndependentDirectorsbefore expiry of histenure and
confirmation by the Board:
Duringthe yearno IndependentDirectorshasresigned.
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3. AUDITCOMMITTEE

The Audit Committeeof the companyconsistsof three IndependentDirectorsand one ExecutiveDirector of
the Company All the Directorshave good understandingFinance,Accountsand Law. Compositionof audit
committeeof the companyis asfollows:

Name Categories Nature of Directorship |
Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain Chairman Non ExecutivdndependentDirector

Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora Member Non ExecutivdndependentDirector

Mr. RachitNareshNarang Member Non ExecutivdndependentDirector

Mr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Member ExecutiveDirector

Duringthe financialyear20212022,Six(6) meetingsof Audit Committeewere held on following dates:

1. 0405P021 2. 30062021 3. 14082021

4. 20082021 5. 01412021 6. 1402022 |

Attendanceof membersfor the meetingof Audit Committeeheld duringthe year20212022is asbelow:

Name Categories No.of Meeting Attended |
Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain Chairman 6
Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora Member 6
Mr. RachitNareshNarang Member 6
Mr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Member 6

Theterm of referenceof Audit Committeeis asbelow:
Thescopeof audit committee shallinclude,but shallnot be restrictedto, the following;

1. Oversightof the listed entity’s financialreporting processandthe disclosureof its financialinformation to
ensurethat the financialstatementis correct, sufficientand credible;

2.  Recommendatiorfor appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed
entity

3. Approvalof paymentto statutory auditorsfor anyother servicegenderedby the statutory auditors

4. Reviewingwith the managementthe annualfinancialstatementsand auditor's report thereon before
submissiorto the boardfor approval,with particularreferenceto:
a. matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the

board’sreport in termsof clause(c) of subsection(3) of Section134 of the Companie#\ct, 2013;

changesif any,in accountingpoliciesand practicesandreasongor the same;

major accountingentriesinvolvingestimatesbasedon the exerciseof judgment by management;

significantadjustmentsmadein the financialstatementsarisingout of audit findings;

compliancewith listingandother legalrequirementsrelatingto financialstatements;

disclosureof anyrelated party transactions;
g. modifiedopinion(s)in the draft audit report;

5. Reviewingwith the managementthe quarterly financialstatementsbefore submissiorto the board for
approval

6. Reviewingwith the managementthe statementof uses/ applicationof fundsraisedthrough an issue
(publicissue rightsissue,preferentialissue etc.), the statementof fundsutilizedfor purposesother than
those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring

~®o00C
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

20.
21.

22.

agency monitoring the utilisation of proceedsof a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendationgo the boardto take up stepsin this matter;

Reviewingand monitoring the auditor’s independenceand performance,and effectivenessof audit
process;

Approvalor any subsequentodificationof transactionsof the listed entity with related parties;
Scrutinyof inter corporateloansandinvestments;

Valuationof undertakingsor assetsf the listed entity, whereverit isnecessary;

E\aluationof internal financialcontrolsandrisk managemensystems;

Reviewing,with the management,performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacyof the
internal contral systems;

Reviewingthe adequacyof internal audit function, if any, includingthe structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official headingthe department, reporting structure coverage
andfrequencyof internal audit;

Discussionvith internal auditorsof anysignificantfindingsandfollow up there on;

Reviewinghe findingsof anyinternal investigationsby the internal auditorsinto matterswhere there is
suspectedraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systemsof a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board,;

Discussiorwith statutory auditors before the audit commencesabout the nature and scopeof audit as
well aspost audit discussioro ascertainanyareaof concern;

To look into the reasonsfor substantialdefauts in the paymentto the depositors,debenture holders,
shareholdergin caseof non paymentof declareddividends)and creditors;

Toreviewthe functioningof the whistle blower mechanism;

Approval of appointment of chief financid officer after assessinghe qualifications, experienceand
backgroundegtc. of the candidate;

Carryingout anyother function asis mentionedin the terms of referenceof the audit committee.
Reviewingthe utilization of loans and/ or advancesfrom/investment by the holding companyin the
subsidiaryexceedingrupees 100 crore or 10% of the assetsize of the subsidiary whicheveris lower
including existingloans/ advances investmentsexistingas on the date of cominginto force of this
provision

Considerand commenton rationale, costbenefits and impact of schemesinvolvingmerger, demerger,
amalgamatioretc.,on the listed entity andits shareholders.

Theaudit committee shallmandatorilyreviewthe following information:

1.

2.
3.
4

o

managementliscussiorand analysisof financialconditionandresultsof operations;
managementetters/ letters of internal control weaknessegssuedby the statutory auditors;

internalaudit reportsrelatingto internal controlweaknessesand

the appointment, removal and terms of remunerationof the chief internal auditor shall be subjectto

reviewby the audit committee.

statementof deviations:

a. quarterly statement of deviation(s)includingreport of monitoring agency if applicable submittedto
stockexchange(sih terms of Regulatior32(1).

b. annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/ntice in terms of RegulatiorB2(7).
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4. NOMINATIOMND

REMUNERATIOCCOMMITTEE

Companyhasformulated nominationand remunerationcommittee comprisingthree non executivedirectors
Compositiorof the Committeeis asfollows:

Name Categories Nature of Directorship

Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain Chairman Non ExecutivdndependentDirector
Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora Member Non ExecutivdndependentDirector
Mr. RachitNareshNarang Member Non ExecutivdndependentDirector

Duringthe financialyear20212022,Four (4) meetingsof Nomination& RemunerationCommitteewere held
on following dates:

1. 30062021 2. 2008p021
3. 0141p021 4. 1042p021

Attendanceof membersfor the meeting of Nomination & RemunerationCommittee held during the year
20212022is asbelow:

Name Categories No. of Meeting Attended
Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain Chairman 4
Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora Member 4
Mr. RachitNareshNarang Member 4

Theterm of referenceof Nomination& RemuneratiorCommitteeis asbelow:
1. Formulationof the criteria for determiningqualifications,positive attributes and independenceof a

director and recommendto the Boarda policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key
manageriapersonneland other employees;

2. Forevery appointmentof an independentdirector, the Nominationand RemunerationCommittee
shallevaluatethe balanceof skills,knowledgeand experienceon the Boardand on the basisof such
evaluation,preparea descriptionof the role and capabilitiesrequired of anindependentdirector. The
person recommendedto the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the
capabilitiesidentified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates,the
Committeemay:

a. usethe servicef anextemal agenciesif required,;
b. considercandidatesfrom a wide rangeof backgroundshavingdue regardto diversity;and
c.considerthe time commitmentsof the candidates.

3. Formulationof criteriafor evaluationof IndependentDirectorsandthe Board;

4. Devisinga policyon Boarddiversity,if any;

5. ldentifying personswho are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
managementin accordancewith the criteria laid down, and recommendto the Board of Directors
their appointmentand removaland shallcarryout evaluationof everydirector ‘s performance.

6. whetherto extendor continuethe term of appointmentof the independentdirector, on the basisof
the report of performanceevaluationof independentdirectors.

7. recommendto the board,all remuneration,in whateverform, payableto seniormanagement.

8. Toensurethe policyincludesthe following guidingprinciples:
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x Thelevel and compositionof remunerationis reasonableand sufficientto attract, retain and
motivate Directorsof the quality requiredto run the Companysuccessfully,

X Relationshipof remuneration to performanceis clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarksand

X Remunerationto Directors, Key Managerial Personneland Senior Managementinvolves a
balan@ betweenfixed and incentivepay reflectingshort and long term performanceobjectives
appropriateto the workingof the Companyandits goals.

Theperformanceevaluationof the independentdirector wasevaluatedby the board after seekingnputsfrom
all the independentdirectorson the basisof the criteria suchasparticipationin decisionmakingandrendering
unbiasedopinion; participaton in initiating new ideasand planningof the companyetc.

The board reviewed the performanceof the independentdirectors on the basisof the criteria suchas the
contribution in raisingconcerngo the Board,safeguardingf confidentialinformation, renderingindependent
unbiasedopinion etc. Theweb link is https://bhatiamobile.com/wprontent/uploads/2022/04/Performance
EvaluationPolicyd .pdf

5.REMUNERATIOBIFDIRECTORS
Duringthe yearcompanyhaspaid following remunerationor settingfeesto the directorsasfollows:

Name Category ~ Remuneration/ Sitting
Fees(InRs.)

SanjeewHarbanslaBhatia ExecutiveManagingDirector 24,00,000

Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia ExecutivaVhole TimeDirector 24,00,000
KamleshkumarHarbanslaBhatia  Non ExecutiveDirector NIL

RashmiKapil Arora Non ExecutivdndependentDirector NIL

Arpit ArunkumarJain Non ExecutivdndependentDirector NIL
RachitNareshNarang Non ExecutivdndependentDirector NIL

REMUNERATIOROLICY

The Companyhasadoptedand implementedthe Nominationand RemuneratiorPolicydevisedin accordance
with Section178(3)and (4) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 which is availableon the website of the Company
https://bhatiamobile.com/wprontent/uploads/2022/04/Remunreatioolicy.pdf

Theremunerationpayableto Directors,KeyManagerialPersonnebnd SeniorManagementPersonwill involve
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short term and long term performance objectives
appropriateto the workingof the Companyand supportin the achievemenof CorporateGoals.

Presentlythe companydoesn’t pay any sitting fees to its non executivedirector. The criteria for making
payment to the nonexecutive director is available on the website of the company
https://bhatiamobile.com/wpcontent/uploads/2022/04/Termsand Conditionof Appointmentof r
IndependentDirector.pdf
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6. STAKEHOLDER'’S
RELATIONSHEOMMITTEE

Theterm of referenceof Stakeholder'skelationshipfCommitteeis asbelow:
1. Resolvinghe grievancesof the security holdersof the listed entity includingcomplaintsrelated to

transfer/transmissiorof sharesnon receiptof annualreport, non receiptof declareddividends,issue
of new/duplicatecertificates,generalmeetingsetc.

2. Reviewof measuredakenfor effectiveexerciseof voting rightsby sharelolders.

3. Reviewof adherenceto the service standardsadopted by the listed entity in respectof various
servicedeingrenderedby the Registra& ShareTransferAgent.

4. Reviewof the variousmeasuresand initiativestaken by the listed entity for reducingthe quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensurirg timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
noticesby the shareholdersf the company.

To solve the investors grievances Commny has formulated Stakeholder’'s Relationship Committee.
Compositiorof the Committeeis asfollows:

Name Categories Nature of Directorship

Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora Chairman Non ExecutivdndependentDirector
Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain Member Non ExecutivdndependentDirector
Mr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Member ExecutiveManagingDirector

Duringthe financialyear20212022,Fours(4) meetingsof Stakeholder'RRelationshigCommitteewere held on
followingdates:

1. 0405p021 2. 14082021
3. 0141p021 4. 1402P022

Attendanceof membersfor the meeting of Stakeholder’'sShareholdersand Investor Committeeheld during
the year20212022isasbelow:

Name Categories No. of Meeting Attended
Mrs. RashmiKapil Arora Chairman 4
Mr. Arpit ArunkumarJain Member 4
Mr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Member 4

Name& Designationand addressof the ComplianceOfficer
CSSachimAgrawal

CompanySecretan& Compliancefficer
BhatiaCommunications% Retail(India) Limited

132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,

RingRoad Surat 395002

Pursuanto the Regulationl 3(3) of the SEB(ListingObligations& DisclosureRequirementsRegulations,
2015;the detailsregardinginvestor'scomplaintsare asfollows:

Statusof Complaintspending,received,disposedand unresolved:

Numberof ShareholdersComplaintsPendingat the end of the year NIL
Numberof ShareholdersComplaintsreceivedduring the year NIL
Numberof ShareholdersComplaintsdisposedduring the year NIL
Numberof ShareholdersComplaintsremain unresolvedduring the year NIL
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7.CSFCOMMITTEE

Your Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibilitycommittee ("CSRCommittee"). The
Committeeis primarily responsiblefor formulating and recommendingo the Boardof Directorsa Corporate
SocialResponsibilit CSRPolicyand monitoring the samefrom time to time, amount of expenditureto be
incurredon the activitiespertainingto C&Rand monitoring CSRactivities.

Compositionof the CorporateSocialResponsibilitycommittee ("CSRCommittee") and attendance
at Meetings:

Thecompositionof CSRCommitteehasbeenasunder;

Name Categories Nature of Directorship

Mr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Chairman ExecutiveManagingDirector

Mr. Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia Member ExecutiveVhole TimeDirector

Mr. RachitNareshNarang Member Non ExecutivdndependentDirector

Duringthe financialyear20212022,Two (2) meetingsof CorporateSociaResponsibilitfCommitteewere held
on following dates:

1. 01/11/2021 2. 25/03/2022

Attendanceof membersfor the meeting of CorporateSocialResponsibilityCommitteeheld during the year
2021p022is asbelow:

Name Categories No. of Meeting Attended
Mr. SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Chairman 2

Mr. Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia Member 2

Mr. RachitNareshNarang Member 2

CSRPOLICY

The company’spolicy disseminatedat https://bhatiamobile.com/wprontent/uploads/2022/04/CSRolicyr
1.pdf

Asper Section135(5)Companie#ct, 2013,an amountof 2 percentof the averagenet profits of the company
madeduringthe three immediatelyprecedingfinancialyearswhichworksout to Rs.13,17,398 risto be spent
towards Corporate SocialResponsibilityActivities. The detailed Report on the CSRActivitiesis annexedat
Annexured.

7. GENERABODWMEETING

Thedetailsof AnnualGeneraMeetingsheld duringthe lastthree yearsare asfollows:

Year Day,Dateand Time Venue

201849 Monday,09" September2019at 132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad Surat r
11:00A.M. 395002Gujarat

201910 Friday,18" September2020at 132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad Surat r
11:00A.M. 395002Gujarat

2020p1 Wednesday22® September2021  ThroughVideoConferencing
at 11:00A.M

Thedetails of Resolution(s)wvhich were passedin the lastthree AnnualGeneralMeetings(“AGM”)
of the Companyalongwith details of PostalBallot & voting pattern are asfollows:
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Date of AGM Resolution Ordinary/ Against

Special
Ballot ENoting Ballot Er
Voting
ogh Adoptionof Annual Ordinary 4902854 | 4504000 0 0
September, | AccountsAuditor's&
2019 Director'sReport
Reappointmentof Mr. = Ordinary 70000 244000 0 0
SanjeeHarbanslal
Bhatia(DIN:02063671).
Managingdirector,
Whoretiresby
rotation andbeing
eligible,offers
himselfforre r
appointment.
ReAppointmentof Ordinary 4902854 | 4504000 0 0
M/S.R.Kejriwal& Co.,
CharteredAccountants
asa StatutoryAuditors
of the Company.
Approvalof Related Special 70000 244000 0 0
PartyTransaction
Adoptionof Annual Ordinary 0 9314880 0 0
18" Accounts Auditor's&
September, | Director'sReport
2020 Declarationof Ordinary 0 9314880 0 0
Dividend
Reappointmentof Mr. | Ordinary 0 222000 0 0
NikhilHarbanslal
Bhatia(DIN:
02063706)Whole
TimeDirector.Who
retires by rotation and
beingeligible,offers
himselffor
reappointment..
AppointmentOf Ordinary 0 222000 0 0
Kamleshkumari
HarbanslaBhatia,
DirectorOf The
Company.
22nd Adoptionof Annual Ordinary 0 9357203 0 0
September, | AccountsAuditor's&
2021 Director’'sReport
Declarationof Ordinary 0 9357203 0 0
Dividend
Reappointmentof Mr. | Ordinary 0 9357203 0 0
SanjeeHarbanslal
Bhatia(DIN:
02063671)Managing
Director.Whoretires
by rotation andbeing
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eligible,offershimself
for reappointment..
AppointmentOf Ordinary 0 9357203 0 0
StatutoryAuditor M/s
RPR& Co.

NAMEANDADDRESOFSCRUTINIZEBRTHEPERSOM/HOCONDUCTEDHEREMOTEVOTING
ANDBALLOEXERCISE:

CSRanijitBinod Kejriwal

PracticingCompanySecretary,

1, Aastha,2/906, HiraModi Sheri,

Opp.GujaratSamachaPress,

SagrampuraRingRoad,

Surat—395002,Gujarat.

Email:rbksurat@gmail.com

Ph:+91£61£331123

EXTRAORDINARGENERAMEETING:
Thedetailsof Extra OrdinaryGeneralMeetingsheld duringthe 202122 are asfollows:

| Year Day,Dateand Time Venue
20212 Saturday 22 January2022at 132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad Surat r
11:00A.M. 395002Gujarat

Thedetails of Resolution(swhich were passedin the Extra©Ordinary GeneralMeeting ("EOGM”)of
the Companyalongwith details of PostalBallot & voting pattern are asfollows:

Dateof Resolution Ordinary/ Against
EOGM Special
Ballot Eioting Ballot Er
Voting
224 January, ApproveSubDivision  Special 32000 9251215 0 0
2022 of EquitySharef the
Company
Approvethe Alteration  Special 32000 9251215 0 0
in CapitalClauseV of
the Memorandumof
Associatiorof the
Company
POSTABALLOT

Duringthe financialyear202122, Companyhasnot passedanyresolutionsthrough postalballot .

As per amended CompaniesAct, 2013, Companyis not proposing Postal Ballot for 14th AGM and thus
procedurefor postalballotis not applicable.

9. MEANSOFCOMMUNICATION

FinancialResults:

Bhatia Communications& Retail (India) Limited believesin to publish all the financial information to
stakeholderswithin the stipulations provided under the law. During the year, Companyhas declared all
financialresultswithin the timeline providedunderthe SEB(ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirements)
Regulations2015

Quarterly/Half Yearly/ Yearlyfinancial results: The Yearly/Halfyearly/ Quarterlyfinancialresults of the
Companyare normally publishedin website of the Companyi.e. on www.bhatiamobile.comFinanciakesults
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for the year 20212022 have been submitted to stock exchangewithin 30 minutes from the conclusionof
BoardMeetingin whichfinancialresultshavebeenapproved.Duringthe year, following Quarterly,half yearly
andyearlyfinancialresultshavebeensubmittedon BSEportal

Periodof FinanciaResults Date

Unaudited FinancialResultsfor the quarter ended June 14/08/2021
30,2021

Unaudited FinancialResultsfor the quarter & half year 01/11/2021
ended September30,2021

Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter ended 14/02/2021
December31,2021

Audited Financial Results for the quarter and year 28/05/2022

endedMarch 31,2021

The companyhas publishedthe FinancialResultsin “Free press Gujarat” (English)and Lokmitra (Gujarati)
Newspapersand intimated the sameto the stock exchangeand posted on the website of the companyat
www.bhatiamobile.com

NewsRelease/Presentationmadeto the Investors:All the PressReleaseand the presentationmadeto
Institutional Investor/ Analystsare uploadedon the official websiteof the companywww.bhatiamobile.com

Website: Company'sofficial website www.bhatiamobile.comcontainsseparatetab “Investor Relations”for
investors, in which notices of the Board Meetings, Annual Reports, Investor Presentations,Shareholding
Pattern and other announcementsnadeto stockexchangeare displayedin due coursefor the shareholders
information.

Email IDs for investors: The Companyhas formulated separateemail id csbhatia@bhatiamobile.corfor
investor service,investor can also contact shareRegistrarand TransferAgent (RTA)f the Companyon their
email id support@purvashare.comand the same is available on website of the Company
www.bhatiamobile.com

SEBISCORE%or investor compliantredressalSEBhas developed SCORESatform in which investor can
lodged any complaint againstthe Companyfor any grievance.The Companyalso uploadsthe action taken
report in the SCORKESatform for redressabf investorcomplaint.

10. GENERABHAREHOLDHERORMATION

Monday, 05" September,2022, at ShopNo. 203, GroundFloor, Bhatia
Complex,Nr. SosyoCircleBamroliRoad,Surat.394210At 11:00A.M.

From1st April 2021to 315t March,2022

From Tuesdaythe 30" day of August,2022to Monday, the 05" day of
September2022(both dayinclusive)

LISTIN®ONSTOCKXCHANGE
The Equity Sharesof the Companyas on the date are listed on the Main Boardof BSH.imited. The Company

confirmsthat it haspaid AnnualListingFeefor the Financialyear20212022to the BSH.imited.

STOCICODEOFTHECOMPANY
ISIN :INE341Z01025
ScripName : BHATIA
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SecurityCode : 540956
Typeof Shares : EquityShares
No. of paidup shares :12,51,52,000

NAMEOFTHESTOCKXCHANGE

BSH._imited
Phirozeleejeebhoylowers,
DalalStreet,Mumbai—400001
Tel. : 022p2721233/4,
Fax : 022p2721919

MARKEPRICIPATA

Dataof marketprice high,low for the year20212022is givenbelow:

High Low(Rs.) Volume Turnover
((RED) (No.of Shares) (Amountin
Rs.)

76.95 64.8 24332 1730520 66
71.65 65 873 60326 69
76.05 63 26451 1842809 71

July,2021 92.95 65 61032 4598543 80.1
119 77 719215 69401181 106.4
166 98 543347 77904536 161.2
204.95 152.2 479954 81939212 188.65
209.95  177.65 143813 28227101 195.45
215 180 175476 34869315 210.8
252.8 193 241447 52135849 248.25

February,2022 325.25 28.2 4372652 207630319 30.9

March, 2022 294 215 1719052 43324064 23.2

PERFORMANOECOMPARISONOOTHERNDICES

Tablebelow givesthe performancecomparisonof M/s. BhatiaCommunicationg Retail(India)Limitedto BSE
Sensexor the F.Y.20220220n month to month closingfigures:
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BSE Change BHATIA Change
Sensex in % (ClosingPrice  in%
at BSE)

48782.36 i.47 66 £.94
51937.44 6.47 69 4.55
52482.71 1.05 71 2.9
52586.84 0.20 80.1 12.82
57552.39 9.44 106.4 32.83
59126.36 2.73 161.2 51.50
59306.93 0.31 188.65 17.03
57064.87 B.78 195.45 3.60
58253.82 2.08 210.8 7.85
58014.17 0.41 248.25 17.77
56247.28 B8.05 30.9 B7.55
58568.51 4.13 23.2 24.92

IN CASETHE SECURITIESRE SUSPENDEBROM TRADING,THE DIRECTOR’'BREPORTSHALL
EXPLAINHEREASONHERDBF
Not Applicable

REGISTRARTRANSFERGENTS:
PurvaSharegistry(India)PrivateLimited

Categoryl Registratto Issue& ShareTransferAgents
Unit No. 9 ShivShaktilnd. Estt.,

J.R.BorichaMarg, LowerParel(E),

Mumbai00011 Maharashtra,

Emailld: support@purvashare.com
Website:www.purvashare.com
Ph.No.:+91602223016761/8261
TeleFax:+9102223012517

SHARHRANSFERYSTEM

The Company’sshares are compulsorily traded in dematerializedmode. The dematerializedshares are

transferablethroughthe depositorysystem.Thepower of sharetransferhasbeendelegatedto the designated
officialsof Registrai& TransferAgentof the CompanyPurvaSharegistry(India) Private Limited. TheRegistrar
& TransferAgentprocesseghe sharetransferswithin a period of fifteen daysfrom the date of receiptof the

transferdocuments.

The Companyhas obtained yearly certificate from CompanySecretaryin Practicefor complianceof share
transfer formalities as per the requirement of Regulation40(9) of SEBI(ListingObligationsand Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,2015. The Company has also carried out Quarterly Secretarial Audit for

reconciliationof ShareCapitalAuditasrequiredunder SEBEircularno. 16 dated 31t December2002.

INVESTORELPDESK

Shareholders/Investors can also send their queries through email to the Company at
csbhatia@bhatiamobile.comThis designatede mail has also been displayedon the Company’swebsite
www.bhatiamobile.coranderthe sectioninvestorcontact.

COMPLIANCEFFICER
Mr. SachirAgrawal
CompanySecretary& ComplianceOfficer



BHATIA’3 4" ANNUALREPORT

DISTRIBUTIOBIFSHAREHOLDINBSONMARCH31,2022:

Onthe basisof Shareholdings

Shareholdingdof Nominal | No. of %of Shareholders | SharesAmount %of Shares
Value Shareholders Amount
0001 to 5000 8375 97.16 1919450 1.53
5001 to 20000 118 1.37 1423397 1.14
20001 to 40000 37 0.43 1141657 0.91
40001 to 100000 31 0.36 2146272 1.71
100001&Above 59 0.68 118521224 94.70
TOTAL 8620 100.00 125152000 100.00
Onthe basisof Category
Sr. | Description No. of members No. of shares
No. Nos. % Nos. %
A PromotersHolding
Directors& Relatives 6 0.07 92152000 7363
BodiesCorporate
B Non PromoterHolding
Institutions
Mutual Funds
Non institutions
Residentindividual 8476 98.33 18807367 1503
HUF 71 0.82 1568781 1.25
Foreignindividualsor NRI 24 0.28 263296 0.21
BodiesCorporate 9 0.10 6590579 5.27
LLP 1 0.01 20000 0.02
ClearingMember 31 0.37 5149977 411
Directorand DirectorsRelative 2 0.02 600000 0.48
Total: 8620 100.00% 125152000 100.00%

NOMINATIONFACILITY

It is in the interest of the shareholdersto appoint nominee for their investmentsin the Company.Those
members,who are holding sharesin physicalmode and have not appointednomineeor want to changethe
nomination,arerequestedto sendusnominationform duly filed in and signedby all the joint holders.

OUTSTANDINGDRS/ADRS/WARRANTS/ANYHERCONVERTIBIULESTRUMENTS
TheCompanydoesnot haveanyoutstandinginstrumentsof the captionedtype.

PROCEEIFMROMPUBLICSSUE RIGHTSSSUE PREFERENTIKISUE WARRANTONVERSION
The Companydoes not have such proceedsfrom Publiclssue,Right Issue,PreferentialIssueand Warrant

Conversion.

DETAIL®FDIVIDEND
Thedividendat the rate of 5%i.e. Re.0.50/ rper sharewasapprovedin the AnnualGeneralMeeting held on

227 September, 2021 and the samewasbeen paid to the shareholdersThe Boarddoesnot recommendany
dividendfor the currentyear.
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DETAIL®FUNPAIDDIVIDEND

ThecompanydeclaredFinalDividendfor FY202021 on 22" September,2021 and hasbalancein its Unpaid
Dividend Account. The Statement of Unpaid Dividend is available on the website of the company at
https://bhatiamobile.com/202223/

PLANT_.OCATION

Beingin the tradingcompany the companydoesnot haveany plants.However,your companyhas112 owned
retail storesand 14 franchisedstores.

ADDRESBORCORRESPONDENCE

(a) Registrar& TransferAgents:
PurvaSharegistryIndia)Privatd_imited.

Unit No. 9 ShivShaktilnd.Estt.,
J.R.BorichaMarglowerParel(E),
MumbaiA00011 Maharashtra,
Email:support@purvashare.com
Website:www.purvashare.com
Ph:No0.02223016761/8261Fax:0222301517

(b) RegisteredOffice:

132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,
RingRoad,Surat— 395002 ,Gujarat
Ph.No0.:02612349892
Email:info@bhatiamobile.com
Website:www.bhatiamobile.com

CREDIRATINGNIL
11.DISCLOSURES

DISCLOSUREFACCOUNTINGREATMENIN PREPARATIODFFINANCIABTATEMENT

In preparationof the financialstatements,the Companyhasfollowed the Indian AccountingStandardsssued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountantsof India (ICAI). The significant accounting policies which are
consistentlyappliedhavebeensetout in the Notesto the Accounts.

RISKMANAGEMENT

TheCompanyhasto frame a formal RiskManagementFrameworkfor risk assessmenand risk minimizationto
ensure smooth operation and effective managementcontrol. The Audit Committee has to review the
adequacyof the risk managementrameworkof the Companythe key risksassociatedwith the businessand
to measurethe stepsto minimizethe same

MATERIASUBSIDIARY
TheCompanydoesnot haveany materialsubsidiary.

CODBEOFCONDUCKFORPREVENTIOQFINSIDER RADING

TheCompanyhasadoptedthe Codeof Conductfor regulating,monitoringandreporting of Tradingby Insiders
in accordancewith the requirement of SEBI(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015 and the
CompaniesAct, 2013.The Codeof internal proceduresand conductfor Regulatingmonitoring and Reporting



BHATIA’3 4" ANNUALREPORT

of Tradingby Insidersis availableon https://bhatiamobile.com/wprontent/uploads/2022/04/Prohibitiorof r
InsideriTradingPolicy.pdf

CERTIFICATI®IROMCOMPANYSECRETARNYPRACTICE

Mr. Ranijit Binod Kejriwal, PracticingCompanySecretaryhas issueda certificate required under the listing
regulations, confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the company has been debarred or
disqualifiedfrom being appointed or continuing as director of the companyby SEBI/Ministryof Corporate
Affairsor anysuchstatutory authority. Thecertificateis enclosedasAnnexure 12.

COMPLIANCEERTIFICAHROMEITHER HEAUDITOR®RPRACTICINGOMPANYSECRETARIES
REGARDINGOMPLIANCBFCONDITIONSFCORPORATEOVERNANCE:

TheComplianceCertificateon corporate Governancdor the Yearended315 March,2022,issueby M/s. RPR
& Co.,Statutory Auditors of the Companyforms part of the CorporateGovernanceReport. The certificate is
enclosedasAnnexurell

WHISTLBLOWEROLICY/VIGMECHANISNPOLICY

The Companyhas adopted a Whistle Blower Policyto provide a formal mechanismto the Directorsand
employeesto report their concernsabout unethicalbehaviour,actual or suspectedfraud or violation of the
Company’'sCodeof Conductor EthicsPolicy.ThePolicyprovidesfor adequatesafeguardsgainstvictimization
of employeeswho avail of the mechanismand also provides for direct accesgo the Chairmanof the Audit
Committee.lt is affirmed that no personnelof the Companyhavebeendenied accesgo the Audit Committee.
TheWhistle Blower Policyhasbeen posted on the website of the Companyat https://bhatiamobile.com/wpr
content/uploads/2022/04/VigiMechanismiVhistle Blower Policyd . pdf

RELATEBARTYRANSACTION

Thelist of related party transactionsentered by the Companyduring the year is mentionedin point XVIllof
note no. 1 of Relatedparty DisclosuregAsidentified by management)of the financialstatement. All related
party transactionsare monitored by Audit Committee of the Company.Company’spolicy on related party
transactionis availableon below link:
https://bhatiamobile.com/wprontent/uploads/2022/04/RelatedParty T ransactionPolicyd .pdf

FEESOSTATUTORAUDITOR
Companyhaspaidtotal feespaid by the companyto the StatutoryAuditorasmentionedbelow:
Amountin Lakh

Paymentto Statutory Auditor FY20212022 FY202021
Audit Fees 0.350 0.350
TaxAudit Fees 0.150 0.150

DISCLOSUREIS! RELATIONTO THE SEXUALHARASSMENTOF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTIORROHIBITIONNDREDRESSAAET 2013

Thedetailsof complaintsfiled, disposed& pendingare givenbelow:
Numberof Complaintsduringthe year:NIL
Numberof complaintsdisposedof duringthe year:Not Applicable

Numberof complaintspendingason end of the financialyear:Not applicable

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loan and advancesin the nature of loans to
firms/companiesin which directorsare interested by nameand amount’: NIL
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STATUTORGOMPLIANCRENALTIESNDSTRICTURES

The Companyhascompliedwith the requirementsof the StockExchanges$ Securitiesand Exchangd3oardof
India (SEBI) and Statutory Authoritiesto the extent applicablethe company’ssharesare listed on the BSE
SMEPIatformon 215 February,2018 and has migratedto the main board of BSEw.e.f Septemberl7, 2020,
andaccordinglyno penaltieshavebeenleviedor strictureshavebeenimposedon the Companyon any matter
relatedto capitalmarketsduringthe year.

MANDATOR% NONMANDATORREQUIREMENTS

The Companyhascompliedwith all the mandatoryrequirementsof CorporateGovernanceand endeavorsto
adoptgoodcorporategovernanceracticeswhichhelpin adoptionof non mandatoryrequirements.

UPDATEMAILSFORRECEIVINSOTICE/DOCUMENTSE MODE

TheMinistry of CorporateAffairs(MCA)hasthroughits circularsissuedin 2011, allowedserviceof documents
by companiesincludingNotice calling GeneralMeeting(s),Annual Reportetc. to their shareholdershrough
electronicmode. Thisgreeninitiative wastakenby MCAto reducepaperconsumptionand contribute towards
agreenenvironment.Asaresponsiblecitizen,your companyfully supportsthe MCA’sendeavor.

In accordanceof the same,your companyhad proposedto send Notice calling GeneralMeetings, Annual
Reportand other documentsin electronicmode in future to all the shareholderson their email addresseslt
wasalsorequestedto inform the Companyin casethe shareholderswvishto receivethe abovedocumentsin
physicalform. Accordinglythe AnnualReportalongwith Noticewill be sentto the shareholdersn electronic
mode at their email addressesand membersare requestedto update their email addressthrough following
link https://www.purvashare.com/emaibnd phone updation/.

Theshareholdersnayregistertheir emailaddressesvith their Depositorythrough DepositoryParticipant.
UPDATEYOURCORRESPONDENTIRESHBANKMANDATE/PANEMAILD

Shareholder(sholding sharesin dematerializedfor are requestedto notify changesn Bankdetails/ address/
emailIDdirectly with their respectiveDPs.

QUOTH-OLIONO./ DPIDNO.

ShareholdersBeneficialowners are requestedto quote their DPID no. in all the correspondencawith the
Company.

Shareholdersare also requestedto quote their Email ID and contact number for prompt reply to their
correspondence.

12.DISCRETIONAREQUIREMENTS
THEBOARD

Thechairmanof the companyis an ExecutiveDirector.
SHAREHOLDERGHTS

Quarterly, Half yearly and yearly declaration of financial performanceis uploaded on the website of the
companyhttps://bhatiamobile.com/financiareport/ assoonasit isintimatedto the stockexchange.

MODIFIEBDPINION(SIN AUDITREPORT

Standardpracticesand proceduresarefollowedto ensureunmodifiedfinancialstatements.
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REPORTINGFINTERNARUDITOR

TheCompanyhasappointedM/s V.M. Patel& Associatesisthe Internal Auditor of the Companyfor five years
from F.Y.201920 to 202324. TheInternal Auditor reports to the Audit Committeeperiodicallywith Internal
Audit Reportpreparedon quarterlybasis.

The Internal Auditors M/s V. M. Patel & AssociatesCost Accountanthave reported directly to the Audit
Committeeof the Company.

13. THEDISCLOSURBS THECOMPLIANC®ITHCORPORATEOVERNANGREQUIREMENBRPECIFIEN
REGULATION TO27 ANDCLAUSE®) TO(I) OFSUBREGULATIO(2) OFREGULATIONS

Thecompanyhascompliedwith the provisionsof regulation17 to 27 andclausegb) to (i) of subregulation(2)
of regulation46 of SEB(ListingObligationsand DisclosureRequirements)Regulations2015.

Place:Surat Forthe Boardof Director
Date: 02.08.2022 BhatiaCommunicationst Retail(India) Limited
Sd/ r Sd/r
SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia
ManagingDirector Whole TimeDirector
DIN:02063671 DIN:02063706
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Annexure B

ASPERRULB OFCOMPANIEGACCOUNTRULES014

A. CONSERVATIGN-ENERGY
(i) Thestepstakenor impacton conservatiorof energy
(ii) Thestepstakenby the Companyfor utilisingalternatesourcesof energy NIL

(i) Thecapitalinvestmenton energyconservatiorequipment

B.TECHNOLOGBSORPTION —
(i) Theefforts madetowardstechnologyabsorption
(if) Thebenefitsderivedlike productimprovement,costreduction,productdevelopment
or import substitution
(iii) In caseof imported technology(imported duringlastthree yearsreckonedfrom the
beginningof the financialyear) L NIL
a. Thedetailsof technologyimported
b. Theyearof import
c. Weatherthe technologybeenfully absobed

d. If not fully absorbedareaswhere absorptionhasnot takenplace& reasonghereof

(iv) Theexpenditureincurredon research& developmentduringthe year20202021 ]

C.FOREIGEXCHANGEARNINANDOUTGO
TheForeignExchangesarningin terms of actualinflows

ForeignExchangearningsduringthe financialyear20212022: NIL

TheForeignExchangeutgo during the yearin terms of actual outflows

ForeignExchang@utgo duringthe financialyear20212022: NIL

PlaceSurat Forthe Boardof Director
Date: 02.08.2022 BhatiaCommunications Retail(India) Limited
Sd/ r Sd/r
SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia
ManagingDirector Whole TimeDirector
DIN:02063671 DIN:02063706
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Annexured

ANNUALREPORDNCORPORATEOCIARESPONSIBILITGSRACTIVITIEASPERSECTION350FTHE
COMPANIEBCT 2013

1. Abrief outline of the Company’sCSRoolicy, including overview of projects or programsproposesto be
undertaken.

Bhatia Communications& Retail (India) Limited is committed to conduct businessin a socially,
economicallyand environmentally responsibleand sustainablemanner, which enablesthe creation and

distribution of wealth for the betterment of all its stakeholdersjnternal aswell as external,through the

implementation and integration of ethical systemsand sustainable managementpractices. For this,

companyhad laid a balancedemphasison all aspectsof corporate socal responsibilityand sustainability
with regardto its internal operations,activitiesand processesaswell asundertakeinitiativesand projects
to facilitate awarenessprogram for preventing diseaseand building immunity, promoting education,
eradicatinghunger, poverty and malnutrition, environment protection, promotion of green and energy
efficienttechnologiesand upliftment of the marginalizedand underprivilegedsectionsof the society.

TheCSPprovisionsof the Companie#\ct 2013 Schedulé/Il,or the CSRulesareinviolable.
The CSRCommittee so constituted formulated Policyon Corporate SocialResponsibilitf CSRPolicy)on

23/10/2018 and the Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’) has approved the same as per
recommendationof CSRCommittee. Weblink:https://bhatiamobile.com/2022023/ .

TheCompositionof the CSRCommittee: r

SI.No. Nameof Director Designation/ Number of Number of
Nature of meetings of CSR meetings of CSR
Directorship Committee held Committee

during the year attended  during
the year

1 Mr. Sanjee\HarbanslaBhatia Chairman 2 2
(Managing
Director)

2 Mr. NikhilHarbanslaBhatia Member 2 2
(WholeTime
Director)

3 Mr. RachitNareshNarang Member 2 2
(Independent
Director)

2. Providethe web fink where Compositionof CSReommittee, CSRPolicyand CSRprojectsapprovedby the
boardare disclosedon the websiteof the company:https://bhatiamobile.com/202223/

3. Providethe detailsof Impactassessmenbf CSRorojectscarriedout in pursuanceof subrule (3) of rule 8
of the CompaniegCorporateSociaResponsibilityPolicy)Rules 2014,if applicable NA

4. Details of the amount availablefor setpoff in pursuanceof subrule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(CorporateSociaResponsibilityPolicy)Rules 2014and amountrequiredfor set off for the financialyear, if
any:
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Financialyear

Amount availablefor set off
from preceding financial

years(in

Rs.)

Amount required to be setr

any (in Rs.)

off for the financial year, if

1 202021

6,75,179

6,75,179

5. Averagenet profit of the Companyfor lastthree financialyear:r

Profit Calculatedasper provisionsof Section198 of the Companie#\ct,2013for lastthree years:
Rs.7,12,37,888Fk
Rs.7,32,82,869k
Rs.5,30,88,902k

201849
201920
2020r1

AverageNet Profit: Rs.6,58,69,886#

6. (a) Two percent of averagenet profit of the Companyas per Section1356) i.e. for last three financial
years:Rs.13,17,398/r
(b) Surplusarisingout of the CSRprojectsor programmesor activitiesof the previousfinancialyears:NIL
(c)Amountrequiredto be set off for the financialyear,if any: Rs.6,75,179/r
(d) Total CSPobligationfor the financialyear(7a+/br7c):Rs.6,42,219/r

7. (a) CSRamount spentor unspentfor the financialyear:

Amountunspent(in Rs.)

Total Amount = Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spentfor the UnspentCSR under ScheduleVll asper
Financial Year (in = Accountasper Section135(6) @ secondprovisoto Section135(5)
Rs.) Amount Date of | Nameof Fund | Amount Date of
Transfer Transfer
Rs.10,02,323 NA NA
(b) Detailsof CSRamount spentagainstongoingprojectsfor the financialyear: Not Applicable
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 \
Sr. Nam | Item Local Location | Projec Amou @ Amou Amount  Mode of Mode of
N | e of from area | of the | t nt nt transfer | implement ' implementa
0. Proje the yes/ | project durati | allocat spent red to @ ation —  tion
ct list of no on ed for in the unspent Direct through
activit the curre  CSR (yes/No) implementa
ies in projec nt account tion agency
sched t (in financ for the
ule VII Rs.) ial project
of the year | as per
act Section
135(6)
Sta | Dis Nam ' CSR
te |t e regi
No.

(c) Detailsof CSRamount spentagainstother than ongoingprojectsfor the financialyear:
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 ) 10
Sr. Name  Item Local | Location of | Amoun Amoun A Amount Mode of = Mode of
N  of from area theproject |t t spent | transfer = implementa implementat
0. Project thelist yes/ allocat in the red to @tion—Direct ion through
of no ed for current unspent @ (yes/No) implementat
activiti the financi | CSR ion agency
es in project alyear @ account
sched (inRs.) for the
ule VI project
of the as per
act Section
135(6)
State | Dist Name | CSR
regi.
No.
1  Sanitati (i) Local | Gujar Sur Rs. Rs. NIL Yes r r
on area at at 10,02,3 10,02,3
23 23

(d) Amount spentin Administrative OverheadsNIL

(e) Amount spenton ImpactAssessmentif applicable:NIL
(f) Totalamount spentfor the FinancialYear(8b+8c+8d+8e)Rs.10,02,323/r
(g) Excesamount for set off, if any

Particular

Amountin Rs.

Two percent of averagenet profit of the Companyas per Rs.6,42,219/r
Section135(5)*
2 Totalamountspentfor the Financialyear Rs.10,02,323/r
3 Excesamountspentfor the financialyear (i) (i)] Rs.3,60,104/ r
4 Surplusarising out of the CSRprojects or programmesor = NIL
activitiesof the previousfinancialyears,if any
5 Amountavailablefor set off in succeedindinancialyears[(iii) r Rs.3,60,104/r
(iv)]
* Note: After setting off of surplus profit of previous year of 835,179
8. (a) Detailsof UnspentCSRamount for the precedingthree financialyears:Not Applicable

Preceding

Amount

Amount

Amount transferred to any fund Amount

Financialyear transferred spentin specifiedunder remaining
to UnspentCSR the Schedule VII as per Section to
Accountunder reporting  135(6),if any be spent
Section 135 (6) Financial in
(in Rs) Year(in ") succeeding

financial
years
(in)
Name of Amount | Date of
the Fund | (inRs.) Transfer

[E

N

(b) Detailsof CSRamount spent in the financial year for ongoingprojects of the precedingfinancial

year(s):Not Appl

icable
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Sr. Project Name Financial
\[o} ID ofthe  Yearin
Project which the
project
was
commenced

Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of

duration amount spent amount the

project r
at the end Completed
/Ongoing

allocated on the spent
for the project
project in the of
(InRs.)  reporting reporting
Financial Financial
Year Year
(InRs.) (InRs.)

9. In caseof creation or acquisitionof capital asset,furnish the details relating to the assetso created or

acquiredthrough CSRspentin the financialyear (assetwise details): Not Applicable
(a) Dateof creationor acquisitionof the capitalasset(s)Not Applicable
(b) Amountof CSRspentfor credion or acquisitionof capitalasset:Not Applicable

(c) Detailsof the entity or public authority or beneficiay under whose name such capital assetis

registered their addressetc.: Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s)created or acquired (including complete addressand

locationof the capitalasset)..Not Applicabé

10. Specifythe reason(s),f the Companyhasfailed to spendtwo per cent of the averagenet profit asper

Section135(5):Not Applicable

PlaceSurat
Date:02.08.2022

Forthe Boardof Director
BhatiaCommunicationst. Retail (India) Limited

Sd/ r Sd/r
SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia
ManagingDirector WholeTimeDirector
IN:02063671 DIN:02063706
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Annexureb

MANAGEMENTDISCUSSIOMND ANALYSISREPORT

This section shall include discussionon the following matters within the limits set by the listed entity’s
competitiveposition:
Industrystructureand developments.
Opportunitiesand Threats.
Segment-wiser product wiseperformance.
Outlook
Risksaand Concerns
Internalcontrol systemsandtheir adequacy
Discussiomn financialperformancewith respectto operationalperformance.
. Material developmentsin HumanResources Industrial Relationsfront, includingnumber of people
employed.
i Detailsof significantchangedi.e.changeof 25%o0r more ascomparedto the immediatelyprevious
financialyear)in keyfinancialratios,alongwith detailedexplanationgherefor, including:

1. DebtorsTunover
InventoryTurnover
InterestCoveragdRatio
CurrentRatio
DebtEquityRatio
Operatirg Profit Margin (%)

7. NetProfit Margin (%)

or sectorspecificequivalentratios,asapplicable.

j- Detailsof anychangein Returnon Net Worth ascomparedto the immediatelypreviousfinancialyear
alongwith a detailedexplanationthereof.

Se@ e o0 oy

o0k wN

ThisReportcontainsforward tookingstatementsthat involverisksand uncertainties. TheCompary undertakes
no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward tooking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events,or otherwise.Actualresults,performancesor achievementscould differ materially
from thoseexpressedor impliedin suchforward tookingstatements.Thisreport shouldbe readin conjurction
with the includedfinancialstatementsandthe notes.
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Industry Structureand Developments

GlobalEconomic
Scenario

Thewar in Ukrainehastriggereda costlyhumanitariancrisisthat demandsa peacefulresolution.At the same
time, economicdamagefrom the conflictwill contribute to a significantslowdownin globalgrowth in 2022
andaddto inflation. Fuelandfood priceshaveincreasedapidly, hitting vulnerablepopulationsin low income
countrieshardest.Globalgrowth is projected to slowfrom an estimated6.1 percentin 2021to 3.6 percentin
2022and2023.Thisis 0.8and 0.2 percentagepointslower for 2022and 2023than projectedin January.
Beyond2023,globalgrowth isforecastto declineto about 3.3 percentoverthe mediumterm. War induced
commoditypriceincreasesandbroadenirg price pressuresaveled to 2022inflation projectionsof 5.7
percentin advancedeconomiesand8.7 percentin emergingmarketand developingeconomies—1.&nd2.8
percentagepoints higherthan projectedlast JanuaryMultilateral efforts to respondto the humanitarian
crisis,preventfurther economicfragmentation,maintaingloballiquidity, managedebt distresstackleclimate
changeand endthe pandemicare essential.

SourceWorld Economidutlook

Globalgrowth is expectedto moderatefrom 5.9in 2021to 4.4 percentin 2022—halfa percentagepoint lower
for 2022than in the OctoberWorld EconomidOutlook(WEO)Jargelyreflectingforecastmarkdownsin the two
largest economies.A revised assumptionremoving the Build Back Better fiscal policy packagefrom the
baseline, earlier withdrawal of monetary accommodation,and continued supply shortagesproduced a
downward 1.2 percertagepoints revision for the United States.In China, pandemicinduced disruptions
relatedto the zerotoleranceCOVIM 9 policy and protracted financialstressamongproperty developershave
induceda 0.8 percentagepoint downgrade.Globalgrowth is expectedto slowto 3.8 percentin 2023.
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Indian Economic
Scenario

India hasemergedasthe fastestgrowing major economyin the world and is expectedto be one of the top
three economicpowersin the world over the next 10 45 years,backedby its robust democracyand strong
partnerships.

After the secondinfection wavethat peakedin May, the recoveryis gainingmomentumand GDPis projected
to grow at 9.4%in fiscalyearFY202122 beforerevertingto 8.1%in FY202223 and 5¥2per centin FY202324.
Inflation hasremainedcloseto the upper band of the ReserveBankof India (RBI) but shouldebb as supply
chaindisruptionsare overcome.Financialmarketsremain strong and capital inflows support the build up in
reserves.

Industry Outlook and Trends

India providesa worldwide opportunity for short to mediumterm growth in consumerelectronicsspending.
Minimal penetration rates, as againstother upcomingmarkets,portray a better prospectto sellto first time
buyinghouseholdsalongwith replacementdevicesto the middleclass.

Growth in the Indian market for consumerelectronicscan be attributed to an increasein demand from
households, changing lifestyles of individuals, easier accessto credit, and rising disposableincomes.
Intentionalreductionby the Governmentin the import bill, coupledwith governmentand corporatespending,
is anticipatedto complementthe positivedemandin this market. TheIndia consumerelectronicssector has
attracted severalstronginvestmentsin the form of merger& acquisitionpoliciespracticedby key participants
of the globalmarketand other FDlinflows.

High production in the Indian electronics market can be attributed to pacedup demand for advanced
computers, mobile phones, TVs, and defenserelated electronics. The situation in this market mandates
manufacturersto keep themselvesupdated with the latest technologysinceit is eyeratchingto typical
consumersandtechnologicafeaturesplay an apexrole while sellingto higherincomeclassesTheconsumer
electronicssectorhasacquiredthe largestsharein the total productionof electronicgoodsin India.
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SmartphoneMarket

Thesmartphonessegmentheld the largestrevenueshareof over 30.0%in 2021.Increasedlisposabléncome,
the developmentof telecom infrastructure, the appearanceof budgetfriendly smartphones,and a rising
number of product launchesare all contributing to the smartphonemarket'srise in India. In addition, the
desire for highspeed data connectivity for integrated 10T (Internet of Things)applicationslike energy
managementaind smarthome devicess expectedto drive 5Gsmartphoneadoption.

Supplyconstraintshavecausedndiansmartphoneshipmentsto declinel per centyearon year(YoYY}o reach
over 38 million unitsin the first quarter of 2022,accordingo CounterpointResearch’sélarket Monitor. Supply
constraintsdue to the ongoingcomponentshortagesand demanddeclineduring the third COVIDL9 waveled

to this decline.

India’ssmartphonemarketregisteredits first ever Q1 declinein Q12022.Thequarter started on a slowernote
dueto the third COVIDL9 wave.However,demandpickedup in the fourth week of January Thecomponent
issueswere a major reasonfor this declineand affected almost all the brands. OEMsare adopting various
strategiesto tackle the supplyissuessuchas expandingthe supplierportfolio and increasinglocal sourcing.
However,the marketis expectedto remainmodestin Q22022 aswell due to supplydisruptionsarisingfrom
the COVIM 9 situationin China.

In February CounterpointResearchieported that Indiashippedmore than 10 million 5Gsmartphonesn 2021
for the first time, growingat 555%from the yearbefore. Totalsmartphoneshipmentsstood at 169 million last
years,up 11%.
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SegmentiViseor ProductiVise Performance

Overthe lastfew years,asa growth oriented companywe havefocusedon diversifyinginto other consumer
electronicsproductsaswe seea longrun way for growth in salesof these products.Thishashelpedusto only
emergeasa multi productbrandbut hasalsogrow our profitability margins.

With an ambitiousgrowth spree,in a period of just one year,the companyhasincreasedhe number of multi

productoutlets from amere 11in March2020to 95 in March 2021.Thismeansthat now 95 storesunder our
name sell electronic appliancessuch as Television,Refrigerator, Air Conditioners Air Coolers, Washing
Machinesand Microwavesthoughour prime businessstill remainsretail and wholesaledistribution of mobile
handsetstablets,datacardsand mobile accessoriesBesideghis, the conversiorrate is at a whopping98%.

Segment/Product Numberof Stores

Total Stores 126
OwnedRetailStores 112
Franchisedstores 14
Multi ProductOutlets 49
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MULTI
PRODUCT
OUTLETS

49

TOTAISTORES

OWNED
STORES

FRANCHISED
STORES

112 14

Thetotal revenueof the companystood at INR2517Million whichwasINR1957Million in previousyear.The
companynow ownsatotal of 126,out of which112are ownedstoresand 14 are franchised.

Outlook

OurCompanyoverthe lastyearhasheavilyinvestedtime and efforts in diversifyingthe productssoldthrough
our storesandthe resultis that we haveincreasedhe total numberof Multi Productstores.Thestoresof our
companyhasbeen spreadover the Gujaratcoveringalmosteveryareaeventhe rural and the remote areas.
Our decisionto investin this growth spreeroots from the fact that we are bullish on the demandof various
consumerelectronicitems asthe work from home culture spreadsThisis further echoedby the fact that even
though we were faced with repeatedtemporary store closuresdue to secondwave,we managedto posta
revenuegrowth of INR620Million in FY22.

Risksand Concerns

- Lossof businessdue to inclination of customersduring pandemictowards online shoppingstreams,in
orderto ensuresocialdistancing somecustomersare preferringto buy onlinewhenpossible.

- Supplychaindisruptions,mobilizingworkforce and keepingup with demandposesa risk, aswe expecta
dramaticincreasein demand whenvariouscompaniegeleasetheir 5Gphonesin India.
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- Many phone manufacturersoffering lucrative offers and earlyaccessdeals directly to the consumer
throughits B2Cchannelscanbecomedifficult to competewith.

- Rapidlyincreasingn the technologytrends, lesslife line of the products,outdatedratio increasesapidly.

- Risksarisingdue to the naturaland man made calamitiessuchasthe flood, war etc. Therisksarisingdue
to ongoingUkraineRussiaVar.

Internal Control Systemsand Their Adequacy

TheCompanyhasin placean adequatesystemof internal control commensuratewith its sizeand nature of its
business.Thesehave been designedto provide reasonableassurancethat all assetsare safeguardedand
protected againstlossfrom unauthorizeduseor dispositionandthat all transactionsare authorized,recorded
and reported correctly and the businessoperations are conducted as per the described policies and
proceduresof the Conpany. The Audit Committeeand the Managementhavereviewedthe adequacyof the
internal control systemsand suitablestepsare takento improvethe same

Discussioron FinancialPerformancewith respectto OperationalPerformance

While a lot of brick and mortar storesin multiple industriesincludingconsumerelectronicsthroughout the
pandemic,in FY2022the company’srevenuefrom operationsgrew to INR 2517 million, a growth of 33%
from FY2021.

EBITDAamein at aroundINR95 million, while PATstood at INR53 million. TheEBDTAmargin standsat 4%
and PATmargin at 2%.Thecompanymanagedio maintainits strongprofitability during this difficult yeardue
to a strongfoundationand loyal consumerbase.Thecompanywith better inventory managementdiversified
product portfolio, improvingconversionrate and new multi product outlets, realisedeconomiesof scalei.e.,
the company wasableto increasdts saleswithout muchincreasen input costs.

91



BHATIA’3 4" ANNUALREPORT

ThroughoutFY2022due to repeated supply chain disruptionsand cancellationof shipments,the company
activelypursuedbuildingup a goodinventoryto meet pent up demandfrom the public. Asa result of this, the
Purchaseof Stockin Tradeincreasedoy aboutINR641 Million or 36%from lastyear. Thisincreasein expenses
will yield higher future returns when demandrevivesand other competitorsface stock shortages All other
expenseshave remainedconsistent;however,the companyhad increasedits depreciationand amortization
costsby 14.67%this year.

Detailsof SignificantChangesn KeyFinancialRatios
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Thecompany’'sNet Profit Margin for FY2021hadanimpactdueto COVIOLY but in FY2022the companyhas
grownandis expectingto grow more in the upcomingFinancialyear.

Thecompany’'SOperatingProfit Marginfell down becauseof increasen Inventory& purchaseof Stockin
trade.
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* Debtto Equityratio for FY2022is0.33

Debtor's TurnoverRatiois an accountingmeasureusedto measurehow effectivea companyisin extending
creditaswell ascollectingdebts. Thecompany’scollectionof accountreceivablesasbeenefficient overthe
years,asit catersto the BZCsegment.

Inventory’sturnover Ratioindicatesthe rate at whicha companysellsandreplacests stockof goodsduringa
particularperiod. Thecompany’shigherinventoryTurnoverratio indicatesthe company’sefficiencyto convert
its inventoryquicklyinto Sales.

94



BHATIA’3 4" ANNUALREPORT

TheCompanyoverthe pastyearshasbeenableto maintaina healthy CurrentRatio,becauseof Better
InventoryManagemeniSystemin place.

TheCompanyis ableto maintaina healthyratio of 5.62.However the debt costburdenfor the companyin
absolutetermsisinsignificantasthe companyhasverylow Debton its BalanceSheet.
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TheCompanywitnesseda increasein RoEHowever,Net Profit marginremainedintact andthe company
expectsto improvethe return for its shareholdersn the comingyearswith improvementin Profitability &

Turnoverratios.
Place:Surat Forthe Baoard of Director
Date:02.08.2022 BhatiaCommunicationst Retail (India) Limited
Sd/ r Sd/r
SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia
ManagingDirector Whole TimeDirector
DIN:02063671 DIN:02063706
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Annexureb

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 andNwui2 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Pers&uied),
2014]

To,

The Members,

Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited
(CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336)

132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre,

Ring Road, Surat-395002

I/We have conducted the secretarial audit of the cong@iafh applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices b/s. Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited, (hereinafter called the
“company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manregrglovided me a reasoralasis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory complianaad expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my/our verification of thd/s. Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited, books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other recordsitained by the comparand also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents antiaired representatives duritige conduct of secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period coverimgnicealfiyear
ended or81%t March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processasd compliance-mechanismpface to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

In the wake of COVID-19 pandemic outbreak, we have relied on management representationds,ceraesne
and soft copies of documents receivey the company for issue of thigport. Physical verification was not
possible. So to that extent the report may be based on our presumption to the truttalofiatigiments and
representation.

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other recoritiedhbirivis.
Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited for the financial year ended &1 March, 2022according
to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1¢_RA") and the rules made there under;

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regolagi and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made therethad=tént of
Foreign Direct Investment, Owaas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowihgs;
regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2021-22

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribader the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable during the year:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Bdaof India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018he regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2021-22

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Slgased Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2@id;
regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2021-22

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Isswklasting of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
the regulation is not applicableduring the Financial Year 2021-22

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Regis to an Issue anB8hare Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of Indigl@ing of Equity Shares) Regulations, 20@8e
regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2021-22nd
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h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulationsgh20Egjulation
is not applicable during the Financial Year 2021-22

vi.  Other Laws Specifically pplicable to Company:
a. Income Tax Act, 1961
b. Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 and other indirect taxes
c. Labour Laws

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
1. Secretarial Standards with regard to the MeetinBadrd of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings
(SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
2. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the year under review, thecompany has generally complied with the provisions of the act, rules,
regulations and guidelines mentined above except following:

X Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang, Independent Director ¢tfie Company had traded ishares of the Company
when trading window was closed in violation of the Code of Internal Procedures and @cnfbr
regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders.

| further report that, based on the information provided byetltompany, its officers and authorised
representative during the conduct of the audit, and alsheoreview of reports by CS/CEO of the company, in

my opinion, adequate systems and processes and control mechanism exist in the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable general laws.

| further report, that the compliance by the company of applicable financial laws, like direct, indirect tax laws
and labour laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subyjéitby statutory

financial audit and other designated professionals.

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company dsly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executiveiectors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed geta$aon a
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a systeifor seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the mgetnd for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the chairman, the decismhsafithvere
unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

I/we further report that there are adequate systems and processhe tompany commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensurglgance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

| report further that, during the audit period, there weie specific events/actions rursuance othe aforesaid
laws, rules, regulations, etc. having a major begron the company’s aifaexcept the following:

() The company has sub-divided its Equity Shares into Re. 1/- per Share.

(ii) The Company has Altered Clause V of Memorandum of Association.

Place: SURAT Signature:
Date: Name of PCS: Ranijit Binod Kejriwal
FCS No.: 6116
C P No.: 5985
PR: 12004GJ424500
UDIN: ) '
This report is to be read with our letter dated 024 August, 2022 which is annexed and forms an integral

part of this report.
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To,

The Members,

Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited
(CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336)

132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre,

Ring Road, Surat-395002

Our Secretarial Audit report dated"®2ugust, 2022 is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial recerds the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion oadé secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processegees considered appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected dretsgial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Afcounts
the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliarg;edétaw
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate androdipplicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is nedthan assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the manageties conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: SURAT Signature:

Date: Name of PCS: Ranijit Binod Kejriwal

FCS No.: 6116
C P No.: 5985

PR: 12004GJ424500

UDIN: ) '
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TheDisclosuregpertainingto remunerationasrequired under section197(12)of the companiesact, 2013
Readwith Rule5 Of TheCompaniegAppointmentAndRemuneratiorOf ManagerialPersonnelAmendment
Rules2016Are AsUnder.

The percentageincreasein remuneration of each Director, Chief FinancialOfficer and CompanySecretary
during the financial year 20212022, ratio of the remuneration of the employeesof the Companyfor the

financial year 20212022 and the comparisonof remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel(KMP)
againstthe performanceof the Company are asunder:

Sr.  Nameof Director/KMPand Remunerationof %increasein Ratioof Remunerationof
No Designation Director/KMPfor F.Y. Remunerationin eachDirector/to median
. 20212022(Amount the F.Y.20212022 remunerationof
in Rs.) employees
1 SanjeeHarbanslaBhatia ~ 24,00,000 NIL 7.46:1
ExecutiveChairmancum
ManagingDirector
2 NikhilHarbanslaBhatia 24,00,000 NIL 7.46:1
Wholetime Director
3 Kamleshkumardarbanslal  NIL NIL NIL
Bhatia
Non ExecutiveDirector
4 RashmKapilArora NIL NIL NIL
Non Executivdndependent
Director
5 Arpit ArunkumarJain NIL NIL NIL
Non Executivdndependent
Director
6 RachitNareshNarang NIL NIL N.A.
Non Executivdndependent
Director
7 RavindraArunraoSojal 4,88,000 16.35% N.A.
ChiefFinanciaOfficer
8 Mittal NarendrabhaShah  1,02,500 10.93% N.A.
CompanySecretary&
ComplianceOfficer
9 SachinAgr wal 50,000 N.A. N.A.
CompanySecretar&
ComplianceOfficer
() Namesof the top ten employeesn terms of remuneratbn drawn from the Companyin the financial

year20210022:

1

Sanjeev

Bhatia B.com
ManagingDirector 22

200000

years

2503r
2008

43

N.A. Brother
Nikhil Bhatia
and Son of
Kamleshkuma

ri Bhatia

of 34.04
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2 Nikhil Bhatia H.S.C
WholeTimeDirector 12
years

3 TusharAnandSingh H.S.C

BranchManager 3years
4 Rohit Madatali B.Com

Samnani M.C.A

GeneralManager 8 years

5 Ravikumar Udaybhan H.S.C

Singh 6 years
BranchManager
6 ShivangBamnani B.Com
BranchManager Syears
7 Shah Gaurav H.S.C
Bipinkumar 3years
BusinessDevelopment
Manager
8 RavindraSojal B.A
ChiefFinanciaDfficer 13
years
9 Gauraw’ Rajguru B.com
Stockincharge 8 years
10  AshrafaliPatel B.com
Accountant 6
years

200000

71000

65990

56400

54800

49800

41800

40800

40400

0104r
2008

0108r
2020
0406r
2014

0106r
2016

0107r
2017

0106r
2021

0501r
2018

Aug,2014

0102r
2020

40

29

41

40

36

32

44

27

N.A.

N.A.

Hewlett
Packard
Enterpris
e

Snv
Distribut
ors
Private
Limited
N.A

Comptek
Compute
r
Educatio
ns

N.A.

EParisar
Tech
Private
Limited

Brother of 38.62

Sanjeev

Bhatia and

Son of
Kamleshkuma

ri Bhatia

No r
No

No r
No r
No r
No 0.05
No 0.03
No r

(i) Themedianremunerationof employeef the Companyduringthe FinancialyearwasRs.26,800/r
(iii) In the Financialyear, there the median remuneration of employeeshas decreasedby 0.74%as

comparedto previousyeatr.

(iv) Therewere 88 permanentemployeeson the rolls of the Companyason March31,2022;

(v) Averagepercentageinerease/decreasenadein the salariesof employeesother than the managerial
personnelin comparisonof the last financialyear is 0.13%.Averagepercentageincrease/decrease
madein the salariesof the manageriapersonnelin comparisorof the lastfinancialyearis 19.47%.

(vi) The remuneration of KMP is as per the recommendationsof the Nomination & Remuneration

Committee.

(vii) It is herebyaffirmed that the remunerationpaid is as per the remunerationpolicy for Directors,Key
ManagerialPersonnebnd other Employees.

PlaceSurat
Date:02.08.2022

SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia

Forthe Boad of Director
BhatiaCommunications% Retail(India) Limited

Sd/ r

ManagingDirector
DIN:02063671

Sd/r

Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia
WholeTimeDirector
DIN:0208706
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Annexure—8

STATEMENTOFRISKMANAGEMENT

All businesses are fraught with risk and the consumer electronics business is not different. Our company and
management seeks to minimize the adverse impacts of all kinds of risks, thus enabling the company to leverage
market opportunities effectively and enhance long term competitive advantage. The Company has adopted a
robust risk management policy, to identify, evaluate and mitigate business risksradadt stakeholder
interests. The Company’s Risk Management framevimeckises on timely identification of risks and initiates
mitigation strategies to steadily tide through crisis including sustainability, information security and so on.

The following are the riskassociated with our Company and have been identified by the management of the
company.

Inventory Visibility and Optimization:

With the ability of a consumer to order online and pickup at store, or the ability of a retailer to ship
from store, accurate inventory management is crucial. With customers having so many channel
options to purchase products, having the right product in stock has never been more critical or
challenging.

The supply chain challenges in the consumer eleicsalistribution industry are sure to create new
opportunities for those brands that embraceltimmbannel fulfilment gtategies. Creating a
competitive advantage for their industries with reamlined, efficient, and lean supply chain will

hAa LAy

Reversd_ogistics& Sustainability

Rapid changes in technology are resulting in the growth of e-waste. With increased regulation
around e-waste management, OEMs are being forced to undertake the responsible management of
returns. Consumers too are demanding products that have a lowered packaging footprint, lowered
used of hazardous material and safe product disgosrantees as part of sales agreements. There

is an economic opportunity in the recovery of components that the consumer electronics industry
has sensed. The economic value of Reverse Logistics and Sustainability initiatives will create more
stringent methods of evaluating vendors and suppliers.

Supplyinterruption Risk

Conversely, no company wants to experience magestabrtages that impact their ability to supply
finished product to their customers. Supply interruptions are the ultimate opportunity cost for
manufacturers.
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ExternalRisk

External Risk arises out of uncontrollable factors from outside the organization like downturn in
the economy, adverse policies or regulafoaynework or even natural disasters.

Technology/Obsolescendrisk:

Failure or delay in achieving the required levetafthnological sophistication or assessing market
needs properly could have a negative impact on the Company’s performance and financial
position.

OperationalRisk

Operational Risk arises out of ifiefencies or negligence in the e@tions or system of internal
controls. These are risk associated with nomg@ance with statuary requirements or policies,
not following the safety regulations, engaging in unlawful or fraudulent behavimeaches of
contractual agreement. As a company we haeelchand balances in places ensure such things
don’'t happen. Internal and statuanydits on regular interval pthe relevant checks in place.

Riskof Delayin completionof Order:

The Company might face delay in the completiomimafers due to various reasons which would
result in the imposition of penalties.

Place:Surat Forthe Boardof Director
Date:02.08.2022 BhatiaCommunicationst Retail(India) Limited
Sd/ r Sd/r
SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia Nikhil HarbanslaBhatia
ManagingDirector Whole TimeDirector
DIN:02063671 DIN:02063706
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Annexure B

Certificatein terms of Regulation17(8)of Securitiesand Exchangd3oardof India (Listing
Obligationsand DisclosureRequirements)Regulations2015

To
TheBoardof Directors
BHATIACOMMUNICATIONS RETAIINDIA)LIMITED

DearSir/Madam,

In accordancewith Regulation17(8) of Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Listing Obligationsand
DisclosureRequirementsRegulations2015,we certify that:

1. I havereviewedthe financialstatementsand the cashflow statementfor the financialyearendedMarch
31,2022andthat to the bestof my knowledgeandbelief:

a. Thesestatementsdo not containany materiallyuntrue statementor omit any materialfact or contain
statementsthat might be misleading;

b. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’saffairs and are in
compliancewith existingaccountingstandardsapplicabldawsandregulations.

2. Thereare,to the bestof my knowledgeand belief, no transactionsentered into by the Companyduring
the financialyearendedMarch 31, 2022 whichis fraudulent,illegalor violative of the Company’'sode of
conduct.

3. |l acceptresponsibilityfor establishingand maintaininginternal controlsfor financial reporting andthat |
have evaluatedthe effectivenessof internal control systemsof the Companypertaining to financial
reporting. | havenot come acrossany reportable deficienciesin the designor operation of suchinternal
controls.

4. | haveindicatedto the auditorsandthe Audit Committee:r
a. that there are no significantchangesn internal control over financialreporting during the financial
yearendedMarch31,2022;
b. there are no significantchangesin accountingpoliciesduring the financial year ended March 31,
2022;and
c. There have been no instancesof significant fraud of which we hawe become aware, involving
managemenbr an employeehavinga significantrole in the Company'snternal control system.

Place:Surat Byorder of Boardof Directors
Date:02.08.2022

Sd/r

RavindraArunrao Sojal
ChiefFinancialOfficer
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Annexure 10

DECLARATIGBYMANAGINDIRECTORHATTHEMEMBER®FBOARDBOFDIRECTORSND
SENIORMANAGEMENPERSONNHAVEAFFIRMEWITHTHECODEOFCONDUCDFBOARDDF
DIRECTORSNDSENIORIANAGEMENT

All the Membersof the Boardof Directorsof the Companyand SeniorManagementPersonnehave affirmed
compliancewith the Codeof Conductfor the financialyearended 315 March, 2022 as applicableto them as
laid down in CompaniesAct, 2013 with the code of conduct of Board membersand senior management

personnel.
Date:02.08.2022 ForBhatiaCommunicationst: Retail(India) Limited
Place:Surat
Sd/r
SanjeevHarbanslaBhatia

ManagingDirector
DIN:02063671
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Annexure 1

RPR& Co.
CharteredAccountants

9001,World TradeCenter,NearUdhnaDarwaja,RingRoad SuratB95002
Emailid: rpr@rprandco.com,Tel:261 8591630

AUDITOREERTIFICATIHN CORPORATEOVERNANCE

To
TheMembersof
BHATIACOMMUNICATIONS& RETAIINDIA)LIMITED.

We have examinedthe complianceof the conditionsof CorporateGovernanceby Bhatia Communications&
Retail (India) Limited (TheCompany)for the yearended31s March 2022 as stipulatedin Regulation27(2) of
SEB(ListingObligationAnd DisclosureRequirements)Regulation20150f the saidCompanywith BSH.imited.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governanceis the responsibility of the Company’s
management.Our examinationwas limited to the proceduresand implementationthereof, adopted by the
Companyfor ensuringthe complianceof the conditionsof CorporateGovernancelt is neither an audit nor an
expressiorof anopinionon the financialstatementof the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accordingto the explanationsgivento us, and the
representationsmade by the Directorsand the Managementand consideringthe relaxationsgranted by the
ministry of corporateaffairsand SEBWarranteddue to the spreadof the COVIDL9 pandemicwe certify that
the Company hascompliedwith the conditionsof CorporateGovernancesstipulatedin the abovementioned
SEB(ListingObligationsAnd DisclosureRequirements)Regulation2015.

We state that no investorgrievancesare pendingfor a period exceedingone month againstthe Companyas
per the recordsmaintainedby the StakeholdersRelationshipgCommittee.

Wefurther state that suchcompliances neither an assuranceasto the future viability of the Companynor the
efficiencyor effectivenessith the managementasconductedthe affairsof the Company.

ForRPR& Co.
CharteredAccountants

Sd/r

RaunagKankaria

Partner

UDIN: T7i7670i K 'z 001710
M. No.138361

FRNNo. 131964W

Place:"u&E §
Date: iTXi06 XTi11
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Annexure 2

CERTIFICATENONDISQUALIFICATI@¥DIRECTORS
(pursuantto Regulatior84(3)and Schedule/ ParaCclause(10)(i)of the SEB(ListingObligationsand
DisclosureRequirementsRegulations2015)

To,

TheMembers,
BHATIACOMMUNICATIONSRETAIINDIA)LIMITED
(CIN:L32109GJ2008PLC053336)

132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,

RingRoad Surat B95002

| haveexaminedthe relevantregisters records,forms, returns and disclosuregeceivedfrom the Directorsof

BHATIACOMMUNICATIONS: RETAIL(INDIA) LIMITEDhaving CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053386d having
registeredoffice at 132, Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad,Surat 895002(hereinafterreferredto as

‘the Company’)producedbefore me by the Companyfor the purposeof issuingthis Certificate,in accordance
with Regulation34(3) read with Schedulev ParaC Subclausel0(i) of the SecuritiesExchangaéBoardof India

(ListingObligationsand DisclosuréRequirementsRegulations2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and accordingto the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN)status at the portal www.mca.gov.inas considerednecessaryand explanations
furnishedto me by the Company& its officers,| herebycertify that none of the Directorson the Boardof the
Companyas stated below for the FinancialYear ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or
disqualifiedfrom being appointed or continuing as Directorsof companiesby the Searrities and Exchange
Boardof India,Ministry of CorporateAffairs,or anysuchother Statutory Authority.

S.No. Nameof Director DIN Date of appointmentin

Company
1. SANJEENARBANSLAHATIA 02063671 25/03/2008
2. NIKHIIHARBANSLAHATIA 02063706 01/04/2008
3. KAMLESHKUMARARBANSLAHATIA 02066517 30/03/2020
4, RASHMKAPIIARORA 07584412 05/01/2018
5. ARPIARUNKUMARAIN 08044841 05/01/2018
6. RACHINARESNARANG 08044845 05/01/2018

Ensuringhe eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of everyDirectoron the Boardis the responsibility
of the managementof the Company.Our responsibilityis to expressan opinion on these basedon our
verification. This certificate is neither an assuranceas to the future viability of the Companynor of the
efficiencyor effectivenesawith whichthe managementasconduded the affairsof the Company.

Sd/r

PlaceSurat Signature:

Date:02.08.2022 Nameof PCSRanjitBinodKejriwal
FCNo.:6116
CPNOo0.:5985

UDIN: &110ii0 11i07iid0
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RPR& Co.

CharteredAccountants

9001,World TradeCenter,NearUdhnaDarwaja,RingRoad SuratB95002
Emailid: rpr@rprandco.com,Tel:261 8591630

INDEPENDEMIUDITOR'BREPORT

TO
THEMEMBER®F
BHATIACOMMUNICATIONS RETAINDIA)LIMTED

Reporton the Audit of StandaloneFinancialStatements:

Opinion:

We haveaudited the accompanyingtandalonelnd ASfinancialstatementsof BHATIACOMMUNICATIONS
RETAILINDIA) LIMTED(*“The Company”)which comprisesthe BalanceSheetas on 31st March 2022, the
Statementof Profit and Loss(IncludingOther Comprehensivéncome) the Statementof Changan Equityand
the CashFlow statementfor the yearthen endedand notesto financialstatements,includinga summaryof
significantaccountirg policiesand other explanatoryinformation.

In our opinionandto the bestof our information and accordingto the explanationggivento us,the aforesaid
standalonefinancial statementsgive the information required by the GCompaniesAct, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Companies(Indian Accounting
StandardsRules2015,asamended,(“Ind As”) and other accountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedin India, of
the state of affairs of the companyasat 31st March 2022 and its profit and total comprehensivéncomeand
chargein equity andits cashflows for the yearendedon that date.

Basisfor Opinion

We conductedour auditin accordancewith the Standardon Auditing(SAskpecifiedunder Section143(10)of
the CompaniesAct 2013. Our responsibilitiesunder those standardsare further describedin the Auditor’s
Responsibilitiegor the Audt of the FinancialStatementssection of our report. We are independentof the
entity in accordancewith the Codeof Ethicsissuedby the Institute of CharteredAccountantsof Indiatogether
with the ethicalrequirementsthat are relevant to our audit of the financialstatementsunderthe provisionsof
the CompaniedAct, 2013 and the rulesthereunder,and we havefulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin
accordancewith these requirementsand the Codeof Ethics.We believe that the audit evidencewe have
obtainedis sufficientand appropriateto provide a basisfor our opinion.

KeyAudit Matters

Keyaudit matters are those mattersthat, in our professonal judgment,were of most significancen our audit
of the financialstatementsof the current period. Thesematters were addressedn the contextof our audit of
the financial tatements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinionon thesematters. We havedeterminedthe mattersdescribedbelowto be the keyaudit mattersto be
communicatedn our report.

Branchesand Franchise

The companyhas many franchisesand branchesand the companyreceivesadvances/securityleposit
from its variousfranchisesand the sameis adjusted againstthe amount due from them as on the
balancesheetdate. The companyalsoreceivesdepositfrom branchpartner towards securitydeposit
againststockprovidedto them and sameis shownin balarce sheetaslongterm liability.
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Auditor’'s Response

We get the completelist of franchiseand branchesfrom the managementand checkthat there is no
deviationin the securitydepositreceivedand stock providedto them. We also checkthe agreement
made with the branch partner and check whether proper disclosureis made regarding advances
receivedfrom branchpartnerandterm and conditionsof the agreement.

Management’'sRespomibility for the StandaloneFinancialStatements:

TheCompany’'8oardof Directorsis responsiblefor the mattersstatedin Section134(5)of the Companieg\ct,
2013 (“the Act”) with respectto the preparationand presentationof these standalonefinancial statements
that givea true andfair view of the financialposition, financialperformanceand cashflows of the Companyin
accordancewith the accountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedin India, includingthe AccountingStandards
specifiedunder Section133 of the Act. Thisresponsibilityalsoincludesmaintenanceof adequateaccounting
recordsin accordancewith the provisionsof the Ad for safeguardingthe assetsof the Companyand for
preventingand detectingfrauds and other irregularities;selectionand applicationof appropriate accounting
policies;makingjudgmentsand estimatesthat are reasonableand prudent; and design,implementationand
maintenanceof adequateinternal financialcontrols,that were operatingeffectivelyfor ensuringthe accuracy
and completenessof the accountingrecords, relevantto the preparation and presentationof the financial
statementsthat give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, managementis responsiblefor assessinghe Company’sability to

continue as a goingconcern,disclosingas applicable,matters related to goingconcen and usingthe going
concern basis of accounting unless managementeither intends to liquidate the Companyor to cease
operations,or hasno realisticalternativebut to do so.

TheBoardof Directorsare als responsibleor overseeinghe company’sSinancialreporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilityfor the Audit of the FinancialStatements

Ourobijectivesare to obtain reasonableassuranceabout whether the financialstatementsasa whole are free
from material misstatementwhether due to fraud or error, andto issuean auditor’'sreport that includesour
opinion. Reasoable assurances a high level of assurancebut is not a guaranteethat an audit conductedin
accordanceawith SAswill alwaysdetect a material misstatementwhen it exists.Misstatementscanarisefrom
fraud or error and are consideredmaterial if, individuallyor in the aggregate, they reasonablybe expectedto
influencethe economicdecisionf userstakenon the basisof thesefinancialstatements.

As part of an audit in accordancewith SAs,we exerciseprofessionaljudgment and maintain professional
scepticisnthroughoutthe audit. We also:

xldentify and assesghe risks of material misstatementof the financial statements,whether due to
fraud or error; to designand perform audit proceduresresponsiveto thoserisks;andto obtain audit
evidencethat is sufficientand appropriateto providea basisfor the auditor’sopinion. Therisk of not
detectinga material misstatementresultingfrom fraud is higherthan for one resultingfrom error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,misrepresentationspr the override of
internal control.

xObtainan understandingof internal control relevantto the auditin order to designaudit procedures
that are appropriatein the circumstancesUndersection143(3)(i)of the Companieg\ct,2013,we are
responsiblefor expressingour opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controlssystemin placeandthe operatingeffectivenessf suchcontrols.

xEvaluatethe appropriatenessof accountingpolicies used and the reasonablenes®of accounting
estimatesandrelateddisclosuresnadeby management.

xConcludeon the appropriatenes®f management’'siseof the goingconcernbasisof accountingand,
basedon the audit evidenceobtained, whether a material uncertainty existsrelated to eventsor
conditionsthat may castsignificantdoubt on the Company’sability to continueasa goingconcern.If
we concludethat a material uncertainty exists,we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
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report to the related disclosuresn the financialstatementsor, if suchdisclosuresare inadequate,to
modify the opinion. Our conclusionsare basedon the audit evidenceobtainedup to the date of the
auditor'sreport. However future eventsor conditionsmay causean entity to ceaseto continueasa
goingconcern.

xEvaluatethe overall presentation, structure and contert of the financial statements,includingthe
disclosuresandwhetherthe financialstatementsrepresentthe underlyingtransactionsand eventsin
amannerthat achievedair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitudeof misstatementsin the standalonefinancial statementsthat, individuallyor in
aggregate,makesit probablethat the economicalecisionsof a reasonablyknowledgeablauserof the financial
statementmay be influenced.We considerquantitative materiality and qualitative factor in (i) planningthe
scopeof our audit work andin evaluatingthe result of our work and (ii) to evaluatethe effect of any identified
misstatementsn the financialstatements.

We communicatewith those chargedwith governarce regarding,amongother matters, the plannedscope
and timing of the audit and significantaudit findings, includingany significantdeficienciesin internal control
that we identify duringour audit.

We alsoprovidethose chargedwith governancewith a statementthat we havecompliedwith relevantethical
requirementsregardingindependenceand communicatewith them all relationshipsand other matters that
mayreasonablybe thoughtto bearon our independenceandwhere applicablerelated safeguards.

Reporton Other Legaland RegulatoryRequirements:

1. Asrequired by the CompaniegAuditor's Report), Order, 2016 (order dated 29.03.2016, issuedby the
CentralGovernmentof Indiain terms of section143(11)of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (hereinafterreferred
to as‘order’), and on the basisof test checkaswe consideredappropriate and accordingto information
and explanationprovided to us, we enclosein the Annexure“A” statementon the matters specifed in
paragraphs3 and4 of the saidOrder.

2. Asrequiredby section143(3)of the Act,we report that:

2.1 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations,which to the best of our
knowledgeand beliefwere necessaryor the purposesof our audit

2.2 Inour opinion, proper booksof accountasrequired by law havebeenkept by the companyasfar as
appearsfrom our examinationof thosebooks.

2.3 TheBalanceSheet,Profit and Lossstatement (IncludingOther Comprehensivdncome), CashFlow
Statementand the statementof Changen Equitydealt with by this report are in agreemet with the
booksof account.

2.4 Inour opinion, the aforesaidfinancialstatementscomplywith the Ind ASspecifiedunder section133
of the Act, readwith Rule7 of the CompaniegAccounts)Rules2014.

2.5 Onthe basisof written representationsreceivedfrom the directors,ason March 31, 2022,taken on
record by the Board of directors, none of the directorsare disqualifiedas on March 31, 2022 from
beingappointedasadirectorundersection164(2)of the Act

2.6 With respectto the adequacyof financial controls over financialreporting of the companyand the
operativeeffectivenes®of suchcontrols,refer to our separatereport in “AnnexureB”.

2.7 With respectto the other matters to be includedin the Auditor’'s Reportin accordancewith the
requirementsof section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended,in our opinion and to the best of our
information and accordingto the explanatonsgivento us,the remunerationpaid by the Companyto
its directorsduringthe yearis in accordancewith the provisionsof section197 of the Act;and
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2.8 With respectto the others mattersto be includedin the auditor'sreport in accordancewith Rulel1
of the companies(audit and auditors) rules 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
andaccordingo the explanationgyivento us.

(i) Therewereno pendinglitigationswhichwould impactthe financialposition of the compary.

(ii) The conmpany did not have any material foreseeablelosseson long term contractsincluding

derivativecontracts.

(iif) Therewere no amountswhich were required to be transferredto the Investor Educationand

Protectionfund by the company.

(iv)(i) As per management’'srepresentation,no funds other than disclosedby way of notes to

accaints have been advancedor loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sourcesor kind of funds) by the companyto or in any other personor
entities, includingforeign entities (“Intermediaries”),with the understandingwhether recorded
in writing or otherwise,that the Intermediaryshall,whether, directly or indirectlylend or invest
in other personsor entitiesidentified in any mannerwhatsoeverby or on behalfof the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries"pr provideanyguarantee securityor the like on behalfof the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(i) Asper management'sepresentation,Therewere no fundswhich havebeenreceivedby the
companyfrom any person(s)or entities, includingforeign entities (“FundingParties”),with the
understanding,whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other personsor entities identified in any manner
whatsoeverby or on behalf of the FundingParty (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)or provide any
guarantee securityor the like on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiariesand

(i) Therepresentationreceivedfrom the companyunder subclause(i) and (ii) abovedoesnot
containany material mis statement.

(v) Thecompanyhasdeclaredor paid dividendin conpliancewith section123 of the companyAct

2013.

ForRPR& Ca
CharteredAccountants
FRN131964W

Date:28.05.2022

Place:Surat

Sd/r

RaunagKankaria

Partner

Mem No.138361
UDIN:22138361AJUCIY9130
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Annexure"A" to Auditors’ Report
(Referredto in of our report of evendate to the membersof BHATIAAELECOMMUNICATIGNRETAIUNDIALIMITEDRS
on the financialstatementsfor the yearendedMarch 31,2022)

Onthe basisof suchchecksaswe consideredappropriateandaccordingo the informationand explanationsgivento us
duringthe courseof audit, we state that:

1 Property, Plant, Equipnent and Intangible Assets

(&) | Whether the companyis maintainingproper records| YES
showingfull particulars,includingquantitative details
and situation of property, plant, equipment and
intangibleassets.

(b) | Whether these fixed assets have been physically| The managementconducted physical verification of
verified by the managementat reasonableintervals; | certain fixed assetsin accordancewith its policy of
whether any material discrepanciesvere noticed on | phystal verification in a phased manner. In our
such verification and if so, whether the same have | opinion, suchfrequencyis reasonablehavingregardto
beenproperlydealtwith in the booksof account; the size of the Compay and the nature of its fixed

assetsAsexplainedto us,the discrepanciesoticedon
physical verification as compared to book records
maintained,were not materialand havebeen properly
dealtwith in the booksof account.

(c) | Whethertitle deedsof immovablepropertiesare held | NA
in the name of the company.If not, provide details
thereof.

(d) | Whetherthe companyhasrevaluedits Property,Plant | No
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assetsor both during the year and, if so,
whetherthe revaluationis basedon the valuationby a
Registered/aluer.

(e) | Whether any proceedingshave been initiated or are | No
pendingagainstthe companyfor holding any benami
property under the BenamiTransactiongProhibition)

Act, 1988(45 of 1988)andrulesmadethereunder.
2 Inventories

() | Whether physicalverification of inventory has been | The managementconducted physical verification of
conductedat reasonablédntervalsby the management| inventory in accordancewith its policy of physical
and whether any material discrepanciesvere noticed | verification in a phased manner. In our opinion, such
andif so, how they havebeendealt with in the books | frequencyis reasonablehavingregardto the sizeof the
of account; Companyand the nature of its inventory. Asexplained

to us, the discrepanciesoticed on physicalverification
as comparedto book records maintained, were not
material and have been properly dealt with in the
booksof account.

(b) | Whether Company has availed Working Capital| NA
Loan(s¥rom banksor financialinstitutions by pledging
current assetsand the sanctionlimit(s) by combining
limit of all banksor financialinstitutions exceedRs5
Croreandif so. Whetherquarterlyresultor statement
filed by the company with such banks or financial
institutionsarein line with the acountingbooks.

3 LoanGranted

113



BHATIA’3 4" ANNUALREPORT

Whether the company has made investment in,

provide any guarantee or security or granted any
loans,securedor unsecuredto companiesfirms, LLPs
or anyother parties.

Yes

(@)

Whetherthe investmentmade,guaranteesprovided,
securitygivenandtermsand conditionsof the grant of
such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s
interest;

Asper explanationprovidedto us,YES

(b)

Whether receipt of the principalamount and interest
areregular.If not providedetailsthereof; and

Yes

(©)

if amount is overdue then total amount overdue for
more than 90 days and whether reasonable steps
have been taken by the companyfor recoveryof the
principalandinterest;

NA

(d)

Whether any loan or advancesgranted which has
fallen due during the year, has been renewed or

extendedor freshloansgrantedto settle the overdue
of existingloan givento the sameparty, If so, specify
the aggregate amount of such dues renewed or

extendedor settled by freshloan and the percentage
of the aggregateto the total loansor advancesin the

nature of loangrantedduringthe year.

No

(e)

whether the company has granted any loans or
advancesin the nature of loans either repayableon
demandor without specifyingany terms or period of
repayment, if so, specify the aggregate amount,
percentage thereof to the total loans granted,
aggregateamount of loans granted to promoters,
related partiesasdefinedin clause(76) of the section
2 of the companiesAct2013

No

Loans nvestmentsand guarantees

In respect of loans, investments and guarantees,
whether provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the
Companiedct, 2013havebeen compliedwith. If not,
providedetailsthereof.

As explainedto us and from the recordsverified, the
company has generally complied the provision of
section185and 186 of TheCompaniesAct,2013.

Deposit

In casethe companyhas accepteddeposits,whether
the directivesissuedby the ReserveBankof Indiaand
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisionsof the CompaniesAct, 2013 and
the rules framed thereunder, where applicable have
been complied with? If not, the nature of such
contraventions be stated; If an order hasbeenpassed
by CompanyLaw Board or National CompanyLaw
Tribunalor ReserveBankof India or any court or any
other tribunal, whether the samehasbeen complied
with or not?

NIL

CostRecords

Whether maintenance of cost records has been
specified by the Central Government under subr
section(1) of section148 of the CompaniesAct, 2013
and whether suchaccountsand recordshavebeenso

madeand maintained;

Accordingo the information and explanationggivento
us and the record examined by us, the company
maintains cost record as specified under Companies
Act,2013.

Statutory dues
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(@)

whether the company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees'state insurance,incometax, salestax, ,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,value
added tax, and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities and if not, the extent of the
arrearsof outstandingstatutory duesasat the lastday
of the financialyear concerned for a period of more
than six months from the date they becamepayable,
shallbeindicatedby the auditor.

Accordingo the information and explanationggivento
us and the record examinedby us, the companyis
generally regular in depositing with appropriae
authorities undisputed statutory dues including
ProvidentFund Employee’sState Insurance,Income—
tax, Salegax and other material Statutory Dues
applicableto it. There were no arrears as at, 31st
March,2022for a period of more than sixmonthsfrom
the date they becamepayable.

(b)

Whereduesof incometax or salestax or servicetax or
duty of customsor duty of exciseor value addedtax
have not been depositedon accountof any dispute,
then the amounts involved and the forum where
dispute is pending shall be mentioned. (A mere
representationto the concernedDepartmentshallnot
be treated asa dispute).

NIL

Particulars F.Y.

AMOUNT(InRs.) STATUS

IncomeDisclosedn TaxAssessmenbut not properly
accountedin Booksof Accounts.

Whether any transactionsnot recorded in books of
account have been surrendered or disclosed as
incomeduring the year in the tax assessmentsinder
the Income Tax Act, 1961, if so, whether the
previously unrecorded income has been properly
recorded by the companyin the books of accounts
duringthe year.

NA

Defaultin Repayment

(@)

Whetherthe companyhasdefaultedin repaymentof
duesto a financial institution or bank or debenture
holders?If yes,the period andamountof defaultto be
reported (in caseof banksand financial institutions,
lenderwisedetailsto be provided).

NO

(b)

Whether the company has been disclosed wilful
defaulterby anyfinancialinstitution (includingBanks)

NO

(©

Whether term loan were appliedfor the purposefor
which the loanswere obtained, if not, the amount of
loansodivertedandthe purposefor whichit isused.

Yes

(d)

Whether fund raised on short term basishave been
utilised for long term purpose,if yes,the nature and
amountto beindicated

NO

(e)

Whether the companyhas taken any fund from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associatesor joint
ventures, if so, details thereof with nature of such
transactionandthe amountin eachcase.

NA

(f)

Whether the company has raised loans during the

yearon the pledgeof securitiesheldin its subsidiaries,
joint venturesor associatecompanies,if so, provide

details thereof and also report if the company has
defaultedin repaymentof suchloanraised.

NA
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Money raised

(@)

Whether moneysraised by way of initial public offer
or further public offer (including debt instrument)
were applied for the purposesfor which those are
raised.If not, the detailstogetherwith delays/ default
and subsequent rectification, if any, as may be
applicable be reported;

No

(b)

Whether the company has made any preferential
allotment / private placementof sharesor fully or
partly convertible debenturesduring the year under
review and if so, as to whether the requirement of
Sectiond42 and section62 of the Companiesct, 2013
have been complied with and the fund raised have
been used for the purposefor which the fund were
raised, if not , the details in respect of amount
involvedandnature of non compliances.

No

Fraud

(@)

Whether any fraud by the companyor any fraud on
the Companyby its officers/ employeeshas been
noticed or reported during the year; If yes,the nature
andthe amountinvolvedbe indicated.

To the best of our knowledge and accordingto the
information and explanationsgivento us, there have
beenno casesof fraud on or by the Companynoticed
or reportedduringthe yearunderreport

(b)

whether any report under subsection (12) of section
143 of the CompaniesAct has been filed by the
auditorsin FormADTH# asprescribedunderrule 13 of
CompanieqAudit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with the
CentralGovernment;

No

(©

whether the auditor has considered whistle blower
complaints, if any, received during the year by the
company

NA

Nidhi Company

Whether the Nidhi Companyhas complied with the
Net OwnedFundin the ratio of 1:20to meet out the
liability and whether the Nidhi Company is
maintaining 10% liquid assets to meet out the
unencumberediability.

NA

RelatedPartiesTransactions

Whether all transactionswith the related parties are
in compliancewith Section188and 177 of Companies
Act, 2013where applicableand the detailshavebeen
disclosedin the FinancialStatementsetc as required
by the accounting standards and CompaniesAct,
2013.

Asper the information and explanationprovidedto us
and records produced before us, the company has
generallycompliedwith the provisions.

Internal Audit

Whether the companyhas an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its
business,if Yes,whether the reports of the Internal
Auditorsfor the period underaudit were considered.

Yes

Non cashTransactions

Whetherthe companyhasenteredinto any non cash
transactionswith directorsor personsconnectedwith
him and if so, whether provisionsof Section192 of

Companie#\ct,2013havebeencompliedwith.

NA

Registrationwith RBI
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17

18

19

20

(@)

Whether the company is required to be registered
under section45 tA of the ReserveBankof India Act,
1934andif so,whetherthe registrationis obtained.

NA

(b)

Whetherthe companyhasconductedNon Bankingor
HousingFinanceactivitieswithout a valid Certificateof
Registration(CoR)from RBlas per ReserveBank of
IndiaAct, 1934

NA

(©

Whethe the companyis Core Investment Company
(ClCasdefinedin the regulationsmade by the RBI,if

so, whether it continue to fulfill the criteria of a CIC,
and in case the company is an exempted or

unregisteredCIC,whether it continuesto fulfill such
criteria.

NA

CashLosses

Whetherthe companyhasincurred cashlossesin the
financial year and in the immediately preceding
financialyearif sothe amountof cashlosses.

No

Resignationof PreviousStatutory Auditor

Whether there has been any resignation of the
Statutory Auditor during the year, if so, whether
consideration has been taken for the issues,
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors.

Yes

Material Uncertainty

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and

expecteddates of realisation of financial assetsand

payment of financial liabilities, other information

accompanyinghe financial statements,the auditor’s
knowledgeof the Boardof Directorsand management
plans,whether the auditor is of the opinion that no

material uncertaintyexistsason the date of the audit
report that company is capable of meeting its

liabilities existingat the date of balancesheetasand

when they fall due within a period of one year from

the balancesheetdate;

Yes

CorporateSocialResponsibility

(@)

whether, in respectof other than ongoing projects,
the company has transferred unspent amount to a
Fund specifiedin ScheduleVIl to the CompaniesAct
within a period of six months of the expiry of the
financial year in compliancewith second proviso to
subsection(5) of section135of the saidAct;

NO

(b)

whether any amount remaining unspent under subr
section (5) of section 135 of the CompaniesAct,
pursuantto any ongoingproject, hasbeentransferred
to specialaccountin compliancewith the provisionof

subsection(6) of section135of the saidAct;

NO
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21

Qualificationor AdverseRemarkfor CFSCompanies

Whetherthere havebeenany qualificationor adverse
remark by the respectiveauditors in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) order (CARO)reports of the
companies included in the Consolidated Financial
Statement,if yesthe detailsof the companiesand the
paragraphnumber of the CARQeport containingthe

gualificationsor adverseremark.

NA

ForRPR& CO.
CharteredAccountants

Sd/r
RaunagKankaria
Partner

M No:138361
FRN131964W
Date: 28.05.2022
Place SURAT
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ANNEXUREB TOTHEAUDITORREPORT

Reporton the Internal FinancialControlsunder Clause(i) of Subsection3 of Section143of the Companies
Act, 2013(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BHATIACOMMUNICATION&
RETAIKINDIA)LIMITED(“The Company”)as of 31 March 2022in conjunctionwith our audit of the financial
statementsof the Companyfor the yearendedon that date.

Managemaent's Responsibilityfor Internal FinancialControls

The Company’smanagements responsiblefor establishingand maintaininginternal financialcontrols based
on the internal control over financialreporting criteria establishedoy the Companyconsideringthe essential
componentsof internal control stated in the GuidanceNote on Audit of Internal FinancialControls over
FinancialReportingissuedby the Institute of CharteredAccountantsof India (‘ICAI’). Theseresponsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenanceof adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuringthe orderly and efficient conduct of its business,including adherenceto

compary’s policies,the safeguardingof its assets,the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracyand completenessof the accountingrecords, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, asrequiredunderthe Companie#\ct,2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Ourresponsibilityis to expressan opinion on the Company'sinternal financialcontrolsover financialreporting

basedon our audit. We conductedour audit in accordancewith the GuidanceNote on Audit of Internal
FinancialControlsover FinancialReporting(the “GuidanceNote”) and the Standardson Auditing, issuedby

ICAland deemedto be prescribedunder section143(10)of the CompanieAd, 2013,to the extentapplicable
to an audit of internal financialcontrols, both applicableto an audit of Internal FinancialControlsand, both

issuedby the Institute of CharteredAccountantsof India. ThoseStandardsandthe GuidanceNote require that

we complywith ethical requirementsand plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonableassuranceabout
whether adequde internal financial controls over financial reporting was establishedand maintainedand if

suchcontrolsoperatedeffectivelyin all materialrespects.

Our audit involves performing proceduresto obtain audit evidence about the adequacyof the internal
financial cortrols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understandingof internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessinghe risk that a material weaknessexists,and testing and evaluatingthe
designand operating effectivenessof internal control basedon the assessedisk. The proceduresselected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessmenbf the risks of material misstatementof the
financialstatements whether dueto fraud or error.

We believethat the audit evidencewe have obtainedis sufficientand appropriateto provide a basisfor our
audit opinionon the Company’sinternal financialcontrolssystemoverfinancialreporting.

Meaningof Internal FinancialControlsover FinancialReporting

A company'sinternal financial control over financial reporting is a processdesignedto provide reasonable
assuranceregarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
externalpurposesin accorcancewith generallyacceptedaccountingprinciples.A company'sinternal financial
control over financialreporting includesthose policiesand proceduresthat (1) pertain to the maintenanceof
recordsthat, in reasonabledetail, accuratelyandfairly reflect the transactionsand dispositionsof the assetsof
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the company; (2) provide reasonableassurancethat transactionsare recorded as necessaryto permit
preparation of financial statementsin accordancewith generallyacceptedaccountingprinciples,and that
receipts and expendituresof the company are being made only in accordancewith authorisations of
managementand directors of the company;and (3) provide reasonableassuranceregardingprevention or
timely detection of unauthorisedacquisition,use, or disposition of the company'sassetsthat could have a
materialeffect on the financialstatements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal FinancialControlsover FinancialReporting

Becauseof the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibilityof collusionor improper managemeniverride of controls, material misstatementsdue to error or
fraud may occurand not be detected.Also,projectionsof any evaluationof the internal financialcontrolsover
financialreporting to future periodsare subjectto the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may becomeinadequatebecauseof changesin conditions,or that the degreeof complancewith
the policiesor proceduresmaydeteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Companyhas,in all materialrespects,an adequateinternal financialcontrols systemover

financialreporting and suchinternal financialcontrols over financialreporting were operatingeffectively asat

31 March 2022, basedon the internal control over financial reporting criteria establishedby the Company
consideringthe essentialcomponentsof internal control stated in the GuidanceNote on Audit of Internal

FinancialControlsOverFinanciaReportingissuedby the Institute of CharteredAccountantf India.

ForRAR& Co.
CharteredAccountants
FRN131964W
Date:28.05.2022
PlaceSurat
Sd/r
RaunadKantaria
Partner
MemNo.138361
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336
132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002

Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2022

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31th March, 2022 31st March, 2021
ASSETS
(1) |Non-Current Assets

a [Property, plant and equipment 2 721.685 639.510

b [Capital work-in-progress - -

¢ |Invetsment Property

d |Goodwill 2 29.000 29.000

e [Other Intangible Assets - -

f |Intangible assets under development - -

g [Biological Assets other than bearer plants - -

h |Financial Assets

(i) Investments - -
(ii) Trade Receivable - -
(i) Loans 3 300.407 595.479
(iii) Other Financial Assets 3 1,815.206 1,690.630

i |Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - -

j |Other Non Current Assets - -
Total Non-Current assets 2,866.298 2,954.619

(2) |Current Assets

a [Inventories 4 4,093.547 2,896.943

b |Financial Assets
(i) Investments - -
(ii) Trade Receivables 5 537.683 492.146
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 183.287 162.444
(iv) Bank Balance other than (iii) above - -
(v) Loans 7 563.068 398.462
(vi)Others - -

¢ [Current Tax Assets (Net) - -

d |Other Current Assets - -
Total Current assets 5,377.585 3,949.996
Total Assets 8,243.884 6,904.614
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) |Equity
(i) Equity Share capital 8 1,251.520 1,251.520
(i) Other Equity 9 3,370.055 2,856.312
Total Equity 4,621.575 4,107.832
(2) [Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
a |Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10 163.812 139.793
(ia) Lease Liability - -
(ii) Trade Payables - -
(iif) Other Financial Liabilities - -

b |Provisions 11 37.433 33.477

c |Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 7.272 13.741

d |Other non-Current Liabilities 12 623.894 580.000
Total non-current liabilities 832.411 767.010

122



®3)

(¢

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13 1,359.700 952.186
(ia) Lease Liability - -
(ii) Trade payables 14 - -
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises; and ) )
(B) Total Outstanding dges of creditors other than 1,239.757 932.373
micro and small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 15 0.491 0.444
Other Current liabilities - -
Provisions 16 189.950 144.769
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
Total current liabilities 2,789.897 2,029.772
Total Equity and Liabilities 8,243.884 6,904.614

The accompanying notes including other explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For RPR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

6G 6G
Raunaq Kankaria Sanjeev Bhatia Nikhil Bhatia
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
M No: 138361 DIN: 02063671 DIN:02063706

FRN: 131964W

Date : 28.05.2022 6G 6G

Place: SURAT

Company Secretary C.F.O.
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDING ON 31.03.2022

(Amount in Lacs)

PARTICLULARS NNc’ge 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
| Revenue From Operations 17 23,347.165 17,292.178
Il Other income 18 1,828.528 1,679.486
Il TOTAL INCOME 25,175.693 18,971.665
IV Expenditures
Cost of Materials Consumed - -
Purchase of Stock In trade 24,099.827 17,683.196
Changes in inventory of finished goods, work-in-progress and 19
Stock-in-Trade (1,196.604) (666.441)
Employee benefit expenses 20 373.272 350.867
Financial costs 21 131.981 133.338
Depreciation & Amortization 2 115.311 100.557
Other Expenses 22 944.265 839.258
V  TOTAL EXPENSES 24,468.052 18,440.776
VI  Profit before Exceptional items & tax 707.641 530.889
Add /Less : Exceptional ltems - -
VII Profit Before Tax 707.641 530.889
Tax expense :- - -
Current Tax 186.845 141.716
Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Deferred Tax (6.469) (2.572)
Earlier Year Taxes - 17.254
Less: MAT credit entitlement - -
VIl Profit /(Loss) from Continuing Operations 527.264 374.492
IX  Profit /(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations - -
Less: Tax Expenses of Discontinuing Operations - -
X Profit /(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations after Tax - -
Xl  Profit / (Loss) for the year 527.264 374.492
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & loss 3.981 5588
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit & loss (1.002) (1.406)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit &loss - -
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
&loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2.979 4,182
Total comprehensive income for the year 530.243 378.673
Xl Earning per Equity Share
Basic 0.421 0.299
Diluted 0.421 0.299
See accompanying notes to the financial statement
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For RPR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
6G 6G
6G Sanjeev Bhatia Nikhil Bhatia
Managing Director Whole Time Director
Raunag Kankaria DIN: 02063671 DIN:02063706
Partner
M No: 138361

FRN: 131964W

Date : 28.05.2022
Place: SURAT

6G
Company Secretary

6G
C.F.O.
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2022

(Amount in Lacs)

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Before Tax and Extraordinary Items 707.641 530.889
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 108.843 97.985
Financial Costs 131.981 133.338
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 948.465 762.212
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories (1,196.604) (666.441)
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivable (45.537) 95.736
Decrease/(Increase) in Provision (Non Current) 3.956 2.921
Decrease/(Increase) in Provision (Current) 45,181 (50.985)
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Payable 307.385 (197.482)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non Current Liability 43.894 423.250
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Liability(Financial) 0.047 (38.018)
Cash generated from Operations 106.786 331.194
Income Tax Paid (181.379) (157.803)
Adjustments to OCI 3.981 5.588
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities A) (70.612) 178.978
B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase/Sale of Fixed Assets (197.487) (86.868)
Loans & Advances 5.889 (122.090)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (191.598) (208.958)
C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Costs (131.981) (133.338)
Increase in Share Capital - -
Increase in Reserves & Surplus - -
Dividend Paid (16.500) (132.000)
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) Borrowings (Long-Term) 24.019 (79.337)
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) Borrowings (Short-Term) 407.514 93.440
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities © 283.052 (251.235)
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 20.843 (281.215)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 162.444 443.660
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 183.287 162.444
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For RPR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
6G 6G
6G Sanjeev Bhatia Nikhil Bhatia

Raunag Kankaria
Partner

M No: 138361
FRN: 131964W

Date : 28.05.2022
Place: SURAT

Managing Director
DIN: 02063671

6G

Company Secretary

Whole Time Director
DIN:02063706

6G
C.F.O.
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002

Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

NOTE 1

CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Bhatia Communications & Retail (INDIA) Limited is a company domiciled in India and Incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The company is engaged into retail and wholesale distribution business of mobile handsets, tablets, data-
cards, mobile accessories, mobile related products, Home appliances and other electronic items.The company caters to the domestic
markets.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

a. Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the Ind AS) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

b. Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
- certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value,

- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

i. Current and non-current classification
The assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheet are classified on a "current/non-current basis".
An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date, or

- Cash or Cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non -current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of
assets and liabilities.

ii. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either:

-in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

-in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
Where required/appropriate, external valuers are involved.

126



All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

-Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2 (if level 1 feed is not available/appropriate) - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

-Level 3 (if level 1 and 2 feed is not available/appropriate) - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the
carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of reporting period during which change has
occurred.

iii. Revenue Recognition :
Income and expenditure are recognized and accounted on accrual basis as and when they are earned or incurred. Revenue from

sales transaction is recognized as and when the significant risk and reward attached to ownership in the goods is transferred to the
buyer.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on completion of sale of goods and is recorded net of trade discount and rebates and
GST is accounted for on exclusive accounting method which does not get included in Sales.

iv. Income tax:
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable

income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences.

Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. The provision for current tax is made at the rate of tax as applicable for the income of the previous year as defined under the
Income tax Act, 1961. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provision where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date arising between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the financial reporting purpose at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

v. Impairment of Asset

An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.
During the year , there is no impairment of assets.

vi. Cash & Cash Equivalents :

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are term deposit balances, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to in significant risk of changes in value

127



vii. Inventories :
Inventories are being valued as under : (As taken ,Valued and certified by the management)
Traded Goods at Lower of Cost or Net realizable Value.

viii. Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets:
Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit
and Loss), and
- those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets

are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through Profit and Loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through

Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at:
Fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through Profit and Loss), or amortized cost.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI') or fair
value through Profit and Loss (‘FVTPL") till de-recognition on the basis of (i) the entity's business model for managing the financial
assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised cost:
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interest are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortized cost is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized or impaired. Interest income from these financial

assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI):
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows

represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL):
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which it arises. Interest income from

these financial assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are initially measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial liability not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue/origination of the financial liability.
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Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in statement of profit and loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in
statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

ix. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Iltems of Property, plant and equipment acquired or constructed are initially recognized at historical cost net of recoverable taxes,

duties, trade discounts and rebates, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The historical cost of Property, plant
and equipment comprises of its purchase price, borrowing costs and adjustment arising for exchange rate variations attributable to

the assets, including any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended use.
Capital Work-in-Progress represents Property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use as at the reporting date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the plant and equipment separately, if the component/part
has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the plant and equipment and has useful lives that is materially different from that of
the remaining plant and equipment.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Gains and losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Property, plant and equipment
recognized as at April 1, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation method
Depreciation on fixed assets are provided on Straight line Method in accordance with requirements of Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013.

X. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated

amortization/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intented use, net changes on foreign exchange contracts and

adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit & loss when the asset is derecognized.

xi. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past events, it is probable that an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation.

129



Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed for :-
- when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or
- a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent  Liabilities ; HDFC Bank Itd had given Bank Guarantee of Rs 2.5 Crore to Xiaomi Technology India Private
Limited on behalf of the company against Hypothecation of Stock & Book Debts of the Company and Lien Mark of Fixed
Deposit of Rs. 62.50 Lacs.

xii. Earnings per Share :
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, etc. For the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Amount and Share in Lacs

EARNING PER SHARE : 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Basic:
Profit after tax as per accounts 527.264 374.492
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,251.520 1,251.520
Basic EPS 0.421 0.299
Diluted:
Profit after tax as per accounts 527.264 374.492
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,251.520 1,251.520
Add: Weighted average no. of potential equity shares - -
Weighted average no. of shares o/s for diluted EPS 1,251.520 1,251.520
Diluted EPS 0.421 0.299
During the year, the company has Sub-divided equity shares having face value of Rs.10/- each fully paid up into face value
of Re. 1/- each fully paid up , as recommended by Board of Directors and approved by shareholders of the company. The
Earnings Per Share have been calculated/ restated, as applicable  for all the period(s) presented after considering the new
number of equity shares post such sub-division in line with the provisions of the applicable IND AS and to make figures of

EPS comparable with previous period/ year.
xiii. Employee's Benefit :

Provident Fund and ESIC : Provident fund and ESIC contributions are made as per defined scheme and the contribution is charged
to statement of Profit & Loss A/c of the year when it becomes due. The company has no other obligation other than to contribute and
deposit to respective authorities.

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of Profit & Loss A/c for the year in which the related
service is rendered.

Long term employee benefit are recognized as an expense in the statement of Profit & Loss A/c for the year in which the employee
has rendered service.

The Company’'s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The
present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the
present value are based on the market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date. Remeasurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in acturial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur
directly in other comprehensive income.
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Actuarial Assumption

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

Gratuity( F.Y.2021-22)

Gratuity( F.Y.2020-21)

Discount Rate (Per annum)

7.25% per annum

7.00% per annum

Salary Growth Rate

5.00% per annum

5.00% per annum

Retirement Age

65 Years

65 Years

Mortality

IALM 2012-14

IALM 2012-14

Withdrawal Rate

5.00% per annum

5.00% per annum

Table Showing Present Value of Obligation

Period 01-04-2021 to: | 01-04-2020 To:
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the Period 35.124 31.913
Interest Cost 2.546 2.234
Current Service Cost 5.846 6.565
Past Service Cost - -
Benefits Paid (if any) - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss -3.981 -5.588
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the Period 39.535 35.124
Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Period As on : 31-03- As on : 31-03-
2022 2021

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the Period 39.535 35.124
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of period - -
Net Liability/(asset) recognized in Balance Sheet and related analysis 39.535 35.124
Funded Status- Surplus/ (Deficit) -39.535 -35.124 |
Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss:

From 01-04- From 01-04-
Period 2021 To: 31-03- |2020 To: 31-03-

2022 2021
Interest Cost 2.546 2.234
Current Service Cost 5.846 6.565
Past Service Cost - -
Expected Return on plan asset - -
Expenses to be recognized in P&L 8.392 8.799
Other comprehensive (income) / expenses (Remeasurement)

From 01-04- From 01-04-

Period 2021 To: 31-03- |2020 To: 31-03-
2022 2021

Cumulative unrecognized actuarial(gain)/loss opening. B/F -14.966 -9.378

Actuarial (gain)/loss - obligation -3.981 -5.588

Actuarial (gain)/loss - plan assets - -

Total Actuarial (gain)/loss -3.981 -5.588

Cumulative total actuarial(gain)/loss. C/F -18.946 -14.966
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Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation: Maturity analysis of benefit obliga tions.

01 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 2.103
01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 0.556
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 0.571
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 0.571
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2027 0.569
01 Apr 2027 Onwards 35.167

Sensitivity Analysis Gratuity Plan

Sensitivity Analysis: Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and
expected salary increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented
below may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumption
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given
below:

Period As on : 31-03-2022

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 39.535 @ Salary Increase Rate : 5%, and discount rate :7.25%
Liability with x% increase in Discount Rate 35.328; x=1.00% [Change (11)% ]

Liability with x% decrease in Discount Rate 44.638; x=1.00% [Change 13% ]

Liability with x% increase in Salary Growth Rate 44.704; x=1.00% [Change 13% ]

Liability with x% decrease in Salary Growth Rate 35.209; x=1.00% [Change (11)% ]

Liability with x% increase in Withdrawal Rate 40.576; x=1.00% [Change 3% ]

Liability with x% decrease in Withdrawal Rate 38.297; x=1.00% [Change (3)% ]

xiv. Cash flow statement :

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

xv. Loan, Advances & Security Deposit :

Balances of Loans and Advances, Debtors, Creditor, Banks are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. The company receives
advance/ security deviation from it's various franchisee(s) and the same is adjusted against the amount due from them as on the
date of balance sheet. The Company also receives deposit from branch partner towards security deposit against stock provided to
them and same is shown in balance sheet as other non current liability.

xvi. Accounting for Indirect Taxes (GST)

The Company is recording sales and purchases on exclusive method and GST are not passed through the profit and Loss accounts
of the company. The Effect of Indirect Taxes (GST) on Sales will be as under:
Amount In Lacs

Gross Sales 27,577.156
Less: GST 4,229.991
Net Sales 23,347.165

Amount in Lacs
xvii. Break-Up of auditors renumeration :

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
As Auditor 0.350 0.350
Tax Audit 0.150 0.150
TOTAL: 0.500 0.500
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xviii. Related Party Discourses (As identified by management) :
()The disclosures of transactions with the related parties as required by IND AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are given as
under. Related parties have been identified on the basis of representation made by the management of the company and
information available with the company.
Name of the related party and description of relationship:

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & Director
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia (Execuitve Director)
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia (Executive Director)

Kamleshkumari Harbanslal Bhatia ( Non- executive Director)
Rashmi Kapil Arora (Independent Woman Director)

Arpit Arunkumar Jain (Independent Director)

Rachit Naresh Narang ( Independent Director)

Mittal Shah (Company Secretary) - Resigned on 01/11/2021
Sachin Agrawal (Company Secretary ) * Appointed on 01/12/2021

Ravindra Sojal (Chief Financial Officer)

Relatives of KMP & Director
Garima Bhatia

Hema Bhatia

Naresh Bhatia

Arsh Bhatia (Minor)

Jetr Bhatia (Minor)
Parishi Bhatia(Minor)
Rajendra Agarwal
Shakuntala Devi Agrawal
Amita Agrawal

Arunrao Sojal

Vimlaben Sojal

Harshita Sojal

Krunal Ravindra Sojal
Roshani Ravindra Sojal
Ashok Tandan

Pramod Tandan

Kapil Arora

Arunbhai Jain

Hansa Jain

Naresh Narang
Manjuben Narang

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or their relatives:

Arsh Bhatia Marriage Trust
Parishi Bhatia Marriage Trust
Harbanslal Bhatia HUF
Naresh Bhatia HUF

Nikhil Bhatia HUF

Sanjeev Bhatia HUF

Bhatia Mobile

Bhatia Communication

(i) Transaction during the year with the related

Bhatia Electronics

Mohit Enterprises

E Parisar Tech Pvt Ltd
Telecity Enterprises LLP
SNV Distributors Pvt Ltd
HSL Corporation LLP
Modern Commodeal Pvt Ltd

arties and closing balances as on 31.03.2022

Amount in Lacs

Value of Transaction

Nature of Transaction Key Managerial Relatives of Enterprises owned or significantly
Personnel (KMP) & KMP &

Director Director influenced by KMP or their relatives
Loans Accepted 145.921 - -
Loans Repaid 133.000 - 12.621
Interest Paid - - 0.887
Director Remuneration 48.000 - -
Salary Expenses 6.295 3.485 -
Rent 30.550 4.125 6.740
Purchase - - 2,097.407
Sale - - -

Closing Balances

Key Managerial Relatives of Enterprises owned or significantly
Nature of Transaction Personnel (KMP) & KMP &
Director Director

influenced by KMP or their relatives
Unsecured Loan 140.892 - -
Remuneration & Rent & Salary 68.493 2.821 5.238
Purchase - - 629.847
Sale - - 172.020

(i) Loans and Advances in nature of loans granted to directors, promoters, KMPs, and the Related Parties during the year:
The Company has not granted any loan or advances in nature of loans to directors, promoters, KMPs, and the Related Parties during
the year either jointly or severally whether repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period.




xix. Significant Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,revenue, expenses, and the accompanying
disclosures and the disclosures of contingent liabilities.Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and
associates assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances existing when financial statements were prepared. These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future year
affected.

xX. Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation at the reporting date,which may cause material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are:

- Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment and intangibles

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

- Provision for inventories

- Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies

- Impairment of trade receivables

- Deferred Taxes

xxi.Dividend :
The Company has paid dividend to the public share holders of Rs 15,06,953 after deducting TDS on amount of Rs 16,50,000.
Amount of Rs 49,059 is unpaid as on 31.03.2022, out of which 44,400 was payable from earlier declared dividend.

Amount in Lacs
xxii.Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022
is as per details given below.

Years

PARTICULARS 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020 |  31.03.2019
Profit Before Tax 530.889 732.829 712.379
Average Profit of Last 3 Years 658.699

2 % of Average Profit 13.174

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 13.174

(i) Amount of Expenses incurred during the Year 10.023

(i) Surplus of the Previous Year 6.752

(iv) Shortfall at the end of the year Nil

(v) Total of Previous Year Shortfall Nil

(vi) Reason for Shortfall NA

(vii) Nature of CSR Activities
(viii) Related Party Transaction

Promoting Sanitation
No Related party transaction

xxiii.Other Notes :
Additional information required pursuant to The Companies Act 2013

a. Stock Details Qty in Numbers

Opening Inward Outward Closing
Mobile & Phones 31,131 4,42,388 4,43,975 29,544
Cards & Recharge
Coupon 3,45,230 4,78,854 5,21,358 3,02,726
Other Sundry Items 7,52,624 8,53,086 8,63,457 7,42,253
Electronic ltems 1,576 13,296 11,526 3,346

b. Foreign currency transactions
Income in Foreign Currency (Rs.)

Expenses in foreign currency (Rs.)

Nil
Nil
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c. Disclosure under Sec 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (M SMED):
The principal amount|The amount of payment made to The amount of[ The amount of
and the interest|, supplier  beyond  the The amount of interest_ due [interest acc_ru_ed furt_ht_er interest
thereon due to any ) ) and payable for the period of |and remaining| remaining due and
supplier as at the|@Ppointed day and the interest|  yo|ay in making payment  |unpaid at the end| payable in the
year end thereon, during the year of the year succeeding year
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Dues to the Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information by the management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

The Company is in the process of compilation of details of amounts due to small scale industrial units, and only the party who
have informed their status as MSME to the company have been consider for above report.

d. Provision for current tax is made in the accounts on the basis of estimated tax liability as per the applicable provisions of the
Income Tax Act 1961.

e. Figures pertaining to the previous years/period have been regrouped/rearranged, reclassified and restated wherever
considered necessary, to make them comparable with those of current year/period.

f. The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company
for holding any Benami Property.

g. The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
h. The company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
i. The company have not traded or invest in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial year.

i. The company have not advanced or given loan or invested fund to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

k. The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherewise) that the company shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

|. The company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
discloused as income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any
other relevent provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

m. The company has not been declared as Wilful defaulter by the Banks, Financial institution or other lenders.
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NOTE 2
a. Property, plant and equipment

(Amount in Lacs)

COMPUTER AND ELECTRICAL FURNITURE & OFFICE
PARTICULARS DATA PROCESSING |INSTALLATION AND FIXTURE EQUIPMENTS VEHICLES TOTAL
UNIT EQUIPMENTS (P&M)
Year ended March 31, 2021
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 98.309 78.586 607.312 125.753 201.306 1,111.266
Deemed Cost as at March 31, 2021
Additions 10.450 22.620 106.685 12.661 45.071 197.487
Disposals - - - - - -
Capitalised /Transferred during the year - - - - - -
Closing Gross Carrying Amount as on 31.03.2022 108.759 101.205 713.998 138.414 246.377 1,308.753
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 76.107 27.940 252.076 38.568 77.064 471.756
Depreciation Charge during the year 14.764 7.641 58.068 8.415 26.423 115.311
Disposals - - - - - -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 90.871 35.581 310.144 46.983 103.488 587.068
Net Carrying Amount As On 31.03.2022 17.888 65.624 403.853 91.430 142.890 721.685

b. Goodwill

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars

GOODWILL

Year ended March 31, 2021

Opening Gross Carrying Amount
Deemed Cost as at March 31, 2021
Additions

Disposals

Capitalised /Transferred during the year

29.000

Closing Gross Carrying Amount as on 31.03.2022

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation Charge during the year
Disposals

Closing Accumulated Depreciation

Net Carrying Amount As On 31.03.2022

136



BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

(Amount in Lacs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021

NOTE 3
FINANCIAL ASSETS

LOANS
Others- Unsecured Considered Good
LOANS AND ADVANCES 300.407 595.479
300.407 595.479
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
F.D with HDFC Bank (Marked for Lien) 1,724.383 1,598.864
F.D with SBI Bank (Marked for Lien) 5.003 -
SHOP DEPOSIT 85.820 91.765
1,815.206 1,690.630
NOTE 4
INVENTORIES
TRADED GOODS 4,093.547 2,896.943
4,093.547 2,896.943
NOTE 5
TRADE RECEIVABLES
Sundry Debtor 537.683 492.146
537.683 492.146
Trade Receivables ageing schedule
Outstanding for following period from Due Date of Payment (Amount in Lacs)
Particulars Less Than6 | 6 Mohts- 1 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More Than 3 Total
Month Years Years
Undisputed Trade
Receivables- Considered
Good
Disputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Good
TOTAL - - - - - -
NOTE 6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH ON HAND 118.283 67.452
HDFC-DIVIDEND A/C- UNPAID DIVIDEND 0.491 0.444
BALANCES WITH SCHEDULE BANK 64.513 94.548
183.287 162.444
NOTE 7
LOANS- CURRENT
OTHERS:
OTHERS, CONSIDERED GOOD: 563.068 398.462
563.068 398.462
NOTE 8
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
13,00,00,000 Equity shares of Re 1/- each 1,300.000 1,300.000
P.Y. 1,30,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each
1,300.000 1,300.000
ISSUED SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
12,51,52,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 1,251.520 1,251.520
P.Y.1,25,15,200 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
1,251.520 1,251.520
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SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP CAPITAL
12,51,52,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each
P.Y.1,25,15,200 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

SUBSCRIBED BUT NOT FULLY PAID UP CAPITAL

Reconciliation of Shares As at 31.03.2022

1,251.520 1,251.520

1,251.520 1,251.520

As at 31.03.2021

Equity Shares
Number (Amount in
Shares outstanding - Lacs)

Shares outstanding at beginning of the year 1,25,15,200 1,251.520
Equity share issured during the year - -
Bonus Shares issued during the year - -
Preference share converted into equity - -
Share bought back during the year - -
Shares outstanding at end of the year* 12,51,52,000 1,251.520

* One equity share of the company having
year.

Shareholder(s) holding more than 5% shares
As at 31.03.2022

Equity shares of Re.1/- each in C.Y, and of Rs 10/- each

Number

No. of shares

Equity Shares

(Amount in Lacs)

1,25,15,200 1,251.520

1,25,15,200 1,251.520

face value of Rs 10/- each has splitinto ten equity share of Re 1/- each during the

As at 31.03.2021

% of holding

inP.Y. No. of shares % of holding
held

Sanjeev H Bhatia 4,26,00,000 34.04%

Nikhil Bhatia 4,83,28,540 38.62%

Shareholdings of Promoters/Promoters Group

held
42,60,000 34.04%
48,32,854 38.62%

Share held by Promoters/Promoters Group at the end of Year

No. of shares .
S. No. Name as on % of holding % Change during the Year
31.03.2022
Promoters
1 Nikhil Bhatia 4,83,28,540 38.62% 0.00%
2 Sanjeev H Bhatia 4,26,00,000 34.04% 0.00%
Promoters Group
1 Hema Sanjeev Bhatia 12,22,660 0.98% 0.00%
2 Garima Nikhil Bhatia 280 0.00% 0.00%
3 Nareshkumar Brijlal Bhatia 260 0.00% 0.00%
4 Kamleshkumari Bhatia 260 0.00% 0.00%
TOTAL 9,21,52,000 73.63% 0.00%

Shares allotted for consideration other than cash(for period of five years preceding th e B/S date)

30,90,600 EQUITY SHARES OF Rs 10 each were issued as fully paid bonus shares on 30.09.2017 to the existing equity shareholders of the company.
37,500 PREFERENCE SHARES OF Rs 10 each has been converted into 37,500 EQUITY SHARE OF Rs. 10 on 30.09.2017.
12,14,400 EQUITY SHARES OF Rs 10 each were issued as fully paid bonus shares on 05.01.2018 to the existing equity shareholders of the company.

14,00,000 FRESH EQUITY SHARES OF Rs 10 each were issued on 16.02.2018 through BSE-SME IPO.

62,57,600 EQUITY SHARES OF Rs 10 each were issued as fully paid bonus shares on 10.10.2018 to the existing equity shareholders of the company.

Unpaid calls
By Directors Nil
By Officers

Terms/rights attached to shares:

The Equity shares have a face value of Re 1 per share. Each holder of share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company all shareholders

will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the shares held by them.
The Preference shares issued are 5% non cumulative fully convertible preference shares,convertible into one equity share each at the discretion of the Board of
directors. Dividend to be paid will rank in priority to equity shareholders, but the declaration of same vests with Board of directors, irrespective of fact that company is

making profits or not.The Preference share has been converted into equity share as on 30.09.2017
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Equity share capital

Current Year

(Amount in Lacs)
Previous Year.

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 125.152 125.152
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated Balance at the Beginning of the Year 125.152 125.152
Changes in equity share capital during the Year - -
Balance at the end of Year 125.152 125.152
Other Equity
(1) Current Reporting Period
Reserves and surplus Total
Particulars Securities Retained
premium reserve earnings
Balane at the Beginning of the Reporting Period 1,334.240 1,522.072 2,856.312
Profit for the year - 527.264 527.264
Other comprehensive income - 2.979 2.979
Total comprehensive income for the year - 530.243 530.243
Increase/Decrease In Securities Premium Reserve On issue of
shares - - -
Any Others Changes to be specified -
Final Dividend paid - (16.500) (16.500)
Balance at the end of Reporting Period 1,334.240 2,035.815 3,370.055
(2) Previous Reporting Period
Reserves and surplus Total
Particulars Securities Retained
premium reserve earnings
Balane at the Beginning of the previous Reporting Period 1,334.240 1,275.399 2,609.639
Profit for the year - 374.492 374.492
Other comprehensive income - 4.182 4.182
Total comprehensive income for the year - 378.673 378.673
Increase/Decrease in Securities Premium Reserve On issue of
shares - - -
Any Others Changes to be specified -
Final Dividend paid - (132.000) (132.000)
Balance at the end of Previous Reporting Period 1,334.240 1,522.072 2,856.312
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
s p&r our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For RPR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
6G 6 G

6G Sanjeev Bhatia Nikhil Bhatia
Raunag Kankaria Managing Director Whole Time Director
Partner DIN: 02063671 DIN:02063706
M No: 138361

FRN: 131964W
Date : 28.05.2022
Place: SURAT

6G
Company Secretary

6G
C.F.0.
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NOTE 9

OTHER EQUITY
SECURITIES PREMIUM RESERVE As at 31.03.2022

(Amount in Lacs)
As at 31.03.2021

Opening balance 1,334.240
Add: Credited during the year -
Less: Utilised during the year

1,334.240

Closing Balance 1,334.240

RETAINED EARNING

Opening balance 1,522.072
(+)Net Profit/Net Loss 530.243
(+)Transfer from reserves -
(-)Issue of bonus shares -
(-)Dividend paid (16.500)
(-)Transfer to reserves -
(-) Other Comprehensive Income (Actuary Gain) -
(-) Deferred tax adjustment -

Closing Balance 2,035.815

1,334.240

1,275.399
378.673

(132.000)

1,522.072

Total Other Equity 3,370.055

2,856.312

NOTE 10

BORROWINGS: NON- CURRENT

UNSECURED LOANS

LOANS FROM DIRECTOR / RELATED PARTY 140.892

SECURED LOAN

CAR LOAN FROM HDFC BANK 22.920
(Car Loan from HDFC Bank of Rs 40,40,000 secured by hypothecation of the Car

purchased. The Loan amount is repayable in 39 monthly equal installments of Rs 1,16,491

(including interest) commencing from Oct 2021 to Dec 2024.)

139.793

163.812

139.793

NOTE 11

PROVISIONS: NON- CURRENT

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

PROVISION FOR GRATUITY 37.433

33.477

37.433

33.477

NOTE 12

OTHER NON- CURRENT

DEPOSIT

BRANCH PARTNER DEPOSIT 623.894

580.000

623.894

580.000

NOTE 13
BORROWINGS- CURRENT
LOAN FROM BANKS:
SECURED:
HDFC Bank O/D. 1,347.839
(Secured against Fixed Deposit of company, repayable on demand and interest will be
charges @ 1% plus rate of interest given on FD to the company) (Total overdraft facility - Rs
14 Crores) -

CURRENT MATURITIES OF LONG TERM DEBT: -
HDFC CAR LOAN 11.861

934.834

17.352

1,359.700

952.186
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NOTE 14

TRADE PAYABLES

SUNDRY CREDITORS FOR GOODS
CREDITORS FOR EXPENSES
CREDITORS FOR OTHERS

Trade Payables aging schedule

1,098.002 866.321
129.233 59.425
12.522 6.628
1,239.757 932.373

Particulars

Outstanding for following

periods from due date of payment

(Amount in Lacs)

Less Than 1

More Than 3

1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
Years Years
(i) MSME - - - - -
(i) Others 826.253 266.390 18.018 129.096 1,239.757
(ii) Disputed Dues- MSME - - - - -
(iii) Disputed Dues- Others - - - - -
TOTAL 826.253 266.390 18.018 129.096 1,239.757
NOTE 15
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
UNPAID DIVIDEND (2019-20) 0.444 0.444
UNPAID DIVIDEND (2020-21) 0.047 -
0.491 0.444
NOTE 16
PROVISIONS - CURRENT
PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
PROVISION FOR GRATUITY 2.103 1.647
OTHERS
PROVISION FOR TAXATION 187.847 143.122
189.950 144.769
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(Amount in Lacs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31.03.2022

As at 31.03.2021

NOTE 17
REVENUE FROM OPERATION
SALE OF GOODS(Net)

NOTE 18

OTHER INCOME
DEBIT NOTE A/C
CREDIT NOTE
COMMISSION INCOME
OTHER INCOME
VATAV KASAR A/C
INTEREST RECEIVED

NOTE 19
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN INVENTORY

OPENING STOCK
LESS: CLOSING STOCK

NOTE 20

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
BONUS & INCENTIVES EXPENSES
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
E.P.F.&E.S.

SALARY EXPENSES

GRATUITY

NOTE 21

FINANCIAL COSTS

BANK CHARGES A/C

CARD SWAPING CHARGES

BANK INTEREST A/C.

FINANCE CHARGES

INTEREST ON SECURED LOAN
INTEREST EXPENSES

CAR LOAN PROCESSING CHARGES

23,347.165 17,292.178
23,347.165 17,292.178
1,788.737 1,605.344
(149.179) (205.793)
10.318 2.689
5.224 0.221
72.899 130.556
100.528 146.468
1,828.528 1,679.486
2,896.943 2,230.502
4,093.547 2,896.943
(1,196.604) (666.441)
19.932 6.562
48.000 40.000
0.958 0.990
295.989 294.516
8.392 8.799
373.272 350.867
6.876 5.181
80.840 50.573
41.590 56.540
(0.280) (0.125)
1.929 3.194
0.887 17.975
0.140 -
131.981 133.338
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NOTE 22
OTHER EXPENSES

PAYMENT TO AUDITOR:
AS AUDITOR 0.350 0.350
AS TAX AUDITOR 0.150 0.150

RATES & TAXES:

GST LATE FEES - 0.604
PROFESSIONAL TAX A/C 0.637 1.109
SMC TAXES 7.696 11.189
VAT EXPENSES - 0.080
RENT 368.566 300.015
REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 23.948 20.188
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES: - -
ADVERTISEMENT EXP. 25.839 16.958
COMMISSION EXPENSES 164.179 108.669
COMPUTER EXPENSES 5.741 5.897
DONATION - 0.210
CSR EXPENSE 10.023 20.000
DISCOUNT A/C 3.563 5.746
E PORTAL CHARGES 35.872 116.870
ELECTRICITY EXPENSES 88.685 68.221
GST EXPENSE 0.298 2.878
INCENTIVE TO SALES PERSON 10.643 12.398
INTEREST ON TDS 0.190 0.170
INSURANCE EXPENSE 9.419 9.270
LEGAL & CONSULTING EXP 7.468 16.258
LOSS ON SALE OF CAR - 0.543
MOBILE BILLS EXP. 2.000 1.979
PINE LABS PROCESSING CHARGE 6.943 4.147
POSTAGE & COURIER EXP. 6.547 6.640
PRINTING & STATIONARY A/C 5.229 5.632
ROC FEES 0.048 0.078
ROUND OFF (0.052) (0.031)
SHOP MAINTENANCE 0.897 0.347
SHOP EXPENSES 81.349 84.678
SECURITY EXP 0.960 0.960
TRAVELLING EXPENSES 59.857 6.219
VEHICLE EXPENSE 12.360 8.961
INTERNET & VPN CONNECTION EXPENSES 3.200 1.877
WEBSITES EXPENSES 1.661 -
944.265 839.258
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Fair value measurements

(Amount in Lacs)

Financial instruments by category March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade Receivables - - 537.683 - - 492.146
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 183.287 - - 162.444
Other Financial Assets - - 2,678.682 - - 2,684.571
Total financial assets - - 3,399.652 - - 3,339.162
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 1,523.512 - - 1,091.979
Trade Payable - - 1,239.757 - - 932.373
Other Financial Liabilities - - 0.491 - - 0.444
Total financial liabilities - - 2,763.759 - - 2,024.795 |

Fair value hierarchy

Ind AS -113 contains a fair value hierarchy that is similar to the hierarchy established under Ind AS-107. The highest priority is given to level-1 inputs;
Level-3 inputs get the lowest pripority. The fair value hierarchy ranks fair value measurements based on the type of inputs; it does not depend on the type
of valuation techniques used. A fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest-level input
that is significant to the entire measurement.

Levels of Hierarchy:

Level 1: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date.

Level 2: Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

Level 3: Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.

Note: We have identified all our Financial assets and liabilities in Level-3 as per fair value heirarchy.
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(Amount in Lacs)

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES AS ON 31-03-202 2 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
WDV as per Books 721.685 639.510
WDV as per IT Act 738.995 640.930
(17.310) (1.421)
Deferred Tax Liability @ 25.168% (4.356) (0.358)
(4.356) (0.358)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AS ON 31-03-2022
- On provision for Gratutity 8.392 8.799
8.392 8.799
Provision for Employees Benefit 2.112 2.214
2.112 2.214
Net deferred tax liability/(asset) (6.469) (2.572)
Add: Deferred Tax Asset due to Ind-AS - -
Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) as on 31-03-2022 (6.469) (2.572)
Deferred Tax Liability/Asset as on Previous Yea r (13.741) (16.313)
Additional Provision for Deferred Tax Assets or Liability 6.469 2.572
Additional Provision for Deferred Tax Asset due to Ind-AS - -
Net deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) as on 31.03.2022 (7.272) (13.741)
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Financial ratios

Ratios
1.) Current Ratio
2.) Debt Equity Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio
3.)

Return On Equity Ratio
4.)

5.) Inventory Turnover Ratio

6.) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio

7.) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio
8.) Net Capital Turnover Ratio
9.) Net Profit Ratio

10.

2

Return On Capital Employed

11.) Return On Investment

2

Methodology

Current assets/Current liabilities

Total debt/Shareholders Equity

Earning available for Debt Service/ Interest exp + Principal

repayment

PAT-Preference Share dividend (if any)/Average

Shareholders Fund**

Cost of Goods Sold/Average inventory

Net Credit Sales / AverageTrade Receivable

Net Credit purchases/Average trade payable

Net Sales/ Average Working Capital

Net profit after tax/ Net Sales x 100

Profit before Interest and Tax/Capital Employed x 100

Profit before Interest and Tax/Capital Employed x 100

Explanation for variances exceeding 25%

Debt Equity Ratio increased on account of Increase in Bank overdraft amount.

Debt Service coverage Ration increase on account of increase in profit of the company in compare to last year.
Return on Equity Ration increased on account of increase in profit of the company in compare to last year.

Trade receivable Turnover Ratio had increased during the year on account of increase in sales as compared to last year.
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio had increased on account of increase in purchase as compare to last year.

Notes:

. Average shareholders fund

. Cost of goods sold

. Average inventory

. Average Trade receivable

. Average Trade payable
Working Capital

. Average Working Capital

. Capital Employed

TIQ "D Q0T

For RPR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

6G

Raunaq Kankaria
Partner

M No: 138361
FRN: 131964W
Date : 28.05.2022
Place: SURAT

(Opening shareholders fund+Closing shareholders fund)/2
(Opening stock+ Purchases- Closing stock)

(Opening stock+Closing stock)/2

(Opening trade receivable+Closing trade receivable)/2
(Opening trade payable+Closing trade payable)/2

Current Assets-Current Liability(Excluding short term borrowing)

(Opening Working Capital+ Closing Working Capital)/2

Total assets- Current liabilities

As at
Variance 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
-0.95% 1.93 1.95
24.01% 0.33 0.27
74.50% 15.65 8.97
28.53% 0.12 0.09
-1.28% 6.55 6.64
41.60% 45.34 32.02
29.39% 22.19 17.15
1.43% 7.38 7.28
4.28% 2.26% 2.17%
12.98% 15.39% 13.63%
12.98% 15.39% 13.63%
43,64,70,385 39,84,49,574
2,29,03,22,298 1,70,16,75,564
34,95,24,484 25,63,72,262
5,14,91,479 5,40,01,416
10,86,06,483 10,31,11,339
39,47,38,793 28,72,41,017
34,09,89,905 26,06,29,791
54,53,98,640 48,74,84,276
For and on behalf of the Board
6G 6G
Sanjeev Bhatia Nikhil Bhatia

Managing Director
DIN: 02063671

6G
Company Secretary

Whole Time Director
DIN:02063706

6G

C.F.0.
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BHATIACOMMUNICATIONSRETAIUNDIALIMITED

CIN:L32109GJ2008PLC053336
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ATTENDANCH.IP

Nameof the member(s):

RegisteredAddress:

FolioNo *DPID
No.of Shares *ClientID

* Applicableto holdersholdingsharesin demat/electronicform

| herebyrecord my attendanceat the 14" AnnualGeneralMeeting of the Companyheld on Monday, the 05"
day of September2022at ShopNo. 203, GroundFloor,BhatiaComplexNr. SosycCircle,BamroliRoad,Suratr
394210at 11:00A.M.

Shareholdersignature
Note:
1. Pleasdill this attendanceslipand handit overat the entranceof the MeetingHall.

2. Memberssignatureshouldbe in accordancewith the specimensignaturein the Registerof Membersof the
Company.

3. Membersare requestedto bring their copy of the AnnualReportand this AttendanceSlipat the Annual
GeneralMeetingof the Company.
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BHATIACOMMUNICATIONSRETAIUNDIALIMITED
CIN:L32109GJ2008PLC053336

RegdOff: 132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad,Surat895002
Website:www.bhatiamobile.comEmail: info@bhatiamobile.comPh:0261 2349892

FormMGTid1
PROXY¥ORM

[Pursuantto section105(6)of the CompaniesAct, 2013andrule 19(3)if the CompaniegManagementand
Administration Rules,2014]

CIN:L32109GJ2008PLC053336
Name:BHATIACOMMUNICATIONS RETAIINDIA)LIMITED
RegisteredOffice: 132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad,Surat895002

Nameof the member(s):
RegisteredAddress:

Email ID:

FolioNo/ *Client ID:
*DPID:
*Applicablefor holdersholdingsharesin demat/ electronicmode

I/We, beingthe member(s)of ....................... Shareof the abovenamedcompany herebyappoint

him
him

EmaillD: ... —— Signature:.........oocoeiiin
As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and my/our behalf at the 14th Annual General
Meeting of the Companyto be held on Monday,the 05" day of September,2022at 11:00a.m. at ShopNo.
203, GroundFloor, Bhatia Complex,Nr. SosyoCircle,BamroliRoad,Surat,394210and at any adjournment
thereof in respectof suchresolutionsasare indicatedbelow:

Sr. | OrdinaryResolution For Against
No.
1 Adoptionof AnnualAccounts Auditor’'s& Director’'sReport.

2 Reappointment of Mrs. KamleshkumarHarbanslalBhatia (DIN: 02066517),
Director. Who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for rer
appointment.

SpeciaResolution
3 Reappointment of Mr. SanjeevHarbanslalBhatia (DIN: 02063671),as the
ManagingDirectorof the Companyfor a further period of 5 (Five)years.

4 Reappointmentof Mr. NikhilHarbanslaBhatia(DIN:02063706)asthe Whole | r
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TimeDirectorof the Companyfor a further period of 5 (Five)years.
5 Reappointment of Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora (DIN: 07584412), as the
IndependentDirectorof the Companyfor afurther periodof 5 (Five)years.

6 Reappointment of Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang (DIN: 08044845), as the
IndependentDirectorof the Companyfor afurther period of 5 (Five)years.

7 Reappointment of Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain (DIN: 08044841), as the
IndependentDirectorof the Companyfor a further period of 5 (Five)years.

8 Approvalof RelatedParty Transactiorn(s).

Signedhis dayof September2022. Affixa Rel

RevenueStamp

Signatureof Shareholder

Note: Thisform of proxyin order to be effective shouldbe duly completedand depositedat the Registered
Officeof the Companynot lessthan 48 hoursbeforethe commencementf the Meeting.
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BHATIACOMMUNICATIONSRETAIUNDIALIMITED
CIN:L32109GJ2008PLC053336

RegdOff: 132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad,Surat895002
Website:www.bhatiamobile.comEmail: info@bhatiamobile.comPh:02612349892

FormMGTdz2
PollingPaper
[Pursuantto section109(5)of the CompaniesAct, 2013andrule 21(1)(c)if the CompaniegfManagement
and Administration Rules,2014]
CIN:L32109GJ2008PLC053336
Name:BHATIACOMMUNICATIONSRETAIINDIA)LIMITED
RegisteredOffice: 132,Dr. AmbedkarShoppingCentre,RingRoad,Surat895002

1. Nameof the FirstNamed
ShareholdefIn blockletters)
Postaladdress

2. Registeredolio No./
DPIDNo./ClientIDNo.*
(*Applicableto investorsholding
Sharesn dematerializedorm)

Clas®f Share

1. I/We herby exercisemy/our vote in respectof the Resolutionas set out in the Notice of Annual
GeneralMeeting of the Companyscheduledto be held on Monday, 05th September,2022at 11.00
A.M. at ShopNo. 203, GroundFloor, BhatiaComplex,Nr. SosyoCircle,BamroliRoad,Suratr394210
whichis proposedto be placedfor considerationof membersat the aforesaidAGMof the Company,
by sendingmy/our assent(FOR)or dissent(AGAINSTp the saidresolution by placingthe tick ( O
markat the appropriateboxbelow:

Item
No.

Item

Nature of
Resolution

No. of
shares

I/We Assent
to the
Resolution
(FOR)

I/We dissent
to the
Resolution
(AGAINST)

(ABSTAIN)

Adoption  of Annual
Accounts, Auditor's &
Director’'sReport.

Ordinary

Remppointment of Mrs.
Kamleshkumari Harbanslal
Bhatia (DIN: 02066517),
Wole Time Director. Who
retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers
himselffor re appointment.

Ordinary

Remppointment of Mr.
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia
(DIN: 02063671), as the
Managing Director of the
Company for a further
periodof 5 (Five)years.

Special
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4 | Remppointment of Mr. Special
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia
(DIN: 02063706), as the
WholeiTime Director of the
Company for a further
periodof 5 (Five)years.

5 | Remppointment of Mrs. Special
Rashmi Kapil Arora (DIN:
07584412), as the
Independent Director of
the Companyfora further
periodof 5 (Five)years.

6 | Remppointment of Mr. Special
RachitNareshNarang(DIN:
08044845), as the
Independent Director of
the Companyfora further
periodof 5 (Five)years.

7 | Remppointment of Mr. Special
Arpit ArunkumarJain (DIN:
08044841), as the
Independent Director of
the Companyfora further
periodof 5 (Five)years.

8 | Approval of Related Party| Special
Transactior(s).

Place:Surd
Date: 05/09/2022 (Member)

ELECTRONVOTINGPARTICULAR

EVENEVOTINGEVENTNUMBER)

120729

E Moting shallremainstart on Friday,02" day of September2022(9.00a.m.)andwill be opentill Sunday04"
dayof September2022till the closeof workinghours(i.e.5.00p.m.).

Note: Pleasereadthe instructionsprinted overleafcarefullybefore exercisingsour vote.



BHATIA’3 4" ANNUALREPORT

THE MINISTRY OF CORPORATRFFAIRSHAS TAKEN A “GREEN INITIATIVEIN THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCBY ALLOWINGPAPERLESSOMPLIANCHSY THECOMPANIESND HASISSUELRCIRCULAR
STATINGHATSERVICEFNOTICE/DOCUMENTSCLUDINGNNUALREPORTANBESENTBYEMAILTO
ITSMEMBERSTO SUPPORTHISGREENNITIATIVEOF THEGOVERNMENMEMBERSWHO HAVENOT
REGISTEREMHEIREMAIL ADDRESSS0 FAR,AREREQUESTEDO GETTHEIREMAIL ADDRESSES\
RESPECDF ELECTRONIEIOLDINGWITH DEPOSITORYHROUGHTHEIR CONCERNEMDEPOSITORY

PARTICIPANTBIEMBERSWVHOHOLDSHARESN PHYSICAEORM AREREQUESTEDD GETTHEIRSHARES
DEMATERIALIZED.
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